Lancashire County Council

Rossendale Three Tier Forum

Wednesday, 10th September, 2014 at 6.00 pm in in the Council Chamber at the
Business Centre, Futures Park, Bacup.

Agenda

No. Item

1. Appointment of Chair.

2. Appointment of Deputy Chair.

3. Membership and Terms of Reference.

4, Questions.
There will be a 15 minute period (to be managed by the
Chair) during which members of the public or
representatives from Neighbourhood Forums can ask
questions or raise issues of concern.

5. Apologies.

6. Note of the Last Meeting

7. Action Sheet update from the last meeting.

8. Developing the Three Tier Forums - feedback on the
review.
A copy of the report presented to the County Councils
Cabinet on the 8t May 2014 in connection with the above
together with an extract from the Minutes is
attached.

9. Rossendale Making Space for Water Group

10. Rossendale Borough Council - Task and Finish
Group report on Public Rights of Way.

11.  2014/15 Quarter 1 Environment Directorate

Performance Dashboard.

(Pages 1 -4)

(Pages 5 - 12)
(Pages 13 - 16)

(Pages 17 - 38)

(Pages 39 - 42)

(Pages 43 - 48)
(Pages 49 - 50)
Lancashire

Cou nty ‘@??.
Council (&gz‘?



No. Item

12. Events on the Highway - policy and procedures for (Pages 51 - 86)
highway management.

13. Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) (Pages 87 - 90)

14. Tour de France review
Oral report.

15. County Councillors Update

County Councillors on the Forum will give oral reports
on activity that they have been involved in since the last
meeting.

16. Items raised by members of the Forum

An oral update will be given in relation to the Overview
and Scrutiny Task Group on planning applications
education/highways contributions.

17. Themes for future meetings

Any suggestions for themes to be discussed at future
meetings should be forwarded to the Chair and Harry
Ballantyne, Localities Officer, Environment Directorate:
Strategy and Policy, Mobile 07717 423903 or by email
to harry.ballantyne@lancashire.gov.uk

18. Urgent Business

An item of urgent business may only be considered
under this heading where, by reason of special
circumstances to be recorded in the minutes, the Chair
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

19. Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Forum will be held
at 6.00pm on the 3 December 2014 in the Council
Chamber at the Business Centre, Futures Park, Bacup.

| Young
County Secretary and Solicitor

County Hall
Preston


mailto:harry.ballantyne@lancashire.gov.uk







Agenda Item 3

Rossendale 3 Tier Forum

10t September 2014

Membership and Terms of Reference of the Forum.

Membership

The Rossendale Tier Forum consists of all County Councillors with an Electoral
Division within the District, together with an equal number of Borough Councillors
and a Parish Councillor representing the Parish and Town Councils within the

District.

The current membership of the Forum is as follows.

Lancashire County Council Rossendale Borough Council
County Councillor A Barnes Councillor C Crawforth
County Councillor A Cheetham Councillor C Lamb

County Councillor J Oakes Councillor A Milling*

County Councillor S Serridge Councillor D Smith

County Councillor D Stansfield Councillor R Wilkinson

* New member appointed by the Borough Council on the 6" June 2014

The Parish and Town Councils representative on the Forum is Councillor D Barnes
(Whitworth Town Council).

Terms of Reference

a) The Forum is a joint business meeting of County, District, and Town and
Parish Councillors, open to the public.

b) The membership of the Forum will be all local County Councillors with an
Electoral Division within the District and an equal number of District
Councillors appointed by the District Council, and one Parish/Town Council
representative nominated from the Parish/Town Councils within the District
area.

District Councils and the Parish/Town Councils can nominate deputies or
replacements in accordance with their own procedures. The officer(s)
supporting the meeting must be notified of any changes prior to a meeting.
Political balance rules do not apply to the Three Tier Forum, although districts
may follow these for their nominations.

c) The Forum will discuss issues that are of joint interest across the three levels

of local government in the area. Agenda items will focus on strategic issues
relating to all local councils in the area.

Page 1



Any member of the Forum can request that an item is considered at a future
meeting of the Forum. The Chair is responsible for agreeing the agenda and
deciding whether an issue raised by a member will appear on an agenda.
Where issues are raised that do not fall within the remit of the Forum these
will be dealt with via the appropriate mechanism.

Public speaking is permitted on the following basis - on each agenda item for
up to 3 minutes per person at the discretion of the Chair.

The Chair is responsible for managing the debate at the meeting. The Chair's
ruling on any aspect of a member of the Forums right to speak will be final.
Members who persistently ignore the ruling of the Chair may after being
warned, be asked to leave the room for the duration of the meeting.

Decisions of the Forum should be by consensus wherever possible. In the
event that a consensus cannot be reached, decisions are by simple 'show of
hands' majority with the Chair having a casting vote.

The Forum is not a formal committee of County, District or Parish Councils,
therefore Access to Information provisions do not apply. However, as they are
public meetings, agendas and minutes will be available on the County
Council's website and by request can be obtained in person at County Hall,
Preston.

The Chair and Deputy will be elected at the Annual Meeting from amongst the
membership of the Forum. Should a vacancy arise during the year, a new
Chair or Deputy will be elected. A Chair or Deputy may be removed from their
position by a vote of the Forum.

The Forum will meet 3 times a year, one of which will be the Annual Meeting.
The Forum does not have the authority to establish sub groups or working
groups. From April 2014, the Annual Meeting will be the first meeting of the
Forum after the County Council's AGM.

Urgent business is allowed, with the consent of the Chair. Any member
wishing to raise a matter of urgent business should advise the Chair via the
officer support for the Forum as soon as possible.

The "Protocol on Public Speaking at Three Tier Forums" applies (see below).

Protocol on Public speaking at the Rossendale 3 Tier Forum

For the purpose of this protocol, "members of the public" includes members of the
press and parish and district councillors who are not members of the Forum. It does
not include officers of county or district authorities who are in attendance to support
and advise the meeting.

Each Forum will agree at what points of the meeting members of the public will be
entitied to speak. On the 4t December 2013 the Forum agreed that members of

Page 2



the public would be allowed to speak during the discussion of each item on
the agenda.

Each Forum may also set a maximum length of time for any individual speech from a
member of the public. On the 4th December 2013 the Forum agreed that each
speaker would have up to 3 minutes per person, to be managed by the Chair at
their discretion.

Public speaking must be on topics included on the agenda for the meeting.

Whilst a member of the public is speaking, no interruption shall be allowed from
either a member of the Forum or another member of the public.

However, the Chair of the meeting may intervene in the speech of a member of the
public. This includes the right of the Chair to terminate a speech if it is felt
appropriate to do so. The Chair's judgement will be informed by the following
provision:

Members of the public must not

Speak at a point in the meeting other than those specified

Interrupt another speaker

Speak for longer than the allotted time

Reveal personal information about another individual

Make a personal complaint about a service provided by County, District or Town /
Parish Councils in the area

Make individual or personal complaints against any member of the authority
Reveal information which they know or believe to be confidential

Use offensive, abusive or threatening language

Ignore the ruling of the Chair of the meeting

Members of the public who breach these guidelines may, following a warning, be
asked to leave the meeting. If a person refuses to leave the room, the Chair shall
adjourn the meeting for a short period of time and if necessary to a later date

Speeches by members of the public are not expected to be the subject of a debate,
nor are any questions raised expected to be answered. The Chair may, at his or her
discretion, invite a response or comment from an appropriate officer or Forum
member, but it is anticipated that this will be the exception rather than the rule.

The contents of any speech by a member of the public will be noted by officers
supporting the Forum and will be dealt with via the appropriate mechanism.

Action

The Forum is asked to note the current membership and Terms of Reference.

Page 3



Page 4



Agenda Item 6

Rossendale Three Tier Forum

Note of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 at 6.00 pm in Council
Chamber, Business Centre, Futures Park, Bacup.

Present:

Chair
County Councillor A Barnes, Lancashire County Council

Forum Members

County Councillor A Cheetham, Lancashire County Council

County Councillor J Oakes, Lancashire County Council

County Councillor S Serridge, Lancashire County Council

Councillor C Crawforth, Rossendale Borough Council

Councillor C Lamb, Rossendale Borough Council

Councillor G Morris, Rossendale Borough Council

Councillor D Smith, Rossendale Borough Council

Councillor R Wilkinson, Rossendale Borough Council

Councillor K Ruane - representing Parish and Town Councils in the Borough.

Also in attendance

Ms S Palmer, Locality Officer, Lancashire County Council, Environment Directorate.

Mr M Neville, Senior Committee Support Officer, Lancashire County Council, Office of the
Chief Executive.

1. Questions

The Chair invited members of the public and representatives of various organisations who
were present at the meeting to ask questions about any issues of concern and the
following matters were raised.

1. It was suggested that many motorists did not observe the 30mph limit along the AG6066
New Line in Bacup and in response the Chair suggested that enforcement of the speed
limit should be initially raised with the Police.

2. It was similarly suggested that the 20mph limit in Bacup Town Centre was also being
ignored by some motorists and County Councillor Oakes undertook to raise the issue
with the local Police.

3. Arequest was made for the road markings at the junction of Burnley Road East and
the Turnpike at Rawtenstall to be looked at as it was felt that the current markings were
confusing for motorists.

4. It was suggested that a lack of signage and the presence of parked vehicles on double
yellow lines contributed to motorists exceeding the speed limit on Booth Road,
Stacksteads in the vicinity of four schools.

5. Action was requested in relation to traffic congestion on South Street, Bacup, caused

by some taxis not using the designated taxi rank due to vehicles being vandalised. It
was noted that this was a licensing issue which the Borough Council would address.

Page 5



6. Reference was made to the closure of Blackburn Road in Haslingden following the
collapse of a section of the road. Whilst it was appreciated that incidents of this nature
could occur with little or no warning it was felt that in future more should be done to
give motorists advance warning of road closures so that they have a greater
opportunity to seek an alternative route.

Agreed: That the above points be noted and where appropriate responses be provided
either via the Action Sheet for outside of the meeting.

2. Protocol on Public Speaking.

A copy of the current Protocol in relation to public speaking at meetings of the Forum was
presented for information and noted. In response to a query regarding the number of
questions which a member of the public could ask in relation to an item on the agenda the
Chair reported that it was her intention to both encourage and manage any discussion at
meetings.

Agreed: That the current Protocol on public speaking is noted.

3. Apologies.

Apologies were presented on behalf of County Councillor D Stansfield. It was also noted
that County Councillor S Serridge had been delayed and would join the meeting in due
course.

4. Heritage Lottery Funding in Rossendale.

It was reported that the heritage Lottery Fund made available grants from £3,000 upwards
for a variety of schemes associated with heritage, including work to restore buildings,
protect natural habitats preserve memories/dialects. The type of funding available and the
timescale involved in pursuing a grant was discussed and it was noted that currently the
Pennine Lancashire area (which included Rossendale) had not yet received the full benefit
of the funding which was available.

There was general agreement amongst the members of the Forum that there were a
number of opportunities for applications to be made to the Fund in relation to the
restoration and use of certain buildings, supporting the Britannia Coco-nut Dancers of
Bacup, and preserving sections of dry stone wall, all of which were felt to be of
significance in terms of the heritage of the area.

Agreed: That the presentation be circulated to the members of the Forum, Parish

Councils and other interested groups in order that applications for Heritage Lottery
Funding can be developed.

Page 6



5. Note of the last Meeting.

Agreed: That the Note of the meeting held on the 4" December 2013 is confirmed as an
accurate record and signed by the Chair.

6. Action Sheet update from the last meeting.

In response to a query regarding the installation of a temporary bridge in Irwell Vale while
work was undertaken on Ogden Bridge Ms Palmer confirmed that she was not aware of
any additional information regarding the scheme and would update the Forum via the
Action Sheet as appropriate.

It was also noted that at the last meeting the condition and status of highways on the
Fieldfare Estate in Bacup had been discussed and the Locality Officer had subsequently
confirmed that all highways concerned had been made up to the standard required by the
County Council and consequently had been formally adopted as part of the highway
network.

Agreed: That the above comments and the updates set out in the Action Sheet be noted.

7. Review of 3 Tier Forums

It was reported that since the consultation on the future development of the 3 Tier Forums
last September some Forums had agreed to open meetings to the public.

The Chair informed the meeting that the Borough Council had put forward a proposal to
develop the format of the meeting and a report in relation to the future of all 3 Tier Forums
would be presented to the County Councils Cabinet in May. It was also noted that in future
representatives from the Neighbourhood Forums would be able to attend meetings of the
Rossendale Forum and take part in discussions.

Agreed: That the update regarding the future development of 3 Tier Forums is noted.

8. 2013/14 Quarter 3 Environment Directorate Performance Dashboard.

In response to a comment regarding recent flooding in Irwell Vale and Chatterton the Chair
reported that the County Council, Borough Council and other partner organisations would
continue to work together through the 'Making Space for Water' meetings to coordinate
services and address land drainage/flooding issues

Agreed: That the updates set out on the Dashboard are noted.

9. 2014/15 Environment Capital Programme.
The Forum was presented with a list of schemes which had been approved by the County

Councils Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation in relation to the Capital
Programme for 2014/15.

Page 7



¢ Inresponse to a request that the carriageway along Bacup Road in Rawtenstall,
between Kay Street and the new health centre, required urgent attention it was
suggested that some resurfacing would be done in connection with traffic signals and
as part of the bus station development. The Chair informed the meeting that the
County Council was in the process of exploring a new approach in relation to highway
maintenance.

e |t was reported that the resurfacing of footways on Holly Avenue in Haslingden had not
been completed and the Chair suggested that the matter be passed to the local County
Councillor for further action

e |t was noted that the Government had provided some additional funding in relation to
pothole repairs and consideration was being given as to how this would be allocated
across the County.

e The quality of works done by private companies when reinstating roads/footways after
the completion of works was discussed and it was suggested that any areas of concern
should be brought to the attention of the County Council so that the matter could be
raised with those responsible and repairs completed to the required standard.

Agreed: That the list of schemes in Rossendale which have been approved for the
2014/15 capital programme are noted.

10. East Lancashire Transport Master Plan Update.

The Chair informed the meeting that the County Council had recently agreed the East
Lancashire Transport Master Plan which had been discussed at the previous meeting. A
feasibility study was planned in relation to economic development and connectivity within
the Borough and the Forum would be kept informed of any developments.

Agreed: That the update is noted.

1. Quality Bus Route - Nelson/Rawtenstall.

The following comments were made by members of the Forum when discussing the
above.

e The X43 bus service from Nelson to Manchester was to be the subject of a study
aimed at identifying pinch points, many of which were in Rawtenstall, in order that
consideration could be given to improvements to traffic signals/ junctions to relieve
congestion

e |t was suggested that the traffic signals and road layout on Bank Street in Rawtenstall
be altered to provide a filter lane for traffic to turn left which would then ease the
current congestion caused by traffic heading towards Burnley. It was further suggested
that any alteration to the signals should include a change to the phasing of the lights to
allow pedestrians extra time to cross.

Page 8



The suitability of Bank Street as a bus route was also discussed and it was noted that
the operator considered the road was able to accommodate buses.

Agreed: That the comments of the Forum as set out above are noted and taken into
account in relation to development s associated with the A682 Nelson to Rawtenstall Bus
Corridor.

12. Tour de France.

It was reported that the first two stages of the Tour de France would be held in the
Pennine area of North Yorkshire on the 5t/6t" July, 2014 and were expected to attract
significant visitor numbers from overseas as well as from with the UK.

As the event would pass close to the County boundary on both days it was anticipated that
travel between Lancashire and Yorkshire would be disrupted and the County Council was
in the process of identifying any roads would need to be closed and also the duration of
such closures. Further news about the event and associated road closures would be made
available via www.lancashire.gov.uk (search for Tour de France) so that people could plan
their travel over that weekend or avoid the disruption.

Agreed: That the action being taken in relation to traffic management associated with the
Tour de France on the 5"/6%" July 2014 is noted.

13. Change to 0300 telephone numbers.

It was reported that the County Council had recently changed the telephone number of
several services from 0845 to 0300 and a list of the new numbers for certain services was
presented.

Agreed: That the report is noted.

14. Minimum unit price for alcohol for Lancashire.

The Forum considered a report regarding the introduction of a minimum unit pricing policy
for alcohol proposed by the Cumbria and Lancashire Public Health Collaborative.

The Forum recognised the impact that the availability of cheap alcohol had on public
health. And that more needed to be done in terms of education and advertising. It was
noted that adoption of the proposed policy was voluntary and it was suggested that as
Rossendale was on the edge of Lancashire the introduction of a minimum unit price in the
Borough would simply mean people would travel to retailers outside of the County to
purchase their alcohol. It was also recognised that whilst young people were vulnerable to
alcohol misuse statistically it was people aged 45 and above who had increased their
alcohol consumption.

Agreed: That the views of the Rossendale 3 Tier Forum regarding the introduction of a

minimum unit pricing policy for alcohol as set out above are forwarded to the Cumbria and
Lancashire Public Health Collaborative.

Page 9


http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/

15. County Council Members Update.

The Chair invited the County Councillors on the Forum to give a brief update on activities
which they were involved in.

County Councillor Oakes informed the meeting that she was the Chair of the Regulatory
Committee (which primarily considered issues regarding public rights of way) and a
member of the Executive Scrutiny Committee and Pensions Committee. She also reported
that the Environment Agency had contributed funds towards the demolition of a bridge
near Glen Terrace, Waterfoot which was considered to be unsafe following a series of
accidents.

County Councillor Cheetham reported that she was a member of the education Scrutiny
Committee and the Student Support Appeals Committee which considered applications for
assistance with home to school transport.

County Councillor Serridge updated the meeting on the roll out of superfast broadband
across the Borough and confirmed that following discussions with certain broadband
providers services would be offered to rural areas such as Whitworth. He also referred to
the change of telephone numbers mentioned area which would involve significant costs for
users, especially if calls were made on mobile phones.

The Chair reported that she was the Deputy Chair of the Executive Scrutiny Committee
and also served on the Budget Working Group which was assisting the county Council in
identifying areas where savings could be made over the next few years.

Agreed: That the updates from the County Council representatives present, as set out
above, are noted.

16. Items raised by members of the Forum.

The Chair informed the meeting that the outcome of the County Councils Overview and
Scrutiny Task Group on planning application education/highways contributions was still
awaited.

17. 2014/15 Programme of Meetings.

Agreed: That meetings be held at 6.00pm in the Council Chamber at the Business Centre,
Futures Park, Bacup, on the following dates.

Wednesday 10" September 2014
Wednesday 3 December 2014
Wednesday 18t April 2015

18. Themes for future meetings.

The following items were put forward as potential themes for discussion at future
meetings.

Page 10



1. An update as to how the County Council intended to allocate the recently announced
additional funding for pothole repairs between Districts and where any Rossendale
allocation would be spent.

2. Information regarding the work of the Making Space for Water Group and activities
undertaken in the Borough to prevent/mitigate flooding.

3. An update in connection with the recent changes regarding public health and current
provision across the Borough.

4. The impact of the County Council budget on levels of funding available for local
organisations and individuals working within the Arts.

5. The Lancashire Waste Partnership.

6. The outcome of the feasibility study regarding the economic potential for Rossendale to
link into the Metro link transport network.

7. An overview of activities in the Borough in relation to regeneration.

Agreed: That the Chair and Locality Officer consider the above suggestions and where
appropriate make arrangements for reports to be brought to future meetings.

19. Urgent Business.

There were no items of urgent business for discussion at the meeting.

20. Date of Next Meeting.

It was noted that in accordance with the earlier decision the next scheduled meeting of the
Forum would be held at 6pm on the 10t September 2014 in the Council Chamber at the
Business Centre, Futures Park, Bacup.

lan Fisher

County Secretary and Solicitor
County Hall
Preston

Page 11



Page 12



€T obed

Rossendale Three Tier Forum: Action Sheet

Meeting Date: 2" April 2014

Action

A request was made for the road markings at the
junction of Burnley Road East and the Turnpike
at Rawtenstall to be looked at as it was felt that
the current markings were confusing for
motorists.

Lead Officer

Oliver Starkey

Lead Officer Comments (Including Action Taken)

It appears that previous road markings have started to come to the
surface. Officers are investigating the extent to which this is happening
and will arrange for appropriate action to remedy the situation.

Concern was raised that a lack of signage and
the presence of parked vehicles on double yellow
lines contributed to motorists exceeding the
speed limit on Booth Road, Stacksteads in the
vicinity of four schools.

Oliver Starkey

We have requested that colleagues from Lancashire Parking Services
are deployed in the area to deal with inappropriate parking.

Action was requested in relation to traffic
congestion on South Street, Bacup, caused by
some taxis not using the designated taxi rank due
to vehicles being vandalised. It was noted that
this was a licensing issue which the Borough
Council would address.

Harry
Ballantyne/RBC

This is a long standing issue which re-occurs frequently. The complaint
has been passed to the Licencing section of Rossendale Borough
Council who will update us on progress.

Reference was made to the closure of Blackburn
Road in Haslingden following the collapse of a
section of the road. Whilst it was appreciated that
incidents of this nature could occur with little or
no warning it was felt that in future more should
be done to give motorists advance warning of
road closures so that they have a greater
opportunity to seek an alternative route

Oliver Starkey

These were emergency works carried out by United Utilities. As has
been reported to a previous Rossendale 3 Tier Forum where works
are planned as much notice as is practicable is given to reduce the
impact of works on motorists and residents. However, in this case the
incident was classed as an emergency and Statutory Undertakers are
able to carry out works with little or no notice. In the circumstances
everything possible was done to reduce the impact of the works but
given the scale of the collapse there was inevitably some disruption.

) W3] epuaby



T obed

Action

Heritage Lottery Fund presentation to be
circulated to 3TF members

Lead Officer

Harry Ballantyne

Lead Officer Comments (Including Action Taken)

The presentation was circulated by Mike Neville on 23 April and is
also attached here for information.

HLF Presentation.ppt

Further information was requested on the
installation of a temporary bridge in Irwell Vale
while work was undertaken on Ogden Bridge.

David Leung

We anticipate that the temporary bridge at Ogden Bridge will be in
place by the end of the Summer. Then we will proceed straight to
Irwell Vale bridge and carry out the required bridge works.
Unfortunately the one potential hold up is that we are seeking a land
agreement with United Utilities which had been agreed in principle last
year but not formally signed up to. The person dealing with it at UU
has gone on long term sick and the new contact is unwilling to sign the
agreement until he has reviewed the whole issue again. We are
pressing for action on this (as we have been for several months).

Capital Programme 2014/15 — it was requested
that the carriageway along Bacup Road in
Rawtenstall, between Kay Street and the new
health centre, required urgent attention it was
suggested that some resurfacing would be done
in connection with traffic signals and as part of
the bus station development

Oliver Starkey

We are aware that there are concerns about the road surface in this
area but survey works are being held in abeyance until United Utilities
have completed their works in Rawtenstall Town Centre. When those
works are completed we will assess the situation. It is however
important to note that this assessment will be undertaken in the light
of reduced financial resources.

That the comments of the Forum as set out below
are noted and taken into account in relation to
developments associated with the A682 Nelson
to Rawtenstall Bus Corridor.

It was suggested that the traffic signals and road
layout on Bank Street in Rawtenstall be altered to

Martin Porter

A left turn filter is only provided when there is a dedicated left turn lane
more than a few cars length. With short left turn lanes drivers unable to
get into the lane when the left turn filter is available are tempted to
drive over the footway. Filters can also cause problems with

pedestrian crossing between a stationary lane and a moving one. The
left turn lane on Bank Street is only a about a cars length, so there
would be considerable expense in lengthening this lane and designing




GT obed

Action

provide a filter lane for traffic to turn left which
would then ease the current congestion caused
by traffic heading towards Burnley. It was further
suggested that any alteration to the signals
should include a change to the phasing of the
lights to allow pedestrians extra time to cross.

The suitability of Bank Street as a bus route was
also discussed and it was noted that the operator
considered the road was able to accommodate
buses

Lead Officer

Lead Officer Comments (Including Action Taken)

appropriate pedestrian facilities. Given the he current budget available
this is likely to be unaffordable within t.

It is planned to review the signal timings, including pedestrian green
time at this junction, and as part of this work we will undertake
feasibility work for providing a left turn filter for Bank Street.

It was suggested that many motorists did not
observe the 30mph limit along the A6066 New
Line in Bacup and in response the Chair
suggested that enforcement of the speed limit
should be initially raised with the Police.

Oliver Starkey

A SpID sign on New Line was added to the schedule in October 2013
and the sign has been on site in December 2013 and April 2014.
There has also already been a meeting with the police on site in
December. The police have been requested to enforce this location.

It was similarly suggested that the 20mph limit in
Bacup Town Centre was also being ignored by
some motorists and County Councillor Oakes
undertook to raise the issue with the local Police.

Oliver Starkey

We are currently checking to ensure that all necessary signage is in
place and will also raise the issue at the regular traffic liaison meetings
with the police.




Page 16



Agenda Item 8

Extract from the Minutes of the Lancashire County Council Cabinet
held on the 8" May 2014

8. Developing the Three Tier Forums

Steve Browne, Interim Executive Director for Environment, presented a report setting
out details of the review of Three Tier Forums and details of the proposed pilot
models in Lancaster and Chorley.

A range of comments and feedback had been received as part of the review and, as
made clear within the parameters of the review, one size did not need to fit all.

The review had generated two substantive proposals, from Lancaster and Chorley.
The proposed Lancaster pilot model was on the basis of a joint committee with
powers to be delegated to it by both the County Council and City Council, whilst the
proposed Chorley pilot model was largely a consultative arrangement. Reference
was also made to proposals, still under discussion, around the Rossendale Three
Tier Forum which would link to changes to Rossendale's own local forums.

Reference was also made to the engagement of Parish and Town Councils, the
preference of a number of Three Tier Forums to meet in private (in contrast to the
County Council's view) and the impact of the review of the political governance
structure within the County Council which was ongoing. It was noted that the
potential for the political make-up of the Three Tier Forums to be based on the
political make-up of each District would be considered as part of this wider review of
governance.

Resolved: - That:

M The development of two test models, one in Lancaster and the other in
Chorley, as set out in the report, now presented, be agreed, subject to
proposals for the Chorley model outlined in section 6.2.a) in the report; and
that any decision to continue with either of these should form part of the
review of the future political governance structure for the County Council;

(i) Work to link the Three Tier Forum in Rossendale with the Neighbourhood
Forums continues to develop, as set out in the report, now presented, be
agreed;

(i)  The County Council's preferred position, as set out in the report, now
presented, is that the current Forums will meet in public; and that where this is
not the case there will be no extra officer attendance from the County Council,
beyond that currently in place, and no devolution of decision making power or
budget by the County Council should be considered in those forums not
meeting in public, and

(iv)  The status quo be maintained in relation to parish and town council
representation on the Forums outside of the Chorley test model, as set out in
the report, now presented.

Page 17



Page 18



Cabinet - 8 May 2014

Report of the Interim Executive Director for Environment

Electoral Division affected:
None

Developing the Three Tier Forums
(Appendix ‘A’ refers)

Contact for further information:
Steve Browne, (01772) 534112, Environment Directorate,
steve.browne@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Three Tier Forums were developed in 2011, following the disestablishment of the
Lancashire Local Committees. Three Tier Forums were designed to be informal
business meetings where all local county councillors; an equal number of district
councillors and a parish and town council representative are able to discuss and
influence issues at a strategic level that are of importance to their district across the
three tiers of local government.

A key priority of the County Council is to review and develop the current Three Tier
Forums with an early action being to encourage Forums to open up to the public.
This review, which commenced in July/August 2013 and involved wide consultation,
has clear links to the significant transformation that the County Council is
undertaking in response to budget reductions. It also relates very closely to the
review of the Authority's political governance structure; which is to investigate
options for any change in political management structure and make
recommendations to Full Council on a future govermance structure in December
2014,

Within the review of Three Tier Forums, proposals received from Lancaster and
Chorley have the potential to provide a valuable opportunity to test out models, as
the organisation undergoes this significant transformation and considers, as part of
this, what model of local governance, if any, at a local level might be appropriate.

Given the significance of the reviews of both organisational and political
management structures, it would be appropriate to include the development of Three
Tier forums in these processes.

Lancashire
County -« 0"9?.

)
Council T:y_v

Page 19




This report gives some further background to the Three Tier Forums; provides a
summary so far of the review, including the details of the Lancaster and Chorley
pilot models; sets out the organisational context within which it is now taking place
and makes a number of proposals.

Recommendations
Cabinet is recommended to;

(i) Agree the development of two test models, one in Lancaster and the other in
Chorley, subject to proposals for the Chorley model outlined in section 6.2.a)
in the report; and that any decision to continue with either of these should
form part of the review of the future political governance structure for the
County Council;

(i) Agree that work to link the Three Tier Forum in Rossendale with the
Neighbourhood Forums continues to develop;

(i)  Agree that the County Council's preferred position is that the current Forums
will meet in public; and that where this is not the case there will be no extra
officer attendance from the County Council, beyond that currently in place,
and no devolution of decision making power or budget by the County Council
should be considered in those forums not meeting in public, and

(iv) Agree to maintain the status quo in relation to parish and town council
representation on the Forums outside of the Chorley test model.

1. Background and Advice

Three Tier Forums were first piloted in three districts, Burnley, Wyre and South
Ribble in 2010. Following this it was agreed, in August 2011, to roll out the Three
Tier Forums to the remaining nine districts and this roll out was completed by
January 2012.

They were developed following the disestablishment of the previous model of
Lancashire Local Committees. These were formally constituted bodies with shaping,
influencing and decision making powers.

The Three Tier Forums were set up to provide an informal mechanism that enables
councillors from the three tiers of local government, on a district footprint, to come
together to discuss strategic issues of importance to their district. They were
designed to be different from the formally constituted Lancashire Locals and
currently operate as informal business meetings. They also provided a place around
the table, with equal status, for a representative from the Parish and Town Councils
in a district.

They currently do not have any specific shaping, influencing or decision making
powers. However it was made clear from the outset that significant weight would be
given to any views of the Three Tier Forum in relation to service priorities.
Councillors from all three tiers of local government have therefore been able to

Page 20




influence and shape the work; particularly of the Environment Directorate through
their involvement in the development of the District Commissioning Plans.

The intention has always been to broaden out the focus of the Forums to consider
the full range of services delivered on a district footprint by all three tiers of
government. In some cases this has started to develop, particularly in relation to the

health agenda, and it is intended that this work continue, where appropriate,
following the review.

2. Review of Three Tier Forums

One of the County Council's priorities is a review of Three Tier Forums. The
parameters of the review have been flexible in that the Leader of the County Council,
in consulting on the future of three tier forums has made it clear that one size does
not need to fit all. However it has been clearly stated that any arrangements need to
be two/three way and benefit all parties. In a letter from the Leader of the County
Council to District |.eaders she states ‘the importance of all parties having a shared
view and ownership of arrangements, and a commitment to wanting lo develop
arrangements that were felt fo be worthwhile that added value and that were
genuinely owned'. This has enabled the Forums, districts, and other partners, to
make a wide range of suggestions. It has also provided an opportunity for districts to
consider very different proposals which range from a formal joint commitiee to a
more consultative forum.

The review took place during the late summer and autumn of 2013. Forums, districts
and parish council representative bodies were asked to share their views on how
they would like to see their meetings develop. The review was undertaken in two
parts; firstly all members of the Three Tier Forums were asked for their views on how
they wish to see the Forum in their district develop and secondly District Leaders and
Parish Representative Bodies were asked for their views.

One of the key principles set out in the review was the desire to increase openness
and transparency by opening meetings up to the public. This has already happened
in eight of the twelve districts with Fylde, Ribble Valley, South Ribble and Wyre
currently preferring to maintain the status quo and not open meetings to the public.
This can be reviewed at any time.

3. Summary of the review

It is clear from the responses to this review that there is not a consensus of opinion
across all twelve Forums or districts. As such it does not seem likely, at this point,

that a joint position with a standard model would meet the requirements of each
Forum or district.

All twelve Three Tier Forums provided information for the review, outlining how they
would like to see the Forums develop. Five district leaders from Chorley, Fylde,
Hyndburn, Lancaster and South Ribble provided formal responses to the Leader of
the County Council's letter. Another five responses, from Burnley, Pendle, Preston,
Ribble Valley and Rossendale, came from the district leaders via discussions with

Page 21



officers, whilst West Lancashire and Wyre chose not to provide a formal or informal
response from their district leaders.

Out of these responses formal proposals have been received from Lancaster City
Council and Chorley Borough Council. Following meetings with both authorities,
work has been taking place to develop these proposals and the current draft Terms
of Reference (ToR) are included at Appendix 'A'.

These proposals represent two different approaches and as such they present an
opportunity to test different models of governance at a local level. This may prove
useful as the County Council undergoes significant transformation over the next
eighteen months and looks to develop approaches to working at a locality level.

The Lancaster model focuses on developing a joint commitiee, with the potential for
devolved budgets and decision making. This has the potential to provide a locality
based governance model that would provide a platform for exploring how we could
work differently with the City Council.

The Chorley model is designed to be a consultative forum and does not currently
invoive decision making or devolution of budgets. The focus is a forum where
neighbourhood issues of a strategic nature, across the 3 tiers, can be discussed. It
presents the borough with an opportunity to bring a different focus to working jointly
with the parishes in Chorley.

Rossendale Borough Council has more recently submitted a proposal and we have
been working with officers to develop this further. Early indications are that it will
represent little change in terms of resource implications or structure of meetings, the
proposal centres on linking neighbourhood forum issues into the agenda setting for
the meetings, where this is appropriate. It also presents the Borough Council with a
mechanism for channelling neighbourhood issues when they change how they
provide support to the four Neighbourhood Forums at the end of March 2014. As
such it is proposed that these changes are noted and that work to develop the links
to the Neighbourhood Forums continues.

Outlined in the table below is a summary of the main themes emerging from the
review, beyond the formal proposals.

Summary table of themes emerging from review

Theme

Theme supported by
Forum

Theme supported by
District

Interest in devolution/decisions
making

Burnley, Hyndburn,
Pendle

Burnley, Hyndburn

Interest shown in broadening
scope of areas/topics
considered by forum

Burnley, Chorley, Fylde,
Hyndburn, Lancaster,
Pendle, Rossendale,
Wyre

Burnley, Chorley,
Fylde, Lancaster,
Rossendale

Page 22




Preference for maintaining Preston Preston

status quo with public element

Preference for maintaining Fylde, South Ribble, South Ribble, Fylde
status quo without public Ribble Valley, Wyre

element

Suggested increase in Parish West Lancashire, Chorley (as part of
and Town Council Chorley, Pendle, Wyre formal proposal)
representation

Suggested increase in Burnley, Hyndburn, Chorley and
frequency of meetings (Burnley, | Pendle Lancaster (as part of
Chorley, Hyndburn and formal proposals)
Lancaster suggest increase to

4, Pendle suggest 6/8 weekly)

Specific issues highlighted by districts

a. Fylde Borough Council has requested more senior officer and senior political
representation at the Forums, to make them more effective. It is unlikely that the
level of senior officer support requested is practical when considered against our
current arrangements at other forums and bearing in mind resource implications;
currently officer support is provided through attendance of Locality Officers at
each meeting, plus governance support from a Democratic Services officer.
Cabinet Members may choose to attend Forum meetings for a specific reason,
an example being the budget item that went to the November meetings.
However it is not intended that Cabinet Members will attend Forum meetings on a
regular basis. Where Cabinet Members do attend regularly this is in their role as
a district county councillor on the Forum outside of their role as a cabinet member
on the County Council.

b. Hyndburn Borough Council have recently submitted a response from the group
leaders via the Leader of the Borough Council, which requests that the Forum be
given some form of delegaied budget responsibility; to enable it to make
decisions at a local level. As set out in the recommendations this issue should be
considered as part of the wider review of the future political governance
structures for the County Council.

c. South Ribble Borough Council have requested that rather than make any
changes to the Three Tier Forum they would prefer to look at opportunities to
work together with the County Council more efficiently and effectively. This work
is being developed outside the scope of the review by the County Council's
District Lead Senior Officer, supported by the Locality Officer.

Page 23




4. Organisational Context

As this review commenced last year consideration of these proposals now needs to
be aligned to the major process of organisational transformation that the County
Council is undergoing. This includes the options and necessary actions being
explored for the political governance system for the authority.

The transformation process will create a new organisation aligned to its key priorities
and to substantially reduced future resources. An entirely new officer structure will be
created by 2016.

The ongoing review and developments for Three Tier Forums, as now reported, will
reflect and be considered as part of the broader process of organisational
transformation and it is also suggested, will naturally form part of the review of
political governance structures which will include governance arrangements for any
area body structure. This review will be reporting back to the County Council's Full
Council in December 2014. This will mean that any current or future developments,
including work to develop the two test models in Lancaster and Chorley may be
affected by the outcome of this review.

5. Resource Implications

Aligned to this is the recognition that any developments need to be considered
against the officer resource available to support them. A number of proposals
acknowledge this and make suggestions as to how Forums could be supported
jointly by county and district officers. This suggestion was included in the proposals
from Lancaster and Chorley and is part of the development of the proposals. It is felt
that with this joint approach it would be possible to support the current proposals; but
the position would need to be reviewed should other Forums wish to develop further
proposals.

Future resourcing will be a significant factor of the broader transformationai change
programme and resource capacity will continue to be a key consideration of the
development of Three Tier Forums in each district.

6. Proposals

Following the review and the issues highlighted; and bearing in mind the wider
organisational context within which this review is now taking place it is proposed that:

1. the test models in Lancaster and Chorley continue to be developed with the
respective city and borough councils providing an opportunity to test out
different models at a local level; being conscious that the outcome of the
review of political governance structures may affect whether these fit within
the overall governance structure that may be agreed.

a) The ToR developed for the Chorley test model be agreed on the
understanding that beyond the Locality Officer there will not be regular
officer attendance from the County Council, other than when issues are of
such strategic importance that officer attendance is required to move the

Page 24



issue forward; and that the issue of how the Forum deals with the public
guestion time will be decided by the chair once elected; that Cabinet
agrees the proposal to rename the Forum to Chorley 3 Tier Liaison
Meeting.

b} That the draft ToR for Lancaster continues to be developed.

c) That work continues to develop links to Neighbourhood Forums in
Rossendale as proposed as this represents little change to the structure of
the Forum or the resources required.

2. the County Council's preference is for the current Forums to meet in public;
and where this is not the case there will be no extra officer attendance from
the County Council, beyond that currently in place, and no devolution of
decision making power or budget by the County Council should be considered
in those forums not meeting in public.

3. that the status quo is maintained in respect of Parish and Town Council
representation on the Forums outside of the Chorley pilot model which will
provide us with experience of wider parish engagement.

Consultations

As set out in the report.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

By following the proposals contained in the report the risk of developing this work
outside of the significant organisational change currently being undertaken is limited.
Not following the proposals may prevent opportunities to test locally focused models
of councillor engagement.

Financial

At this stage the proposals set out in this report have no direct financial implications,
although there may be implications for the prioritisation of the use of officer
resources in order to deliver the pilot work proposed with Chorley and Lancaster.

Looking forward any proposals for the devolution of financial responsibility either to
Three Tier Forums or other locality structures and the necessary systems, processes
and levels of officer support will need to be reflected both in the review of the County
Council's political governance structures and the proposals for the reshaping of the
organisation which are currently under development. Given the likely level of
resources available to deliver the entirety of the County Council's services there will
be a premium on any arrangements reflecting simplicity and delivering added value
in some way, potentially through the pooling of resources from different
organisations.

Page 25



List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel
N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part li, if appropriate

N/A

Page 26



Appendix 'A’

Lancaster Three Tier Forum — Constitution and Terms of Reference

1) Role and Purpose

The Lancaster District Three Tier Forum is a Joint Committee of the County Council,
Lancaster City Council, and the Parish and Town Councils in the Lancaster district, in
accordance with Section 101(5) Local Government Act 1972.

The purpose of the Three Tier Forum is to provide a democratically accountable and
transparent oversight of the joint working between the tiers of local government in the
district.

2) Functions

The key functions of the Lancaster Three Tier Forum are:-

e To exercise those functions delegated to it by the County Council and City Council.

e To explore opportunities for joint working between the County Council and the City
Council

e To provide democratic oversight of joint working arrangements and initiatives
between the County Council and the City Council
3) Membership
The membership of the Three Tier Forum shall be:
a) All County Councillors representing divisions in the Lancaster district area.
b) An equal number of Lancaster City Councillors, appointed by the City Council
c) One Parish and Town Councillor representative, nominated from the Parish and Town
Councils in the area, to be appointed through LALC.
4) Substitutes
a) No substitutes or replacements are permitted for County Councillors.

b) Lancaster City Councillors may be substituted or replaced in line with the City Council's
rules and procedures.

c) The Parish and Town Council representative may be substituted or replaced with a
nominated replacement, to be provided by LALC.

d) Any substitutions or replacements must be notified to the clerk prior to the start of the
meeting.

Page 27



5)

6)

7)

d)

Appointment of Chair and Deputy Chair
The Chair shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Three Tier Forum.
The Deputy Chair shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Three Tier Forum.

The Chair and Deputy Chair shall, unless he or she resigns the office or ceases to
be a member of the Three Tier Forum, continue in office until a successor is
appointed at the next annual meeting.

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Three Tier Forum. In the absence of
the Chair, the Deputy Chair shall preside at the meeting. In the absence of both,
the members present shall, as the first item of business, appoint one of their
number to be Chair of the meeting.

Clerking and Officer Support

A nominated representative of the Chief Executive of the County Council or
Lancaster City Council shall act as Clerk to the Lancaster Three Tier Forum and
shall be responsible for preparing and circulating agendas for meetings, advising on

constitutional matters and for producing the minutes.

Officers from the County Council and the City Council will attend the Three Tier
Forum as appropriate to support and advise the Committee.

The Forum cannot require any officer of the County Council or City Council to
attend

Meetings

The Lancaster Three Tier Forum will meet four times a year.

Meetings shall be held in public other than in the circumstances set out in Standing
Order 19

Meetings will be held at an appropriate venue within the Lancaster City Council
area, and will commence at 6.15, or such time as agreed by the Chair.

The meeting held in June each year, or if there is no scheduled meeting that month
the first meeting after June, shall be the Annual Meeting of the Lancaster Three Tier
Forum.

The Chair or in his/her absence the Deputy Chair may call a special meeting of the

Lancaster Three Tier Forum to consider a matter that falls within its remit but cannot
await the next scheduled meeting.

Page 28



8)

9)

d)

Delegated Powers

The delegated powers mean those powers to be discharged by the Lancaster Three
Tier Forum as set out in Appendix A of this Constitution.

The Lancaster Three Tier Forum shall discharge the delegated powers, within the
budgetary and policy framework set by the County Council in the case of County
functions or by the City Council in the case of its functions.

When discharging the delegated powers the Lancaster Three Tier Forum shall take
decisions only after taking into account advice given in writing or orally from
relevant Officers of the County Council or of the City Council as appropriate,
including legal, financial and policy advice.

Executive Decisions

An executive decision means a decision by the Lancaster Three Tier Forum that
has been delegated to it by the Executive (or Cabinet) of the County Council or of
the City Council.

Any meeting of the Lancaster Three Tier Forum in which an executive decision is to
be taken shall be held in public

Standing Order 9) b) does not apply if there would be a disclosure of exempt or
confidential information

If the Lancaster Three Tier Forum wishes to hold a meeting at which an executive
decision shall be taken in private, it must, at least 28 clear days before a private
meeting, make available at County Hall, Preston, and the Town Halls in Lancaster
and Morecambe a notice of its intention to hold the meeting in private, and publish
that notice on the Councils' websites.

e) A notice under Standing Order 9) d) must include a statement of the reasons for the

9)

meeting to be held in private.

At least five clear working days before a private meeting, the Clerk must make
available at County Hall, Preston, and the Town Halls in Lancaster and Morecambe
a further notice of its intention to hold the meeting in private, and publish that notice
on the Councils' websites.

Such notice must include:

i) a statement of the reasons for the meeting to be held in private;

ii) details of any representations received by the County Council or City Council
about why the meeting should be open to the public; and

iii) a statement of response to any such representations.

Page 29



10)

11)

h) Where the date by which a meeting must be held makes compliance with Standing
Orders impracticable, the meeting may only be held in private where the Lancaster
Three Tier Forum has obtained agreement from:

b)

b)

i)

i)

ii)

the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the authority
which has delegated the decision for consideration; or

if there is no such person, or if the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is unable to act, the Chairman or Mayor of the authority which has
delegated the decision for consideration; or

where there is no Chairman or of either the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or Chairman or Mayor of the relevant authority, the Vice-Chairman or
the Deputy Mayor of the authority which has delegated the decision for
consideration,

that the meeting is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.

As soon as reasonably practicable after the Lancaster Three Tier Forum has
obtained agreement under Standing Order 9) h) to hold a private meeting, it must
make available at County Hall, Preston a notice setting out the reasons why the
meeting is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred; and publish that notice on the
Council's website.

Key Decisions

A key decision is a decision which meets the definition of a key decision as defined
in the constitution of the County Council (in the case of decisions delegated by the
County Council) or the City Council (in the case of decisions delegated by the City
Council)

Key decisions may only be taken in accordance with the rules set out in relation to
the taking of key decisions in the constitution of the County Council (in the case of
decisions delegated by the County Council) or the City Council (in the case of
decisions delegated by the City Council)

Overview and Scrutiny

Executive decisions made by the Lancaster Three Tier Forum are subject to
scrutiny by the County Council’s or the City Council’s relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (depending on which authority delegated the particular
function), including an Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s right under the Local
Government Act 2000 to request that an Executive Decision made but not
implemented be reconsidered by the decision-taker (often referred to as ‘call-in’).

The processes and procedures for the exercise by the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committee of their ‘call-in’ function shall be in accordance with the
Constitutions of the County Council or the City Council depending on which
Authority delegated the executive decision in question.

Page 30



c) An Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall not exercise the ‘call-in’ function in
respect of an executive decision by the Lancaster Three Tier Forum where that
decision has been designated by the Lancaster Three Tier Forum as being urgent
in that any delay in its implementation could adversely affect the efficient execution
of their responsibilities on behalf of the County Council or the City Council, and
provided that the designation and the reasons for it are recorded in the Minutes.

d) Executive decisions made by the Lancaster Three Tier Forum shall be implemented
by the County Council or the City Council as appropriate, in accordance with their
respective Constitutions.

12) Access to Information

Items of business may not be considered at a meeting of the Lancaster Three Tier Forum
unless a copy of the item has been open to inspection by members of the public for at
least five working days before the meeting (or where the meeting is convened at shorter
notice, from the time the meeting is convened). However an item that has not been open
to inspection may be considered where, by reason of special circumstances which shall be
specified in the Minutes, the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

13) Agendas and Minutes

a) Agendas for meetings of the Lancaster Three Tier Forum shall be dispatched by the
Clerk at least five clear working days in advance of a meeting, and will be published
on the both councils' websites. The Agenda will be available for public inspection,
on request, from County Hall, Preston or from Lancaster and Morecambe Town
Halls.

b) The minutes of a meeting shall be published on both councils' websites as soon as
is reasonably practicable, and wherever possible within three clear working days
after a meeting at which an executive decision has been made.

14) Quorum

The quorum for any meeting shall be one quarter of the total membership including at least
2 representatives from each of the County Council and the City Council. If there is not a
quorum of Members, the meeting shall be adjourned for 15 minutes. If after that time there
is still no quorum the meeting shall be adjourned until a date and time to be fixed by the
Chair

15) Members Code of Conduct

Members are bound by the Code of Conduct of the authority which appointed them to the
Three Tier Forum.

Page 31



16) Voting

All members are entitled to vote and voting shall be by show of hands, and in the case of
an equality of votes the Chair of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

17) Members of the public

The "Protocol for Public Speaking" at Appendix B applies.

18) Other speakers

a) The Lancaster Three Tier Forum may invite any person or organisation with an
interest in services in the district area to attend a meeting of the committee where
appropriate. Any such person shall be entitled to speak at the meeting, but shall not
vote

b) Lancaster City Councillors who are not members of the Three Tier Forum are
entitled to attend meetings of the Three Tier Forum and speak, but not vote.

c) Parish and Town Councillors who are not members of the Forum are entitled to
attend meetings of the Three Tier Forum and speak, but not vote.

19) Exclusion of the Press and Public

The Lancaster Three Tier Forum may, by resolution, exclude the press and public from a
meeting during an item of business wherever it is likely, in view of the nature of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public
were present during that item there would be disclosure of Exempt or Confidential
information as defined by the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000.

20) Urgent Business Procedure
a) The County Secretary and Solicitor may in consultation with the Chief Executive of
the City Council, and with the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Lancaster Three Tier
Forum, deal with matters of urgency which cannot await the next meeting and which
do not in the view of the Chair and Deputy Chair warrant a special meeting being

convened.

b) Any decision taken under the Urgent Business Procedure shall be reported to the
next meeting of the Forum.

21) Conduct at Meetings

The conduct of meetings and the interpretation of these Standing Orders are at all times a
matter for the Chair of the meeting whose ruling is final.

Page 32



Appendix A — Delegated Matters

(To be agreed)

QO
N

Page 33



Appendix B — Protocol on Public Speaking

For the purpose of this protocol, "members of the public" includes members of the press. It
does not include officers of county or district authorities who are in attendance to support
and advise the meeting.

The Lancaster Three Tier Forum will allow up to 20 minutes for public contributions at the
beginning of each meeting. Members of the Public may also speak on any item on the
agenda.

Public speaking must be on topics included on the agenda for the meeting.

Whilst a member of the public is speaking, no interruption shall be allowed from either a
member of the Forum or another member of the public.

At all times, permission of the public to speak is subject to the discretion of the Chair of the
meeting. This includes the right of the Chair to terminate a speech if it is felt appropriate to
do so. The Chair's judgement will be informed by the following provision:

Members of the public must not

Speak at a point in the meeting other than those specified

Interrupt another speaker

Speak for longer than the allotted time

Reveal personal information about another individual

Make a personal complaint about a service provided by County, District or
Town / Parish Councils in the area

e Make individual or personal complaints against any member or officer of the
authority, or against any other individual

Reveal information which they know or believe to be confidential

Use offensive, abusive or threatening language

Ignore the ruling of the Chair of the meeting

Members of the public who breach these guidelines may, following a warning, be asked to
leave the meeting. If a person refuses to leave the room, the chair shall adjourn the
meeting for a short period of time and if necessary to a later date

Speeches by members of the public are not expected to be the subject of a debate, nor
are any questions raised required to be answered at the meeting. The Chair may, at his or
her discretion, invite a response or comment from an appropriate officer or Forum
member. Otherwise, comments will be noted and dealt with outside of the meeting, or, if
appropriate, be the subject of an agenda item at a future meeting of the Forum.

Page 34



Chorley Three Tier Forum -Terms of Reference

Role and Purpose

The Chorley Three Tier Forum is a joint meeting of the County Council, Chorley Borough
Council, and the Parish and Town Councils in the Chorley district area.

The Forum will be a consultative meeting held in public at which the three tiers of local
government in the Chorley area consider issues of shared priority and concern, and
through which all three tiers can seek the views of others on strategic issues which impact
on the local community.

Functions
The key functions of the Chorley Three Tier Forum are:-

e To allow elected representatives to have an overview of Borough and County
strategic priorities

e To enable Parish and Town Councils to engage with the County and Borough
Council on issues of strategic importance which impact on the local community
within the Chorley borough area.

e To provide a forum for significant issue facing all three tiers of government to be
raised and debated in advance of decisions being made

Membership
The membership of the Chorley Three Tier Forum shall be

All seven Chorley County Councillors.

One Borough Councillor from each of the eight Neighbourhood Areas.

One additional Borough Councillor to represent Chorley town area

One Parish/Town Councillor from each of the 22 Parish/Town Councils in Chorley
Borough

Any County Council or Borough Council Executive Member may attend and speak at any
meeting of the Forum, at the invitation of the Chair.

The officer(s) supporting the meeting must be notified of any changes in membership, prior
to a meeting. Political balance rules do not apply to the Three Tier Forum

Meetings

The Chorley Three Tier Forum shall meet four times a year at Chorley Town Hall, unless
otherwise agreed by the Chair of the Forum.

Agendas

o The Forum will discuss issues that are of joint interest across the three levels of local
government in the area. Agenda items will focus on strategic matters that impact on the
local community.

Page 35



e Any member of the Forum can request that an item is considered at a future meeting of
the Forum. The Chair and Deputy Chair are jointly responsible for agreeing the agenda
and deciding whether an issue raised by a member will appear on an agenda. Where
an issue raised does not fall within the remit of the Forum these will be dealt with via
the appropriate mechanism and the member advised accordingly.

e Urgent business is allowed in exceptional circumstances and with the consent of the
Chair and Deputy Chair. Any member wishing to raise a matter of urgent business
should advise the Chair via the officer support for the Forum as soon as possible.

Officer Support

Secretarial support to the Chorley Three Tier Forum will be provided by an officer
nominated by the Chief Executive of Chorley Borough Council.

Officers of the County Council and the Borough Council may attend the Forum if
appropriate.

Public Speaking
The Protocol for Public Speaking at Appendix A applies.
Debate

The Chair of the meeting is responsible for managing the debate at the Forum. The Chair's
ruling on any aspect of a member of the committee's right to speak will be final. Members
who persistently ignore the ruling of the Chair may be asked to leave the meeting.

Voting

As a Consultative Forum it is expected that decisions will be taken mainly by consensus,
however where a vote is required, decisions are by simple 'show of hands' majority with
the chair having a casting vote.

Access to Information

The Forum is not a formal committee of the County, District or Parish Councils, therefore
Access to Information provisions do not apply. However, as it is a public meeting, agendas
and minutes will be available on the website of the County Council and the Borough
Council and by request can be obtained in person at County Hall, Preston and Chorley
Town Hall.

Chair and Deputy Chair

The Chair and Deputy Chair will be elected at the first meeting in the Council year from
amongst the membership of the Forum. Should a vacancy arise during the year, a new
Chair or Deputy will be elected. A Chair or Deputy may be removed from their position by
a vote of the Forum.

The Chair shall alternate each year between the County Council and the Borough Council.

The Deputy Chair will always be from the County or Borough Council not represented by
the Chair.

Page 36



The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Forum. In the absence of the Chair, the
Deputy Chair shall preside. In the absence of both the Chair and Deputy, the members
present, as the first item of business, appoint one of their number to be Chair of the
meeting.

Protocol for Public Speaking at Three Tier Forums

In order to allow members of the Forum and members of the public to raise issues of local
concern, a period of 20 minutes has been set aside at the beginning of the meeting.

For the purpose of this protocol, "members of the public" includes members of the press
and parish and district councillors who are not members of the Forum. It does not include
officers of county or district authorities who are in attendance to support and advise the
meeting.

A member of the public may speak for no more than 3 minutes. Members of the public are
not required to give notice of the issue they intend to raise, although it is expected in the
case of service issues that the appropriate mechanisms for resolving the issue have been
explored. Where a question is raised which cannot be answered at the Forum, a record
will be kept by officers supporting the Forum and it will be responded to via the appropriate
mechanism.

Whilst a member of the public is speaking, no interruption shall be allowed from either a
member of the Forum or another member of the public.

However, the Chair of the meeting may intervene in the speech of a member of the public.
This includes the right of the Chair to terminate a speech if it is felt appropriate to do so.
The Chair's judgement will be informed by the following provision:

Members of the public must not

Speak at a point in the meeting other than those specified

Interrupt another speaker

Speak for longer than the allotted time

Reveal personal information about another individual

Make a personal complaint about a service provided by County, District or
Town / Parish Councils in the area

Make individual or personal complaints against any member of the authority
Reveal information which they know or believe to be confidential

Use offensive, abusive or threatening language

Ignore the ruling of the Chair of the meeting

Members of the public who breach these guidelines may, following a warning, be asked to
leave.

Page 37



Page 38



Agenda Iltem 9

Rossendale 3 Tier Forum
Making Space For Water Group Meetings.

Background

The Making Space for Water groups form part of the way in which Lancashire
County Council communicates and engages with other Flood Risk Management
Authorities and organisations. This is a vital part of our strategic leadership role as
Lead Local Flood Authority to ensure that flood risk is successfully managed
throughout Lancashire.

There are 12 Making Space for Water Groups throughout the County which meet at
an operational level to identify local hotspots and discuss potential solutions. Issues
from these meetings are taken forward to the Partnership Management Group where
matters that are relevant to the whole of the County are discussed. This then feeds
into the Lancashire Strategic Partnership Group and then into the North West
Regional Flood and Coastal Committee. This hierarchy is in place to ensure that the
flood risk management function is undertaken at all levels and that decisions are
taken at the relevant levels to deliver effective management of flood risk throughout
the region.

General Overview — purpose of the Making Space For Water Group

The purpose of the MSfW group is to develop integrated partnership working in
water management in order to achieve: accurate assessments of the risk, nature and
scale of flooding; a reduction in the risk of all types of flooding incidents; and
mitigation of the effects of flooding incidents within Lancashire.

These meetings additionally enable partners to identify and discuss potential larger
schemes which can be put forward for alternative funding opportunities, such as
Flood Defence Grant in Aid or Local Levy funding.

The Rossendale Making Space for Water Group

The Rossendale MSfW group meetings take place quarterly to bring together the all
the Risk Management Authorities responsible for water and flood risk management
in the District of Rossendale. This includes Lancashire County Council, the
Environment Agency, Rossendale Borough Council and United Utilities.

The meeting is a technical meeting where issues are discussed openly in a
confidential environment so that an efficient, collaborative approach to resolving
issues can be taken forward. This is working extremely well in Rossendale and we
have a number of examples, listed below, to demonstrate this. Sometimes it is not
the responsibility of the Risk Management Authority to take forward actions to

Page 39



resolve issues that are outside of our jurisdiction - perhaps on private land for
example; however we will assist land owners and communities in these situations
where we can. This can be demonstrated by the number of flood action groups,
business and community groups that exist throughout Rossendale that all the RMA's
are actively involved with.

Completed investigations are discussed and options for funding are considered by
the group where further work is necessary to resolve the flood risk issues. This
includes funding from Rossendale, Lancashire County Council, United Utilities, Flood
Defence Grant in Aid (FDGIA), Local Levy etc.

Record of incidents for the period June 2013 — June 2014

Since June 2013 Lancashire County Council Flood Risk Management (FRM) Team
has been notified of 44 flooding incidents in Rossendale. Of these 44 incidents, 37
have been assessed to determine whether any further action is required and 7 are

currently under assessment by the delegated officer.

Of the 37 incidents that have been assessed:

e 7 incidents have met the criteria for further investigation (requiring either a formal
investigation under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, or a minor
investigation to record the extent of the investigations done and the findings of
those investigations). The purpose of an investigation is to determine the likely
cause and source of the flooding incident and to identify the relevant Flood Risk
Management Authority responsible for resolving the issue. 6 of the 7
investigations are now complete, with 1 of the 7 incidents currently under
investigation.

e 30 incidents have not met the criteria for further investigation by the FRM team,
as they have not involved internal flooding to either property or critical
infrastructure. Based on the findings from the initial assessment, these incidents
have been referred to the relevant Flood Risk Management Authority (or
landowner if applicable) for further investigation or remedial action, as required.

All 44 incidents recorded have been discussed at the quarterly Making Space for
Water meetings for Rossendale. They have been the subject of confidential
discussions and investigations that have involved Rossendale District Council,
Lancashire County Council, the Environment Agency and United Utilities.

Completed investigations and enforcements
There have been a significant number of investigations that have been completed
which have involved several of the partners of this group working collaboratively to

identify potential issues and provide suitable resolutions to the flooding issues that
have been raised. This is very necessary to ensuring that relevant recourses are

Page 40



efficiently utilised for the benefit of the group and for the benefit of the public in
Rossendale.

This would include a situation where the potential source of flooding is uncertain and
the relevant Risk Management Authorities with infrastructure in the vicinity of the
incident would carry out joint investigation works. For example; there are United
Utility sewers and Lancashire County Council Highway drainage systems within the
Highway and it is often not immediately clear which system is defective. The two
Authorities will work together to identify the problems and provide any remedial
action that may be necessary. Further investigations may be necessary if the
solution is not straight forward and this could be taken forward by the relevant
Authority.

In Rossendale, there have been a number of consenting and enforcement issues
resolved which have been identified through the Making Space for Water meetings.
In Rossendale there have been 21 No. Enforcements taken forward that will help
resolve flood risk issues.

Major Schemes

e Irwell Vale - FDGIA funded scheme to reduce surface water flooding is being
progressed.

e Crawshawbooth — The Environment Agency are currently undertaking various
improvements to reduce flooding from the main river in Crawshawbooth.

e Stongstry — Environment Agency capital programme to reduce risk of flooding
from the main river.

e Rising Bridge Road — highway drainage system has been renewed to resolve
surface water flooding.

Flood Action community and action Groups

There are a number of flood action and community groups that have been set up
within Rossendale whcih have been supported by the Members of the Making Space
for Water Group. These groups include:

Crawshawbooth
Stronstry

Shawforth

Irwell Vale

Bacup residents group
Bacup Traders group

Page 41



Page 42



¢ obed

Rossendale Borough Council Overview and Scrutiny Public Rights of Way Task and Finish
Group - Lancashire County Council response

Topic Area - Publicity/Communication

Lancashire County Council
a) Mountain bike trails need to be properly
signposted and publicised.

Signage within Lee and Cragg Quarries needs refreshing. This will be
carried out during August 2014 with existing waymarkers and signage
being replaced like for like to replace items which have been damaged
due to weathering etc.

The mountain bike trails are already well known amongst mountain
bikers. Ideas around future promotion and publicity are linked to the
proposed cycle shop and visitor centre. Once this is in place the site will
have the car parking and toilet facilities which would justify additional
marketing and promotion.

Lancashire County Council/Rossendale
Borough Council

a) That more emphasis is placed on encouraging
walkers, runners, cyclists and horse riders into
Rossendale to bring in additional revenue ie spend
on food and drink, taking into consideration the
plans for the new Rawtenstall Town Centre
development.

Encouraging tourism spend in Rossendale is probably more
appropriately led by the Borough Council, but the County Council will
support such promotion by maintaining PROW and prioritising the most
popular routes .

This relates to various forms of information including signposts,
waymark arrows, website maps and other information, social networking
and traditional leaflets. The Public Rights of Way team will consider how
best to provide appropriate information for the public. We anticipate this
will be implemented over the next 1-2 years

0T Wsal| epuaby



vt abed

b) Lancashire County Council and Rossendale
Borough Council should consider working with
partners to produce and publicise up to date
information both in written and digital form on Public
Rights of Way. This would particularly relate to long
distance routes such as the Pennine Bridleway,
Rossendale Way, Irwell Sculpture Trail and National
Cycle routes.

We will continue to work with Natural England to secure funding for the
ongoing maintenance of the Pennine Bridleway National Trail — including
contributing information to the website.

This relates to various forms of information including signposts,
waymark arrows, website maps and other information, social networking
and traditional leaflets. The Public Rights of Way team will consider how
best to provide appropriate information for the public. We anticipate this
will be implemented over the next 1-2 years.

c) That consideration be given on the use of social
media (facebook), which would allow for an
interaction page. People could then highlight
problems they are encountering on the facebook
page and also give positive feedback on individual
routes.

This relates to various forms of information including signposts,
waymark arrows, website maps and other information, social networking
and traditional leaflets. The Public Rights of Way team will consider how
best to provide appropriate information for the public. We anticipate this
will be implemented over the next 1-2 years

Topic Area — Involvement by the Voluntary Sector

Lancashire County Council

a) Lancashire County Council should consider
working alongside relevant interest groups to
discuss the possibility of setting up a ‘Walkers are
Welcome’ scheme, similar to that set up in Hebden
Bridge, which would encourage more people into
Lancashire and the Borough of Rossendale.

The 'Walkers are Welcome' scheme recommended by the group to be
set up by Lancashire County Council is probably more appropriately led
at a district level with contributions from the Public Rights of Way team
in both provision of information and maintenance and improvement
works but at the current time there are significant constraints in
identifying additional, or even maintaining previous levels of, resources
necessary for raising the standard to that necessary to achieve
accreditation




G obed

b) That options be explored to encourage the
voluntary sector in maintaining and enhancing
Public Rights of Way with particular emphasis given
to providing clarity on issues relating to public
liability insurance and what work can be
undertaken.

The report recommends increased use of the voluntary sector. This is
something in which Lancashire County Council is bucking the national
trend of cutting back on volunteer schemes. We are promoting a Local
Delivery Scheme and we plan to expand this as it develops, particular to
include community and user groups not only the parishes and towns so
far participating. Such volunteers can play a useful role in maintenance
and also in historical research and information, meaning that
volunteering in this field is no longer restricted to those people who are
fit and active. This is more useful than volunteers surveying the network
to record the defects because there are insufficient resources to rectify
all the issues uncovered which demotivates the volunteers and makes it
harder to prioritise those issues which have the greatest actual effect on
users of the paths

c) That more information in made available on the
County’s website promoting the Local Delivery
Scheme to the voluntary sector/community groups.

The County Council will make more information available about the
Local Delivery Scheme as part of a wider roll out of the initiative.

Lancashire County Council/Rossendale
Borough Council

a) That the County Council should work in
partnership with the Council to look at establishing a
‘Statement of Interest’ from people in the
community, involving schools, scout groups and
colleges to undertake the surveying of local paths.

Volunteers can play a useful role in maintenance and also in historical
research and information, meaning that volunteering in this field is no
longer restricted to those people who are fit and active. This is more
useful than volunteers surveying the network to record the defects
because there are insufficient resources to rectify all the issues
uncovered which demotivates the volunteers and makes it harder to
prioritise those issues which have the greatest actual effect on users of
the paths.




ot abed

Topic Area — Maintenance/Management
Responsibilities

a) As there are lots of footpaths around Rossendale
which are not classed as Public Rights of Way,
clarification was required as to who should maintain
these.

Clarification of the status (in relation both to public rights and to
maintenance responsibility) of the many paths not recorded on the
Definitive Map and Statement is raised in the report. This is actually
quite a big task. It is partially covered by the initiative that we are
starting with volunteers to identify paths that might otherwise fall
victim to the 2026 cut-off date for the Definitive Map and Statement.
Where there is any dispute, which in the majority of cases there is,
the statutory procedure is long and demanding and although it
clarifies public rights does not per se clarify maintenance liability
although this can be inferred in many cases. A minority of public
paths are not maintainable by anyone.

b) That the County Council have greater liaison with
the Borough Council to identify their responsibilities
for management and improvements of Public Rights
of Way, including budget prioritisation and the role

and responsibilities of each responsible department.

As the report identifies, there are many different budgets and processes
that influence access to the countryside. The County Council's PROW
team will work with the Council to aid understanding.

Lancashire County Council/Rossendale
Borough Council

a) That whilst the Planning Department consult with
LCC/The Ramblers/ Peak and Northern Footpaths
Society as statutory consultees on future
developments affecting PROW as well as issuing
statutory notices, they should also consider
extending this on a voluntary basis to other
appropriate walking, running, cycling and horse
riding groups where PROW are affected by future
developments

The recommendations in relation to extending consultation regarding
planning applications affecting public rights of way and advice given
the developers can be adopted at very little cost.




/v obed

b) Developers should be made aware that
development affecting the setting of a PROW will
require public advertisement and stop
orders/diversion orders as appropriate.

The recommendations in relation to extending consultation regarding
planning applications affecting public rights of way and advice given
the developers can be adopted at very little cost.

Topic Area — Specialist Needs

Lancashire County Council

a) That there needs to be publicity on how to access
a ‘tramper’ and highlight the selected routes that are
safe to take the vehicle and also consideration
should be given for the County Council to work with
relevant organisations to seek funding for a
‘disabled route for those less mobile from such
places as Paths for Communities.

Trampers are permanently available at our two Country Parks and many
Countryside events are tramper friendly. We will seek to widen the
availability through the short and long term loan of trampers to local
groups/businesses for use in appropriate locations.




Page 48



61 abed

Lancashire

Council Q.;\*._.'n - ) o
("0 ) Assistant Director of Commissioning: Joanne Reed

()
County - '(;5“'..

ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE PROGRESS APRIL - JUNE 2014

Summary: Environment Directorate progress against delivery of the Commissioning Plan for Rossendale in the first quarter of 2014/15

><:joanne.reed@Ilancashire.gov.uk

@:01772 530897

Ql

ROSSENDALE

CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE

All capital schemes, due for delivery in quarter 1, have
either been completed or are progressing as planned, and
are detailed below.

PROGRESS AS EXPECTED

2014/15 Capital schemes programmed for delivery in quarter

1

Local Priorities Response Fund

o Bridleway from Turn Pike to Burnley Road East
(Rossendale East) — surfacing works have been completed
in the area.

Bridges

o Ewood Bridge on Blackburn Road (Rossendale West) — an
inspection is planned to take place in quarter 2 2014/15 to
investigate whether damp patches caused by a broken
sewer pipe have dried out. If this is the case the last patch
of pointing to the bridge arch can be scheduled.

o Hodge Clough on Helmshore Road (Rossendale South) - a
scheme has been developed and the construction phase is
being brought forward to prevent further slippage of the
highway. LCC is currently in negotiations with the land
owner and aim to programme works during quarter 2
2014/15 once consent has been received.

Capital schemes carried over from previous quarters for
delivery in quarter 1 2014/15

Flood Risk Management and Drainage

o 270 Burnley Road East (Rossendale North) - the
installation of a drainage inspection chamber and
associated connections has been completed.

o Boltons Mill, Cowpe Road (Rossendale East) - the long
standing flood mitigation project is progressing as
expected and a scheme solution has been identified. The
project will now start in January 2015 in agreement with
the home owner concerned.

Road Safety

o Newchurch Road in Stacksteads (Rossendale East) —
extensive consultation is underway for works involving
speed reduction, bend awareness, footway widening, and
signs and markings. Designs are now being amended as a
result of comments received from the consultation and
the progress of the scheme will be reviewed during
quarter 2 2014/15.

Environment and Community Projects

Rawtenstall to Rochdale Valley of Stone Greenway - Progress
continues to be made on developing the plans and designs for the
Rawtenstall to Rochdale Greenway. We have identified the Britannia
Greenway and Future's Park sections as the priorities and once the
capital funding is made available we shall proceed with programming
of the works for construction.

Adrenalin Gateway - Over the next quarter we will be proceeding
with the request for the design and build of some new pump tracks
on Rossendale Borough Council land at Whitaker Park and Edge Side
Park.

Scout Moor Wind Farm Expansion - Over the coming quarter we will
be responding to the plans for the expansion of the Scout Moor Wind
Farm. In particular we will be looking at the potential impact of the
development on access and tourism in the area, and ways in which
should the development go ahead any potential benefits can be
maximized.

Bacup Town Centre

The centre of Bacup is to be remodelled as part of a successful
Heritage Lottery Fund bid. The scheme is part of a £2 million
Townscape Heritage Initiative, which is a five-year programme that
will focus on improvements to property, training opportunities and
community activities.

The scheme will be carried out in partnership with the Heritage
Lottery Fund, Rossendale Borough Council and Lancashire County
Council. The Board commissioned Planet-ie and urban design experts
Hamilton Baillie Associates, to design and advise on a scheme for the
renewal of the town's streets. The scheme will focus on the historic
crossroads in the centre of Bacup, which will include St James Street,
St James Square, Burnley Road, Yorkshire Street, Market Street and
the entrance to Lane Head Lane. There will be a significant change to
the junction in this area with the existing gyratory system being
removed to help traffic flow more freely. Existing street surfaces will
be replaced with materials keeping with the character of the
surrounding buildings, with different colours and textures used to
emphasis routes for traffic and pedestrians. The proposed designs
also aim to accommodate more on-street activity such as stalls, fairs
and street cafes.

The vision for the project is to use measures to create areas that are
less dominated by traffic and friendlier for pedestrians. The result will
be a 'shared space' with fewer barriers and better pedestrian links
between key parts of the town centre. Rossendale Borough Council
are currently inviting comments to be submitted over the summer
period on the proposed plans via the www.bacupthi.org.uk website.

SERVICE UPDATE

O-=Issues identified
Road and Street Maintenance

2014/15

I Apr | May ‘ Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct |ch | Dec | Jan |Feb ‘ Mar |13f14Target
Rossendale

IMonthly % of defects filled
within 20 working days
Cumulative % of defects filled
within 20 working days

100% | 99%
80%

99%

Lancashire

Cumulative % of defects filled

o £oy N
within 20 working days SED || BB 90%

Between April and May 2014/15, a total of 1,488 highway defects were identified by regular Highway Safety
Inspections (HSI) or reported by the public in Rossendale. 99% of these defects were repaired within 20 working
days.

Rawtenstall Bus Station

A preferred location following consultation for the new bus station on Bacup Road has been selected and detailed
design work started during quarter 1 2014/15 with planning consent likely to be applied for in quarter 3 2014/15.
We continue to work closely with the development partner, Barnfield Construction and Rossendale Borough
Council.

Trading Standards

Eastern European Foods from Eastern European shops - There is a growing number of eastern European shops
opening around the county. The shops often stock goods which do not comply with labelling requirements and are
in another language other then English. Samples will be taken and checked for compliance with labelling rules, and
any compositional or nutritional checks will be made. In Rossendale 11 samples were taken in quarter 1 in support
of this work.

M65 Gateway Study

To ensure that the M65 continues to support the East Lancashire economy effectively, this study will investigate
what may be necessary to improve capacity, reliability and safety between Junctions 2 and 6, and when such works
might become necessary. It will also consider the parallel A6119/A677 route to the north of Blackburn, which
provides a crucial link to the Enterprise Zone at Samlesbury and the M6 at Junction 31. The study will commence
in the autumn and be completed by the end of March 2015.

M66 Gateway Study

This study is examining the importance of enhanced connectivity on the M66 corridor to Rossendale and the rest
of East Lancashire. It will also identify the best way to achieve enhanced connectivity if there is demonstrable
evidence that investment will deliver significant wider economic benefits for East Lancashire, and Rossendale in
particular. The principal objective of the study is to develop a 'Conditional Output Statement' setting out what East
Lancashire, and Rossendale require of the transport network in support of growing its economy.

The study is not restricted to elements of the transport network which Lancashire County Council is responsible
for, and it includes the Strategic Road Network and relevant routes into Manchester city centre, the '‘Metrolink' line
between Bury and Manchester Victoria, and the national rail network between Rochdale and Manchester Victoria.
The study will include an assessment of connectivity and its economic value, capacity, performance, journey
quality, access to the network and links to growth centres and airports, and identify any existing constraints that
the county council working with local partners may need to address.

LLILIY1 V\hll’\R\ Y A
[T OO CPoOonoy

T



http://www.bacupthi.org.uk/

Page 50



, genda ltem 12

N

\

Events on the highway =
CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Peter Bell
August 2014

Lancashire
County G0
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ?&-ﬁ?




Events on the Highway — Consultation Responses

Executive Summary

Following the consultation period 14 responses were received ranging from
individuals to district councils. The overall feedback was positive to the steps that
the County Council are taking to mitigate the withdrawal of the police presence for
traffic management. However there were a number of issues that were raised by the
respondents.

e The most common question was around marshals and stewards. The policy
will look to provide a clearer distinction between the two. The training course
proposed is still being explored so it is difficult to provide firm details which a
number of responses sought.

e A belief that marshals would, by default, be required at events. This is not the
case as it is only closures that require 'active' traffic management that would
require marshals. Barrier and sign closures can be unmanned or manned
with a steward.

e Concern that the County Council are trying to change or complicate event
management or demand traffic management companies are used. This is not
the case, it is inevitable that the withdrawal of the police from traffic
management will create a need for change however the policy seeks to retain,
where possible, the easiest way to allow events to carry on. If it can be
demonstrated that a traffic management plan can be facilitated without a third
party company then this would not be an issue.

Overall it is intended that the only current changes to the policy document will be
clarifications and further explanations. The responses have not challenged the aim
of the policy but have exposed possible misunderstandings that can be resolved.

Overview

The Draft new policies and procedures document was circulated to all County
Councillors and District Chief Executives, with a request to circulate the report to
local councillors for review and comment on the 13" June 2014. The consultation
ran until the end of July to allow the responses to be collated in this report for
circulation at the Three Tier forums.

Responses were received by a number of parties and during the consultation period
the County Council has provided responses to these comments to try and provide
further clarity. The County Council's responses are also included in this report.

Background

Lancashire Constabulary is no longer providing traffic management at parades and
events in Lancashire (except those of national significance such as Remembrance
Sunday). As a result the County Council alongside the district councils and the
police have been working towards mitigating the impact of this for event organisers
by setting out a clear process and the requirements expected for events to occur

Page 52



safely and legally on the highway. The document circulated for consultation seeks to
set out how the County Council are trying to minimise the impact on events.

Consultation Responses

The following parties have responded to the consultation:
e 3 County Councillors

e 1 District Councillor (acting as event organiser)
e 2 event organisers/organisations

e 7 City, District and Town Councils

e Chorley 3 Tier Forum

County Councillor responses

Consultation response 1
County Council response included in Italics.

e "l assume that not all helpers will need to be accredited marshals, and that
provided there is a small core, the bulk of helpers can be made up from
stewards (using the definitions in the interim guidance). Accredited marshals
can close the road for stewards who will then stand behind barriers."

If the road is to be closed using barriers (i.e. a full closure) then no marshals
will be required. The legal closure is empowered by the barrier and signs not
the person in this instance. Marshals would only be required if for example
there was a rolling closure, where the parade was moving along with traffic.
Marshals would in this instance direct traffic to stop whilst the parade passed
(i.e. no barriers being used)

e "What form will the accreditation training take, is there any cost, when will
courses be available?"

The training program is being worked on at the moment and the council do
not have dates as such but we are working to get it in place as quickly as
possible. It is reasonable to expect that there will be a cost but these details
are still to be finalised.

e "It should tighten up the process, and give those accredited people a bit more
authority. Having accredited people will help the application for road closure,
and the Risk Assessment for the Event."

Consultation response 2

"Please can you advise if any form of event organisers were involved in putting
together these proposals?"

The document was drafted by officers. The police, district and county officers have
had input and have fed back comments from their dealings with event organisers as
part of this process, an earlier form also went before Scrutiny committee as part of a

e
Page 53



wider discussion. The answer to the question is that it hasn't had the direct
involvement of event organisers.

Consultation response 3

"A question posed to me has been why do the events have to be advertised
especially if they are one offs. Why could the cost not be bought down on that for
advertising?"

The event itself does not need to be advertised, although most events will normally
want some sort of exposure to ensure that they are successful but that is general
marketing and down to the event to sort out if they want. There is no requirement for
an event to promote itself.

The only point in which advertising is discussed in the document is around road
closures. If the district council (the preferred option) processes the road closure then
they are required to place legal notices on site (normally an A4 sheet i.e. low cost).
If however the County Council has to process the closure then they are required to
place a legal advert in the press notifying the public of the highway closure. The cost
of the advert would be borne by the event however the steps we have taken (by
using the district powers) should result in this being an exception rather than a rule.

In conclusion:

e If an event requires a closure and it is done by the district council it will be
down to the district council's discretion as to whether they charge for the
closure.

e If an event requires a closure and it is done by the County Council then the
cost of the press notice will be charged to the event.

e If an event requires a closure and they agree how it will be signed the County
Council has a stock of signs that organisers can borrow (refundable deposit)
or choose to buy for their continued use in future events.

The County Council has taken all the possible steps it can to ensure that the cost
burden to event organisers is kept to a minimum whilst still meeting any legal
requirements that have to be met.

District Councillor Response

Consultation response 4

"l have been sent the information about events as a local councillor. However | am
replying as an organiser of large events in the Fylde. | put on three triathlons each
year, and have done for 8 years in St Annes, Ribby Hall and Fleetwood. Two of
these require road closures.

These events meet so many local and central Government targets it would be a
shame to impact them. We introduce children to sport from age 7 years and up, we
bring women back to sport who have left it or not tried it before. We create a
community spirit and involve charities in all events.

Like many events the only thing that almost stops us each time if finding marshals, or

stewards now as they might be. Finding large numbers of free volunteers is a

e3e
Page 54



challenge. If we were to pay them the event would become so expensive it would
exclude all entries except from the rich.

| doubt any Government local or central would want to plan for the rich only. We are
inclusive and the cheapest events in the UK to attract people from all schools across
Fleetwood and the Fylde, we feel this is important as many such children are
excluded by cost.

If the new rules make obtaining marshals more difficult, reduces who can be a
marshal, or increases costs it will stop events. | appreciate less events may be a
council aim as it reduces the amount of work required and makes life easier but is
this the best for community, obesity and health?

| would like to be involved in discussions as | fear bureaucracy and over planning
and fear of keeping things simple may create a society that can't function properly. |
also fear that many people in the planning may never have put on large scale events
and only understand the paper side of it not the reality of it."

A distinction needs to be placed between Marshals and Stewards. A Marshal will
have the power to stop and direct traffic, in the same way a police officer does (with
a valid road closure order in place to support them legally). Stewards have no such
powers and are just there to provide information and support to road users who are
affected by road closures.

It could be assumed that the types of events mentioned would utilise full road
closures to ensure the safety of the participants. This would be facilitated by "Road
Closed" signs and barriers. These closure points would benefit from stewards who
can offer advice to road users but do not require fully accredited marshals.

It is important that whilst the County Council will work hard to keep events running,
we manage our responsibilities to highway users, spectators and participants. The
County Council has to ensure that the road is legally closed and that the appropriate
level of signing and staffing is in place to keep everyone safe and informed.

At no stage are the County Council saying that you are now required to pay
volunteer stewards, however if during the planning process of the traffic
management plan for an event it is decided that marshals are required then it is
inevitable that there will be some sort of cost involved. However the County Council
is again looking to support in minimising this cost as much as possible. The training
program that is being created will allow certain individuals to become marshals,
these could be county or district council employees, and they may even be
volunteers from local organisations, once trained they would be available every year
for the event.

It is disappointing if it is felt that the underlying agenda is to drive down the number
of events and to make life easier, this is not the intention. Putting steps in place to try
and support events going forward following the withdrawal of the police from traffic
management would show that the County Council is doing its best to mitigate any
issues that are faced. It is unfortunate if this does not come across clearly in the
report.

o4 .
Page 55



The intention of this exercise is to empower organisers to take their events forward in
a safe and legal fashion, the County Council agree that the organiser will be the best
placed person to know what the individual issues of the event are, especially if they
have been involved for many years, however the fundamental requirements for a
legal road closure cannot be overlooked and a robust traffic management plan with
the involvement of the county, police and district working together with the organiser
is the best way to facilitate this.

Follow-up response from the consultee

"In 8 years and 18 events we have not seen the police or involved them, yes we
have full road closures and it seems you are saying for us nothing at all will change
and that is a relief. As | said the trouble with people making decisions who are not
event organisers is they have no idea of logistics. For example | need a minimum of
85 marshals or stewards now, and that is cutting it thin. To get volunteers to do this
is hard. To get 85 trained council officials to give up almost every weekend of the
year is non sensical and would just mean no events. Many events happen on the
same day and many require this level of support to work. You say this is to improve
safety which would imply that you have records of incidents and safety issues. In my
races there are none, and in all the races | take part in | know of none, and of course
the parades | attend | have not heard of any either. We do live in more of a "nanny
state" where fear of something is often more important than the reality of nothing
happening and | appreciate the police have to make cuts and can't serve the public
as they once did but we so often see a sledge hammer being used to crack a nut. If
| can help bring some common sense to any of this please liaise with me as | would
hate to see Government officials closing events for paperwork reasons and
supporting obesity and lethargy as it is easier. | am sure, as you say, this is not the
case but fingers crossed on that. Let me know if | can lend any help, all the best with
this and let's hope there are no real causalities, and by that | mean events!"

Event organiser responses
Consultation response 5

"Both very useful documents that should once fully implemented, result in the
continuation of traditional community events using the highway in a safe and orderly
manner. The "respondent”, once trained in accordance with the Community Safety
Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) intend not only to marshal their own annual Easter
event once training has been given, will avail themselves to marshal other groups
events depending upon the availability of trained members.

Set out below are points/issues that we would like further discussion on before we
fully endorse the policy and interim guidance.

e Training — It is of vital importance that training courses are delivered at a time,
date and location that would allow our members to attend, i.e. nights or
weekends and local based."

As the training course is current in its concept stage the details of how and when
it would be delivered and who is eligible for such training is not yet known but we
will take these comments on board.

e5e
Page 56



e "How many of our people can we have trained?"
Who can be trained is at the discretion of the Local Chief Officer for the Police in
Lancashire, any person that is permitted could be trained. The County Council
would suggest that there would be no arbitrary limit. A copy of the Home Office
guidance on the CSAS powers is included for reference.

e "How many Marshals do we need to run our event?"
The nature of the event and its impact on traffic and pedestrians will determine
the number of Marshals required. At the point of application the County Council
and Police would provide comment on the plan including numbers, route, signs,
closure requirements etc

e "How many Stewards do we need?"
The nature of the event and its impact on traffic and pedestrians will determine
the number of Stewards required. At the point of application the County Council
and Police would provide comment on the plan including numbers, route, signs,
closure requirements etc

e "What will be the cost?"
The cost of the training is not known at this time as it is still in its concept stage.

e "How long will it be before refresher training is required?"
The CSAS guide does mention periodic re-assessment however it will be at the
discretion of the Lancashire Constabulary to agree the frequency of this.

e "How much will the Marshal training cost."
The cost of the training is not known at this time as it is still in its concept stage.

e "Road signs — The way our event moves along the highway requiring a series of

short road closures, makes the use of standard road signs as proposed difficult
to manage as they will require to be continually re-sited along the route. It should
be noted that before this year’s event started, numerous signs were deposited
along the route requiring them to be moved only a short distance from the side of
the road out and onto the crown of the road. We understand that each road sign
should be weighted down with a sand bag to prevent it being blown over by a
strong wind. (Not mentioned in the policy document)"
It is difficult to cover every detailed point in the document, the signs for example
that we have produced and made available to event organisers at the moment
are designed to be zip tied to street furniture therefore not requiring sand bags.
We would specify in the approval of the traffic management plan any
requirements for signs to be secured and periodically checked for example. The
approved traffic management plan will describe how any event will be managed,
either by accredited marshals or by physical signing dependent upon
circumstance.

e "If we have sufficient trained Marshals available, could they use either hand
signals as described in the Highway Code or hand held devices such as LED
powered red/green batons or even stop go boards etc."

The Marshals would have the power of a police constable in terms of directing
traffic. Batons and Stop/Go boards would not be approved as the power is held
by the person not the sign, so hand signals would be the method of

eB e
Page 57



communication with drivers, this would be covered in the training course in more
detail.

e "Communication — Marshals will require some effective means of communication
i.e. personal radios."
This would be a decision to be made by the event organiser as part of the traffic
management plan, if an event organiser decided to utilise this means of
communication it would be their own responsibility to resource this equipment.

e "High Vis jackets — Do we need different jackets for both Stewards and

Marshals."

The County Council's view at this time is that it would not be necessary to have
different jackets. Assuming that the traffic management plan required the use of
marshals and stewards then the marshals would be identifiable by an
accreditation ID that they are required to wear when carrying out their duties.
Also by virtue of the role they are carrying out it should be clear which is which,
for example a steward would either be alongside a sign and barrier or on the
roadside providing support whereas the marshal would be stood in 'live' traffic
facilitating the rolling closure.

e "Interim arrangements — How much of this policy will be in place before Easter

2015 and what are the alternative requirements. If it is a case of instructing a
Traffic Management Company/ where are the funds coming from."
The request is to have comments back by the end of next month and it will be
discussed at the Three Tier Forums in September. As we are time critical with
coming up with a solution to allow events and parades to continue, | would expect
as much of the policy as possible to be in place before Easter 2015. The
responsibility for the cost associated with events which take place on the highway
lie with the event promoter. This will not change.

e "Contacting residents/businesses along the route. Will a short mention in the Free
Press suffice?"
As part of the road closure, notices would go up on site informing the public of the
forthcoming closure. Any further requirements for additional information and
notice will be discussed as part of the conversation at the local Event Safety
Advisory Group meetings and agreed Traffic Management plans.

e '"Litter — Never been a problem."
Consultation response 6

"That the proposed training will impact on people who volunteer, some are working
and some provide child care. Why is it that these marshals who have over 30 years
experience in many cases now have to be accredited. Is prior learning and
experience not taken into account?"

The training that is proposed to be made available by the County Council is to
provide marshals with the power of a police constable (i.e. the power to legally direct
traffic, and for it to be an offence for those directions to be ignored). For an event to

o7 o
Page 58



occur on the highway it is necessary to have some sort of legal closure in place,
either rolling or static. If a static closure is being created then the closure is
empowered by the relevant traffic signs (i.e. Road Closed). It is possible for a well
coordinated event to by facilitated by a moving cordon of static closures surrounding
the event, as the event passes the road reopens whilst ahead of the event the roads
are being closed, however this does require a level of coordination that many smaller
events may struggle to provide (an example of this is provided in the interim
guidance that was circulated alongside the consultation document). The
accreditation scheme to provide traffic marshals is being explored to allow the
marshals to act like the police at a parade (for example) where they actively manage
the traffic around the event. Without knowing the exact details of how your events
are currently managed the County Council can only provide the following responses
to the question posed:

1, If the marshals are providing the management of the event using the

movement of barrier and signs (static closure) then it is possible nothing will

change;

2, If the marshals are facilitating rolling closures then the accreditation would

formalise the experience and provide the legal backing to what they are doing.

Consultee response to comments

"A) Athletic Road events do not need a rolling or static road closure in 99% of the
cases and this was done as a blanket proposal in the consultation. | am opposed to
this element in the consultation.

B) The experience of Race Organisers as my colleague has mentioned is generally
greater than the Police or yourselves in this matter and | would hope that recognition
is given to this and then used to formulate the final policy

C) The implication from one of your comments above "It is possible for a well-co-
ordinated event to be facilitated by a moving cordon of static closures surrounding
the event" could imply without this happening the event is NOT well organised and
coordinated. | for example work with the local traffic management officer to check
my events are safe and well organised and then have them approved- | appreciate
you are after a process that will facilitate this BUT if you are not involved in athletics
and its organisation you tend to take a generic view!"

"For athletic road races no need to close roads in most cases an event tends to
happen for a few minutes in that area. The implication of the proposals is that full
road closure is required at a cost to in our case to a small charity. Unless you have a
very large event there is no cost benefit to the organisers. Indeed if only a "Fun Run"
or "Flashmob Race" there is no insurance or requirement to inform anyone, this
seems wrong. This is likely to benefit very large events e.g. London Marathon,
Manchester 10K who have event companies providing marshals and who have
mega budgets for promotion from Sponsors-this has no real benefit to Lancashire
sports people!"

Firstly it is important to cover the “fun run” and “flashmob race” issue you raise, if the
runs are occurring on the highway without the necessary legal closures and
permissions from the District/County Council and Lancashire Constabulary then they
should not be happening. Just because the events happen doesn’t make it right or
legal. The County Council agrees that any event that occurs should follow the same
protocols and processes to ensure both public and participant safety.

e 8
Page 59



In terms of “cost” the report has not placed any values against the various issues
raised. However the County Council has tried at all times to ensure that costs will be
kept as low as possible, for example there has been close working with our district
colleagues on the best method of processing a legal closure, the power the County
Council can use requires an advert in the press whereas the district council power
only requires a site notice. Accreditation training is currently available through a
private company but the County Council are exploring if it can be provided at a more
competitive rate. A batch of temporary signs have been manufactured and
distributed around the county for events to be able to use (at no cost) with the
possibility of regular events being able to buy a set for their own use every year.

Consultee response to comments

"As mentioned unless you can call a Fun run or Flashmob run organised these
events will continue to happen without your permission. We as race organisers
know of people who do this to get around the system"

"When | started organising events 31 years plus ago on the day of my races no
others occurred nowadays you can have 8 races taking place on the same day in
Lancashire-you will need a substantial amount of signage to cover some weekends"

As mentioned earlier, most people who support these events are volunteers and as
such could easily walk away from helping (there is significant evidence for this
happening already).

The cost is more than likely to close small events - is this what LCC and the Police
really intend?"

Entirely the opposite is the intention for this policy. It is important to note that this
policy has been drafted as a result of the police announcing that they would not be
providing traffic management to the many events in the county. It became
necessary for the County Council to work with the constabulary and the district
councils to come up with a policy to ensure that as many events and parades could
continue as possible. The removal of the police provision and the subsequent
conversations with our district colleagues did help identify the large variety of
different processes and local practices that needed to be formalised so that an
organiser in Lancaster can expect the same steps to be followed as in Chorley. In
terms of the polices the County Council is not able to provide a comment on their
intentions, however the actions are due to them adopting ACPO (Association of
Chief Police Officers) guidance.

Consultee response to comments

"ACPO issued similar guidance in 2000 because of Millennium year-l suspect this is
more about a reduction in funding (something which | know you cannot comments
on), however if there is no need for Police involvement and there is no need for road
closures and provided the event is insured what is the proposed position in clear and
unequivocal terms of LCC?

"Two of us have already highlighted that this is contrary to your view likely to close
up to 85% of road race events- we want to make this absolutely clear on that point."

eQe
Page 60



"There has been no involvement of race organisers as far as | can ascertain in
formulating this policy, this is ridiculous given that the Police have used our
knowledge to improve what they do.

The Police do not marshal any event | have organised, we have had 'Specials' there
because they want to be -they have given their time unpaid and have come as
support- What then is their role in all this."

No event organiser has been involved in the drafting of this document so far. The
policy was an officer authored paper with input and discussion from the Lancashire
Constabulary and the district council officers. It is the intention of this consultation at
this stage to get the comments and inputs via the County and District Councillors. It
can be a chicken and eqggq issue, if the County Council had not drafted a proposed
outline and just sought views we could have been in a situation of having multiple
conflicting proposals to try and bring to together. By providing a framework outline
and then seeking views we can look to tweak and edit to keep a universal process
that meets the maximum number of event's needs.

It is probably important to note that the intention of the document is to provide an
outline for event organisers when organising their event. If when you inform the
district council of your event and the discussion of a suitable traffic management plan
is undertaken, it is at that stage that the detail of how to manage the event would be
resolved. If the police and County Council traffic team are happy with the plan then it
would be accepted. If as you note the police have not attended before or have
applied a light volunteer touch then it is possible that this could be accepted in the
future, it is therefore not possible for the County Council to comment on an individual
event and as such we can only deal in generalisations at this stage.

"Police have never marshalled at most events. Are we presuming that the Ironman
Triathlon or Tour de France principles be applied here and that Police are to be paid
for turning out at checkpoints? Only large events need this from the Police!"

Large major events will require an acceptable traffic management plan, if the police
chose to attend it would be down to them to offer comment on costs they may
charge.

Consultee response to comments
"Ergo smaller events need a much reduced traffic management plan!"

"The proposed policies do not take into account course design. | have to have my
route verified, insurance granted etc by either UKA (United Kingdom Athletics), ARC
(Association of Running Clubs) or FRA (Fell Runners Association) and | conform to
all safety requirements- events are insured for a minimum of £10 million. These
governing bodies consist of people trained in risk assessment and litigation, they are
in many cases runners - so are both practitioners and monitors of what is happening
and would not put themselves or others at risk. Most race organisers would be willing
to cascade any useful training down to their volunteers."

The policy is providing a framework for all events on the highway, the County
Council haven’t commented on any particular type of event because the framework
outline can be applied to a street party or church parade in the same way as a major
race.



Consultee response to comments

"l think there is a need to identify that affiliated road race events have their own
specific requirements and it would be useful to sit down with us and listen to our
views/advice in this area"

"l personally ensure my organised races are as safe as can be because if | don't |
won't get a) the participants, b) raise much needed money for the Village Hall or local
charities and c) the support of the NGB's - Why, why, why weren’t people with
experience invited to join the consultation group- we use to be on local safety
groups."

The County Council do not dispute that your events are as you state well organised
and safe, it is not the intention of this process to change any of that. As noted the
pressures placed on the County Council, by the immediate removal of the police
attendance of events, forced it to put forward a policy framework and then seek
comments at this stage.

Consultee response to comments

"Are you saying that all road running events will require a road closure? If you are,
you can wave goodbye to around 75 to 80% of road running events. So much for
London 2012 legacy.

You should also note that my previous attempts to obtain a road closure order for my
event have met with refusal by Lancashire Police. Such was their strength of
objection that it is recorded in our risk assessment and planning document to cover
ourselves."

Council actions

The comments were passed to the Lancashire Constabulary to provide a comment
on as the response identified their refusal to attend events. The Lancashire
Constabulary feedback was as follows:

"I have spoken to "the consultee” and as | thought he and his colleagues were
worried that it meant the events couldn’t happen, | have explained what the ‘Events
on the Highway’ document is all about and why it needs to be brought in and | think
he understands it now."

An overview email was also provided to a County Councillor who had been part of
the original email chain to provide an update. The main points covered are outlined
below:

The important point that the County Council is trying to get across is the County and
Districts want to work with event organisers to ensure that anything that occurs on
the highway is done safely and is coordinated with other users of the highway. It is
entirely likely that the number of runs that are organised may not need a road
closure due to the nature of the event however it is still important that the County
Council is aware of the event happening so that we can agree any traffic
management is acceptable, notify the organiser of any issues (forthcoming road
works for example) that may affect the event and manage any other events that may
conflict (location/time etc).



District, City and Town Council responses

Consultation response 7

"Welcome and worthwhile documents that could be developed as a basis for the
improved management of events on the highway, particularly in light of the intended
withdrawal of a traffic management roll that has historically been provided by the
police.

It is accepted that the districts can be the primary point of contact for applicants, this
roll being an administration function allied to the district’s role in the heading of local
Event Safety Advisory Groups (ESAGS).

It is accepted that the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 is the preferred legislation.

It is accepted that the county council be responsible for approving traffic
management plans for road closures — Note that once the notification of an event is
received and circulated to ESAG partners it is considered that LCC as the Highway
Authority (in conjunction with the Police Traffic Road Safety Unit) be the focus of
communications with event organisers for matters relating to traffic management and
road closures i.e. LCC / Police liaise with event organisers in the production of the
necessary traffic management plan and traffic management arrangements, and not
districts.

The Accredited Training Programme is without doubt a cornerstone of the policy.
Adequate and suitable training courses should be available to community groups
who may, if they so wish, have the opportunity to have their representatives trained
to an approved standard well before the start of the 2015 events programme so that
the availability of accredited marshals can be included in the preparation of the traffic
management plans as prepared by the event organisers. This will greatly assist LCC
traffic engineers in their discussions with event organisers"

There were also a couple of suggested replacement sentences seeking to provide
clarity on meanings which will be incorporated into the document.

Consultation response 8

"l would make the following comments that have arisen from discussions with the
County Council’s Events Manager:

The sign loaning scheme needs to be developed to ensure there is a clear and easy
booking process, if however we are asking organisations to have qualified traffic
management companies | don’t see the need for this."

The County Council agrees, the important part was to secure a small stock of signs
initially to help facilitate the events, going forward it would favourable to see a good
stock level of signs at various locations around the county, and as part of this it is
suggested that the districts will want to help facilitate sign borrowing system. For
annual events the option would be to offer the signs for purchase so that they have
them every year going forward. This could be part of any Traffic Management
conversation?



"When we explored the Community Safety Accreditation Scheme with the police
during Guild, the police had concerns over the legality of the scheme and its
implementation; there is also the matter of liability for community volunteers trained
in the scheme who is covering them under liability insurance. Also what are the fail-
safes in place to ensure a closure is implemented properly and in line with chapter
87"

The County Council is awaiting the full information back from the police regarding
the CSAS scheme, but take on board your concerns, ultimately the police have the
discretion as to who can be trained and it must be possible for us to provide
Marshals for events as the AA provided marshals for the open last year. Liability
insurance — the County Council will ensure that this is discussed with the police as
part of setting up the training; it may be that the individual may have to get their own
or the organiser would have to ensure that the marshals are covered as part of their
event insurance, but this will have to be checked. In terms of the chapter 8, it would
the responsibility of the County Council to ensure that the Traffic management
proposed is compliant, in terms of checking the implementation on the day we will
have to consider possibly random checks on events, based on the number of
potential events and the spread it is likely that we would not be able to attend every
one though.

| have grave concerns over a volunteer staffing a closure point, even if they have
received training it is a high risk role and potentially puts members of the public at
risk of public confrontation or at worst conflict with moving vehicles. We would not
put an unlicensed member of staff on the entrance to an event.

We will feed back your concerns but if the closure is fully signed and barriers are in
place and any diversions are clearly signed then these conflicts will be minimised,
however it will need to be a consideration of the traffic management plan. It has to
be remembered that the guidance is covering all sizes of event and parade ranging
from a church parade down a street to a closure of a city centre for a major event.
The intention is to provide a framework for the District, County and Police to work
with, if it is felt that the event will create these conflicts then this can be raised as part
of the application process etc. It will be down to the area highway teams and
Districts to agree the local adoption of the framework.

"Under the heading ‘Longer Parades’ the police intervening if a situation arose, |
think needs clarifying is this in relation to crime and disorder or under special police
powers to divert a procession in the instance of a situation out of the control of the
organiser?"

Noted

It is not clear what the relationship of the two documents are, however the interim
guidance has no information about insurance, risk assessments, traffic management
plans, advance warning, resident/business notification, welfare consideration for
participants, parking considerations for participants, stewarding, first aid, litter and
waste and so on.

The main policy document is the one that the County Council is looking to adopt
when agreed, this is as mentioned above, designed to provide a framework that can
be applied across the entire county for all parades and events etc. How our district
colleagues and the County Council implement the detail will be down to the local
groups to agree. Whist reference to all the items above as “need to be considered”
can be added to the document, it would be expected that this to be part of any



application process and it is important that whilst trying to provide consistency there
is flexibility for locally specific issues to be dealt with. Until the main document is
adopted it became necessary to state the current position (in the absence of police
at parades/events) therefore the interim guidance was pulled together stating an
early adoption of the main principles of the “under consultation document” but tried to
provide clarity on the impact of not having accredited marshals available (i.e. try and
use full closures eftc).

"l note in the Draft policy document references ESAG as best practice to ensure
communication between District, County and the police, however Preston who has
an established ESAG from pre Guild has no physical representation from the County
Council despite being on the circulation list."

It would be expected that LCC officers will attend ESAGs in the future

"The draft policy does not include detail about the above considerations outlined in
point 4"
Noted

"Will these documents remain as guidance allowing districts to roll out their own
localised policies which obviously still reference the guidance however allow for
nuances?"

It is intended for the main document to be adopted as a policy by the County
Council, it is for this reason that the districts and police have been involved in the
drafting process. As noted above, and in response to a number of other comments
about the policy, we have attempted to create a framework rather than a set of
draconian rules to allow districts and the county to have nuances. The main
principles would remain standard, for example, the district is the main point of
contact, the county and police will approve the traffic management, etc

"In the Interim Guidance, reference to district council needs adding in the second
paragraph on page 1."
Noted

"In the Interim Guidance, 3rd para page 1, reference is made to full closures being
the preferred option and yet the majority of the document appears to relate to rolling
closures."

This is because the interim guidance is aimed at dealing with those events that
would be best placed to use marshals (e.g. at the front and back of a parade) but as
this is not possible currently it was about how to manage this.

"In the Draft Policy Document, page 7, 3rd bullet point from the bottom, whilst
emergency service access should be maintained at all times, it is seldom the case
that residents and business access can be maintained during periods of road
closure, although all attempts are made to minimise this impact.”

Noted

"There have been a number of issues surrounding complaints from public transport
operators and whilst not wishing to single out one particular type of road user, it
would be useful to add a comment that early contact needs to be made with bus
service operators affected."



Noted — if the closure was to be processed by the county under the RTRA the 12
week lead time is to allow the notification of bus operators etc similar to the TTRO
process.

Consultation response 9

A letter was received from a District Council outlining the support for the process and
the policy. The following comments were noted:

"The council would make the point that having a clear and consistent set of criteria to
be met means that some applications for events will have to be denied because
organiser either cannot or will not meet the criteria. This will inevitably lead to some
negative publicity either at a local, county or even national level. The fact that there
is a clear policy in place designed to protect the interests of all should provide a
robust defence to this. The council would however wish to ensure that a
communication plan is agreed between the County and Districts to ensure that all
would be events organisers are mindful of the proposals."

Consultation response 10

An email was received from a District Council agreeing "that the introduction of a
policy for the implementation of highway closures arising from events on the highway
is beneficial. The policy should reflect the primary role which Lancashire County
Council as highway authority have in approving the closure of highways and the
agreement of satisfactory schemes of traffic management" the email then provides a
number of suggested edits to the main document to strengthen this view without
changing the underlying documents aims and objectives.

It is also noted that in the view of the respondent an events safety advisory group
(ESAG) is not empowered to approve or prohibit an event or closure. This view will
need to be considered as it will depend on how local processes are set up to handle
the event application process. It is reasonable that an event that has an effective
traffic management plan and is generally ok to occur on the highway could be
effected by the consideration at an ESAG meeting. This will depend on how the
local ESAG is set up and what its agreed role is within the process."

Consultation response 11

The response from a district council focussed on the impact on the event organisers
that these changes will have. They identified the drop in events that have occurred
since the police have withdrawn from events and raise concerns over the financial
impact that traffic management could have on small events. The district welcomes
the recent communication from the Lancashire Constabulary that a small amount of
funds was being made available to help with the transition but it still raises concerns
about the long term effects of these changes.

The district notes that the county are looking to set up a training scheme for
Marshals however then assumes that the county would then automatically deploy its
own in house marshals to events and comments that no costs have been made
available. The response does seek prices and financial impact to be made clearer.



There is a feeling that for a number of smaller events the ESAG process is an
unnecessary blockage. It is also felt that the flow chart provided in the document
requires timescales built in so that it is reasonable to know how long the county will
take considering a traffic management plan, for example.

The consultation response raises a number of issues. Until the County Council is
able to get the accredited training program set up it is not possible to calculate prices
for the training. It is expected that the County Council would train some of its staff to
become traffic marshals but these would not be automatically used at every event
being run. The training will be available to district council staff as well who may seek
to support there local events.

It is important to note that marshals are only required where a rolling closure is
required, it may be more cost effective to seek a full closure of a section of highway
for a short parade that can be facilitated by signs and barriers. As noted in the
guidance the county have manufactured a number of signs available for use by
events. It is important to note that were possible costs and impacts have been kept
as low as possible whilst the County work to resolve the situation that has arisen by
the police withdrawal

The district council wishes to see timescales on the flow chart, as a framework that
the county council has put forward for the process that involves working with multiple
districts, it is not possible to place timescales on the flow chart as they will not be the
same for each area. The framework is intended to allow the individual partnerships
to optimise the process to meet there local needs. One district may want 2 more
weeks to consider an application than another. This could be a volumes, location,
complexity issue and it will be down to the individual districts and the county council
highways teams (in that area) to come to a local agreement on timescales and
deadlines.

The ESAG potential blockage is another issue that can be agreed locally. The
partner organisations may decide that only events over a certain size or location will
be passed to ESAG. It is not for this policy document to set those local
requirements.

Consultation response 12

Following a conversation with the local district council the following comments were
received. "...the wording around points of contact still need to be tightened up as it
appears a little confusing as to who organisers should contact and when."

The council also stated that they "would also not be in a position to provide
assistance with signage and the taking of deposits as we simply do not have
capacity to house the signs etc." It was noted that the housing of signs by local
councils was only put forward as an option, not a requirement, as some councils had
expressed an interest in doing this. The issue of deposits was also only a
suggestion of how to facilitate the save return of signs after use and was not a fixed

policy.



The council was also "pleased to hear that local arrangements would be
accommodated although am mindful that the same will not be recorded within the
framework."

Consultation response 13

"At a meeting of the Town Council last night (Thursday 24 June 2014), the
abovementioned consultation was considered. At the meeting my Council resolved
that it notes and supports the contents of the documents."

Consultation response 14

"Concerns where expressed about using event management services particularly for
non-profit events"

There is no requirement to use event management services for any event, they are
just one option available, small events can borrow signs and have Traffic
Management plans agreed and implement themselves. If accredited marshals are
required we are looking at the best way to facilitate training so that as many eligible
people as possible can be trained (eligibility is at the discretion of the police).

"Members felt that the policy should be different for profit and non-profit/community
events"

The County Council does not consider that it is workable to provide a different policy
for different profit bases, the fundamental issue is that if an event is deemed to
require a highway closure to allow it to proceed then the requirements to allow this to
happen are the same.

Engagement with organisations such as UK Athletics and UK Cycling was seen to be
key to the development of a successful LCC policy.

It is not the County Council's intention to open the consultation to other
organisations, the policy is designed to provide a high level framework that will try
and meet the needs of any and all events that will occur on the highway. A
discussion with a running club demonstrated that they have events that may not
require closures and as such a lot of the "closure" section of the policy is not aimed
at them. However the County Council as the highway authority would still want to be
aware of the event to ensure that there are no conflicts on the network (Road works
unknown to the organiser or another event wanting the same highway space).



\\(
N

\.

\

Events on the highway =

Draft Policy and procedure for highway
management

Peter Bell
24" March 2014

Lancashire
County &=
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ?&-‘3?




Events on the highway

Executive Summary

It is recommended that the police, county and district councils adopt this document
as the protocol and outline for the management of road closures for events, parades
and other activities that affect the highway network.

It is recommended that the district council is the primary point of contact for
applicants, with the police and county council providing a consultation service with
published lists of traffic management providers being kept up to date by Lancashire
County Council. Furthermore, it is outlined in this report that the use of the Town
Police Clauses Act to facilitate the closure is the preferred, first choice, piece of
legislation where appropriate.

It is also recommended that Lancashire County Council seeks to create an
accredited training programme for marshals to allow county and district employees to
be empowered to control traffic when required to do so, if it is deemed feasible by
the authority.

Background
In recent years there has been a significant increase in the number of requests to

hold events which affect the highway. This increase is partly due to a number of
national events such as the Olympic Torch Relay, The Queen's Diamond Jubilee and
the Big Lunch. These special events have been over and above the numerous
parades, village fetes and events that happen every year within Lancashire.

Each time the highway is used for an event it is necessary to close it to other users.
This process helps to ensure the safety of the event patrons, manages highway
users' expectations (for example possible delays or diversion routes) and provides a
legal framework for the event to occur legitimately.

Page 70



Road closure powers
There are two main methods that can be used to close, part or all, of a highway for
an event. The power is given to the district councils of Lancashire under the Town

Police Clauses Act 1847 and to the county council under Section 16A-C of the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984.

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (TPCA)

This gives to the district council's powers for preventing obstruction of the streets in
times of public procession, rejoicing, or illuminations, and in any case when the
streets are thronged or liable to be obstructed.

It may apply to a special occasion when the ordinary day to day use of a street or
highway is likely to be obstructed by substantial numbers of people, on foot or in a
vehicle, participating as spectators or otherwise in the occasion.

Not all orders under this power need take the form of a full closure

This power is normally used for carnivals and processions where the closure is for a
short duration and / or traffic management requirements are not substantial.

It is recommended that the TPCA is used as the preferred method of processing
requests to close the highway for events and parades. The advantages of this
method are that the order is simple to produce, there are no significant costs and the
work can be undertaken fairly quickly, in many cases. To process a TPCA closure,
the district council would consult with the police and the county council and where all
approve, generate a site notice (Laminated A4 sheet) giving the road closure
legitimacy. The only cost for this closure would be the staff time in processing it.

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA)

This gives the county council the power to make an order to regulate traffic on a
temporary basis to facilitate sporting events, social events or entertainment on the
highway.

The restrictions may be imposed for a maximum of three days and only one such set
of restrictions may be imposed on any particular section of road in a calendar year.
Consent to extend the length of time beyond three days and increase the number of
events held within a calendar year must be sought from the Secretary of State.

A RTRA closure would follow the same general procedure of consultation; however,
it is processed by the county council. The county council as part of the ordering
making process will place a notice in the local press over and above the site notice.
This will result in an advertisement cost being associated with the order; the amount
would be dependent on the newspaper involved.

Furthermore, the permitted frequency of the order means that for events which occur
in a local area and potentially use the same sections of highway there is a possibility
that subsequent events occurring in the same calendar year would not be able to
close the road. For a second closure to be facilitated on a section of highway under
the RTRA in a calendar year the county council would need to seek secretary of
state approval, on a case by case basis.

[ ] 2 L]
Page 71



Police and the policing of events.

Lancashire Constabulary have recently adopted the Association of Chief Police
Officers' (ACPO) 'National Guidance' which means that the police do not undertake
any traffic management for an event on the highway other than those events that are
deemed, by the police, to be of national importance (such as a Remembrance Day
parade).

The requirement for police attendance and action at public events will be principally
based on the need for them to discharge their core responsibilities:

e Prevention and detection of crime;

e Preventing or stopping breaches of the peace;

e Action against a breach and subsequent investigation of a closure within the
legal powers provided by statute for, a Road Closure Order (Town Police
Clauses Act 1847) or a Traffic Regulation Order (Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984);

e Activation of a contingency plan where there is an immediate threat to life and
co-ordination of resultant emergency service activities.

It is noted that whilst the police retain discretion to attend and take action at public
events in order to discharge their core duties, the ownership for stewarding and
marshalling remains with the event organiser

As a result it is the event organiser's responsibility to liaise with the local authority
about how the event will be managed and to ensure robust traffic management plans
are in place with a suitable number of marshals to enforce it. No event which
involves stopping or directing traffic (other than that of a road closure by means of
full chapter 8 signage) would be supported by the Police unless the marshals were
correctly accredited.

The police recommend that, in the first instance, enquiries with regard to the
planning of public events should be directed to the local authority’s Event Safety
Advisory Group (ESAG) (discussed later in this report), or they recommend for
further information for organisers to visit the Health & Safety Executive website
‘Guidance  on Running Events Safely’ (http://www.hse.gov.uk/event-
safety/index.htm).

[ ] 3 L]
Page 72



Holding an event on the highway

The steps that have to be taken to hold an event on the highway need to be clearly
defined in a process that is able to be followed by the applicant, irrespective of the
legislation used to close the road. An outline flow chart of the proposed process is
included in the appendix.

It is recommended that the district council is used as the initial point of contact for the
organiser. The district council can then pass the applications to the county council if
it is felt that a TPCA closure is not suitable, i.e. a Road Traffic Regulation Act order is
required.

Once the application has been received by the district council, the police, the county
council and any other key stakeholder will need to be consulted. A recommended
mechanism for processing this consultation process is a local Event Safety Advisory
Group (ESAG). A number of these exist in the county and it is recommended that an
ESAG for each district area is created.

After the ESAG has reviewed the application the district council would then process
the TPCA order and notice allowing the legal closure of the road.

ESAG meetings do not need to be held on a regular basis. The meetings are
convened as and when they are required.

A requirement of any application for an event will be an effective traffic management
plan including the actions that will be taken to ensure the safety of those taking part
and other highway users. By requiring the County Council and the Police to approve
the traffic management plan the issues around co-ordination with road works and
other third party issues affecting the highway are noted.

With the new ACPO policy being adopted nationally by the police traffic management
now falls to the event organiser. Traffic management can range from sign only
schemes such as "road closed", diversion routes etc, through to accredited event
marshals.

[ ] 4 L]
Page 73



Event Marshals

Under the Community Safety Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) it is
possible for individuals belonging to larger organisations to

Community become accredited marshals.
Safety Scheme

Accredited

The powers that can be granted to a marshal in the area of event management are:
e The power to require giving of name and address;
e The power to control traffic for purposes other than escorting a load of
exceptional dimensions.
Other powers are available under CSAS and a link is provided at the end of this
document to the complete list of powers and the legislation that provides it.

Within Lancashire there is only currently the AA who has accredited marshals
available. These were used at the Open Golf Tournament 2012 in Fylde. The AA
also has an accreditation course (accredited by the police) allowing them to train
other marshals.

Kays traffic management and Stadium TM are, at the time of this report, looking to
train a number of their staff with the AA to become marshals.

The cost of training a marshal with the AA is £450 per person, with the police
charging £80 per person for admin and vetting. A total cost of £530.

It would be possible for Lancashire County Council to create a training course which
could be accredited to allow us to train our own staff, and possibly the staff of the
districts, potentially at a lower cost.

It is recommended that the county council looks at creating an accreditation course
to allow us to control the training that marshals receive, ready for them to work on
our highway. The powers are also not restricted to just events, so could also apply
to instances where emergency traffic management is required where the police are
not available (e.g. where there is a failure at a major traffic signal junction).

The police have indicated that they would not support the rolling closure of a road
under either TPCA or RTRA if the traffic management plan did not include accredited
marshals. Full closures are different as they could be implemented by sign only.

[ ] 5 L]
Page 74



Example process

A proposed event/parade is
planned

Will it affect
the highway?

Applicant completes
application/notification
form for the relevant
district council

Pass back to applicant
to make necessary
changes

Application
completed?

District council consults
with key stakeholders

Approved in

€ —————

1

District council follows
its event notification
protocols as required

Process ends

County Council liaise

TMP discussion the TMP

Application form
Traffic Management Plan
(TMP)

Indemnity insurance?

with applicant to resolve E -3

@

Resubmit agreed
plan to police for
agreement

Police

County Council

NO

TMP
acceptable?

N

pesssssbsasansnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnns

principle?

Submit the application
to the local ESAG
meeting

Approved by
the ESAG

Process the TPCA
closure order for the
event dates

Event/parade goes ahead

Responsibility of the Highway authority - Lancashire County Council

A copy of the TPCA
closure order provided
to Police and County
Council

Figure 1 — Sample process for an event on the highway.

[ ] 6 L]
Page 75



As a district delivered process this flow chart outlines an example process. District
partners may follow slightly different procedures. However the basic outline of this
flow chart would remain the same.

Example documentation

The police have provided the following notes that could accompany any application
for a temporary road closure. It would be with agreement with the district councils
how the timescales and fees are covered. However it would be advisable to try to
agree a countywide consistent set of notes. Flexibility within the items will allow
districts to place their own interpretation on certain items, for example "may charge a
fee" etc

e The District / County Council(s) may charge a fee for the administration of a
closure under either piece of legislation.

¢ A minimum number of weeks’ notice is required for the processing of a road
closure order. Your local district will be able to advise you further on these
timescales.

¢ Under the terms of the legislation, the County Council must be satisfied that it
is necessary to close the road in order to facilitate the event.

e The Police / County Council / District Council and other key stakeholders will
be asked to comment on the application and attached plans.

e If a road closure is necessary the event organiser will is recommended to
contact a traffic management company to prepare a traffic management plan
of :- (if necessary)

o a plan showing positions of the road closure/route diversion
signs/barriers;

o * a description of wording/size/colour of the road closure/ diversion/
signs/barriers; and

o details of accredited stewards/marshals.
*All signs must conform to The Traffic Signs Manual Chapter 8.

e The event organiser must consult with all residents and businesses which
may be affected by the closure.

e Access for emergency vehicles and residents/businesses must be maintained
at all times during the closure period.

e Evidence of public liability insurance cover for £5 million must be provided
with the application.

o All litter, signs, public notices etc must be removed as soon as possible after
the event.

[ ] 7 L]
Page 76



Further information

For further information you can contact Peter Bell (peter.bell@lancashire.gov.uk) or
you can refer to the online information below.

Links:
Article on the AA accreditation for the open:
http://nationaltraffic.co.uk/viewtopic.php?f=2&t=6161

List of powers available under the CSAS scheme:
https://www.qov.uk/government/publications/community-safety-accreditation-
scheme-powers

Example website from Preston City Council:
http://www.preston.gov.uk/yourservices/events/planning-an-event-in-
preston/process/

Example form used by Fylde Borough Council:
https://www.fylde.gov.uk/forms/showform.asp?fm_fid=800

[ ] 8 L]
Page 77



Page 78



Appendix B

L ancashire
Constabulary

police and communities together

Public Events and Engagement

Police Guidance to Event Organisers

21 March 2014

Version 0.5

HQ Operations, Roads Policing

Page 79



Foreword

Despite the changes to public services over recent years, keeping the public safe remains
the cornerstone of all our service delivery promises. How we do this takes on many guises,
some obvious and some not so and how we support public events and engagement is a very
highly visible example of this.

These events are varied in theme and duration and add immense value to communities.
They are often run by volunteers who dedicate their time and commitment to raising money
for charity and generating a sense of pride across communities.

Local authorities and the police have a key role to play in supporting these events; however
we need to be clear about what role each agency is responsible for. There is a
misconception that the police have the power to close roads for public events, when in fact
they don’t. The law does not allow the police to do this and road closure notices can only be
granted by and obtained from the local authority.

This guidance sets out the police’s and local authority’s role in assisting public event
organisers and explains core duties at events. It also explains the process that event
organisers must follow when requesting to close the highway for any period of time to enable
their event to take place safely.

Background

In recent years there has been a significant increase in the number of requests to hold
events which affect the highway. This increase is partly due to a number of national events
such as the Olympic Torch Relay, The Queen's Diamond Jubilee and the Big Lunch. These
special events have been over and above the numerous parades, village fetes and events
that happen every year within Lancashire.

Each time the highway is used for an event it is necessary to close it to other users. It is the
responsibility of the event organiser to ensure that the relevant road closure orders are
secured and in place ahead of the event. This is done by making an application to the local
authority, more details of which can be found in this document. It is also their responsibility to
ensure that the closures are properly marshalled.

Careful consideration must be given to the closure to ensure the safety of individuals
participating in the event and to minimise the impact on other road users. Road closures
can involve diversions including changes to bus routes and services and impact on
emergency services attending incidents. Event organisers are asked to consider whether it is
absolutely necessary for the event to take place on the highway and in the first instance
consider whether the event could be held elsewhere therefore negating the need to close
the highway.

This process helps ensure the safety of the event patrons, manages highway users'
expectations (for example possible delays or diversion routes) and provides a legal
framework for the event to legitimately occur.

District Councils are the primary point of contact for applicants, with the police and County

Council providing a consultation service with published lists of traffic management providers
being kept up to date by Lancashire County Council. Furthermore, it is outlined in this report

Page 80



that the use of the Town Police Clauses Act to facilitate the closure is the universally
preferred, first choice, piece of legislation.

Road closure powers

There are two main methods that can be used to close, part or all, of a highway for an event.
The power is given to the District Councils of Lancashire under the Town Police Clauses Act
1847 and to the County Council under Section 16A-C of the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984.

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (TPCA)

This gives to the district council's powers for preventing obstruction of the streets in times of
public procession, rejoicing, or illuminations, and in any case when the streets are thronged
or liable to be obstructed.

It may apply to a special occasion when the ordinary day to day use of a street or highway is
likely to be obstructed by substantial numbers of people, on foot or in a vehicle, participating
as spectators or otherwise in the occasion.

Not all orders under this power need take the form of a full closure

This power is normally used for carnivals and processions where the closure is for a short
duration and / or traffic management requirements are not substantial.

It is recommended that the TPCA is used as the preferred method of processing requests to
close the highway for events and parades. The advantages of this method are that the order
is simple to produce, there are no significant costs and the work can be undertaken fairly
quickly, in many cases. To process a TPCA closure, the district council would consult with
the police and the county council and where all approve, generate a site notice (Laminated
A4 sheet) giving the road closure legitimacy. The only cost for this closure would be the staff
time in processing it.

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA)
This gives the County Council the power to make an order to regulate traffic on a temporary
basis to facilitate major sporting events, social events or entertainment on the highway.

The restrictions may be imposed for a maximum of three days and only one such set of
restrictions may be imposed on any particular section of road in a calendar year. Consent to
extend the length of time beyond three days and increase the number of events held within a
calendar year must be sought from the Secretary of State.

A RTRA closure would follow the same general procedure of consultation; however, it is
processed by the County Council. A condition of the order is that it is necessary to place a
notice in the local press over and above the site notice. This has a potential advertisement
cost associated with it, depending on the newspaper involved.

Furthermore, the permitted frequency of the order means that for events which occur in a
local area and potentially use the same sections of highway there is a possibility that
subsequent events occurring in the same calendar year would not be able to close the road.
For a second closure to be facilitated on a section of highway under the RTRA in a calendar
year the county council would need to seek secretary of state approval, on a case by case
basis.

Page 81



Police and the policing of events

Lancashire Constabulary’'s role in working with communities and supporting engagement
activity remains a key priority for them. They will continue to support public events, and will
work with event organisers to ensure public safety is considered from the very start of the
planning phase. Local policing teams are part of the community and will very rightly play a
key role in ensuring these events run smoothly.

Lancashire Constabulary have adopted the Association of Chief Police Officers’ (ACPO)
‘National Guidance' which means that the police do not undertake any traffic management
for an event on the highway other than those events that are deemed to be of national
importance (such as a Remembrance Day parade).

The policing approach to these events will be based on the following principles:

e Engaging with the public to offer reassurance and to prevent and detect crime;

e Preventing or stopping breaches of the peace;
Action against a breach and subsequent investigation of a closure within the legal
powers provided by statute for, a Road Closure Order (Town Police Clauses Act
1847) or a Traffic Regulation Order (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984);

e Activation of a contingency plan where there is an immediate threat to life and co-
ordination of resultant emergency service activities.

It is noted that whilst the police retain discretion to attend and take action at public events in
order to discharge core duties, the ownership for stewarding and marshalling remains with
the event organiser.

As a result it is the event organiser's responsibility to liaise with the local authority about how
the event will be managed and to ensure robust traffic management plans are in place with a
suitable number of marshals to enforce it. No event which involves stopping or directing
traffic (other than that of a road closure by means of full chapter 8 signage) would be
supported by the Police unless the marshals were correctly accredited.

In the first instance, enquiries with regard to the planning of public events should be directed
to the district councils. In most areas an Event Safety Advisory Group (ESAG) will deal with
such applications.

For further reading and detailed advice it is recommended that organisers visit the Health &
Safety Executive website ‘Guidance on Running Events Safely’
(http://www.hse.gov.uk/event-safety/index.htm).

Page 82



Holding an event on the highway
The process of holding an event on the highway is detailed in the flow chart at Appendix 1.

1.
2.

3.

District councils are the initial point of contact for event organisers.

District councils will forward applications to the county council if it is felt that a TPCA
closure is not suitable, i.e. a road traffic regulation act order is required.

District councils will consult with the police, county council and other key
stakeholders as required.

In most districts the applications will be considered and approved by the Event Safety
Advisory Group (ESAG).

If approved, the council will process a legal notice allowing the legal closure of the
road

The following is a summary of advice for event organisers:

A legal order will be required to close a road either under the Town and Police
Clauses Act 1847 (TPCA) which is processed by the district council or under the
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) which is processed by Lancashire County
Council.
By law the police cannot approve such applications; they will however be consulted
along with the County Council, District Council and other key stakeholders and be
asked to comment on the application and attached plans.
The District / County Council(s) may charge a fee for the administration of a closure
under either piece of legislation.
3 months’ notice is required for the processing of a road closure order under the
RTRA and in cases under TPCA where the application is an official bus route.
Applications under the TPCA not involving an official bus route can be processed in
less time by local district councils and these will vary dependant on the district
council, however the more notice provided, the better.
Under the terms of the legislation, the County Council must be satisfied that it is
necessary to close the road in order to facilitate the event.
Event organisers are asked to consider whether it is absolutely necessary for the
event to take place on the highway and in the first instance consider whether the
event could be held elsewhere therefore negating the need to close the highway.
The event organiser is responsible for traffic management and an essential
requirement of any application for an event will be an effective traffic management
plan including the actions that will be taken to ensure the safety of those taking part
and other highway users.
Traffic management can range from sign only schemes such as "road closed”,
diversion routes and can also include using accredited event marshals.
If a road closure is necessary the event organiser will need to contact a traffic
management company to prepare a traffic management plan of :- (if necessary)
o0 a plan showing positions of the road closure/route diversion signs/barriers;
o0 a description of wording/size/colour of the road closure/ diversion/
signs/barriers (All signs must conform to The Traffic Signs Manual Chapter 8)
0 details of accredited stewards/marshals.
Evidence of public liability insurance cover for £5 million must be provided with the
application.
In addition event organisers must consult with all residents and businesses which
may be affected by the closure
Access for emergency vehicles and residents/businesses must be maintained at all
times during the closure period.

Page 83



o All litter, signs, public notices etc must be removed as soon as possible after the
event.
Further Information and Advice

For further information you can contact Peter Bell (peter.bell@lancashire.gov.uk) or you can
refer to the online information below.

If you would like to consult with a police expert on such matters you can contact a Traffic
Manager by emailing the following address TrafficManagement@Iancashire.pnn.police.uk or
by dialling 101 and asking to speak to your local traffic manager.

Links:
Article on the AA accreditation for the open:
http://nationaltraffic.co.uk/viewtopic.php?f=2&t=6161

List of powers available under the CSAS scheme:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-safety-accreditation-scheme-powers

Example website from Preston City Council:
http://www.preston.gov.uk/yourservices/events/planning-an-event-in-preston/process/

Example form used by Fylde Borough Council:
https://www.fylde.gov.uk/forms/showform.asp?fm fid=800

Page 84



Appendix 1 — Sample process for an event on the highway.

A proposed eventiparade is
pltanned

Will it affect
the highway?

cil lizise
1 to resalve

TMP discussion

Resubmit agreed
plan to police for
agreement

Application
completed?

NO

| Application form TMP
Tmﬁomnoﬁ:;mmﬁm ¢ accoplable?
-

e R R A AR R R R TR TR NSRRI ER AR

lity of the Higk it - Lancashire County Council

Approved in
principle?

Process the TPCA
jor for the

Page 85



Page 86



Agenda Item 13

Guide for Three Tier Forums on the County Council's
Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP)

What is the TAMP?

It is the county council's approved Transport Asset Management Plan and investment
strategy that identifies the key strategic priorities of Lancashire County Council as highway
authority during the period 2015-2030.

It is a fundamental change from tackling, 'worst first' to one aligned to the Department for
Transport's philosophy that, 'prevention is better than cure'. It recommends that resources
are used to reduce key maintenance backlogs through preventative methods.

It sets out the principles and approach that the county council will use to determine the
priorities for allocating capital resources to highways and transport assets.

What does the TAMP say?

The analysis indicates that the county council requires approximately £35m per.annum to
maintain all its transport assets at their 2013 levels. The direct allocation likely to be
received from central government, via the Department for Transport is £25m per annum.
This funding shortfall provides a real challenge to do more, or even the same, with less.
In the last few years we have experienced a number of severe weather events (long, very
cold winters and flood events) which have had an impact on the network and accelerated
the deterioration of our assets.

Preventative intervention works are proposed to reduce our maintenance backlogs. Such
works involve treatments that are generally carried out at an earlier critical stage in an
asset's life-cycle and are usually less expensive and less intrusive.

Key maintenance backlogs will be reduced over a ten to fifteen year period, the effect of
which will be that the level of available funding broadly matches the amount we need to
maintain all our assets.

It is not possible within the amount of resources that are likely to be available in future
years to improve the condition of all transport asset types at the same time. A phased
approach, based on the county council's priorities and affordability is therefore required.
The A, B and C roads and the footway network will be prioritised. The intention during this
period is to maintain other transport assets as close to their 2013 condition as resources
will allow.

In respect of those assets scheduled for later phases the primary focus will be to slow
down their rate of deterioration as far as possible.

So what will change?

Assets will be managed on a holistic, county wide basis and funding will be prioritised between
different parts of the transport asset network, based on need, as measured by engineering
analysis.

Service standards for each asset grouping will be used to set priorities and guide
investment levels to reduce maintenance backlogs, make the best use of available
resources, and ensure transparency and accountability.

Investment in each district will be targeted to priority needs in each district annually.
Surface dressing will be the main treatment used for preventative maintenance.

Page 87



e Preventative intervention at the right point will reduce the cost of treatment overall by a
factor of 3.

e The public's expectation is that the highway network should be maintained to the highest
standard. However, given the current financial constraints the county council will have to
prioritise its resources to maximise their effectiveness. We will have to explain this new
approach and help the public understand the rationale behind it.

e The TAMP provides a better defence against claims.

Timescales and Priorities

e The TAMP covers the period 2015-2030.

e The efficiency of highway maintenance programmes will only be increased if planned
resources are invested for at least a 5 year period. Therefore, it contains three
implementation periods of 5 years, with a phased approach to funding priorities:

o 2015-2020 A, B and C roads and footways
o 2021-2025 rural unclassified and residential roads
o 2026-2030 priority structures and street lighting

Phase 1:

e £8m p.a. for A, B and C roads. This comprises;
- £4m of structural patching to bring red and amber roads up to a condition that they can

be surface dressed (approx 47km roads)

- £4m of surface dressing (approx 200km roads)

e £3m p.a. for footways to tackle defects and reduce claims

e There is some funding for rural unclassified and residential roads in phase 1. Adopting the
same structural patching and surface dressing approach will address 100km a year

e Other assets will be supported at 2013/14 levels where possible

Phase 2:

e Priority to residential and rural unclassified £5m pa

e Structural patching (starts the year before in anticipation of surface dressing)
e ABC roads and footways still funded to a level to manage annual deterioration

Phase 3:

e Our bridge structures are in excellent condition and deteriorate at a very slow rate. For that
reason investment in the bridge stock is identified as happening in phase 3 (£6m). This
does not mean that we won't be dealing with "at risk" structures and will continue to
manage the stock.

e We will also continue a programme of replacing the street lighting that is at the highest risk
of failure on a programmed basis (£4m).

Page 88



Resurfacing v structural patching - how much does £8m buy?

/_ Total length of network
2500 2600km

2000

1500 /

= fAm surface dressing and £4m structural
patching

= £ 8m surface dressing only

£ 8m resurfacing only

1000

_ L

0 T T T T T 1
Year One year two year three year four year five year six year seven

Highway condition by district

Actul Km Roads RED or AMBER 2009 - 2014 and Trend 2015-2018

e | ancaster
—=—=Ribble Valley

West Lancs
s \Wyre

210 Chorley

\
W\
A\
A\
W\

W\

1)

- - Average
e Preston

e Fylde

e South Ribble
e Pendle
——Rossendale

W\
W

160 | emmmmmm Burnley
Hyndburn

KM

110

60

10

2009 2010

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Page 89

2018



Where we are and where we want to be

The table below shows the current condition of each asset type covered by the plan and the
overall target that has been set to the end of 2029/30, together with interim 5-year targets.

Anticipated Asset Condition to 2029/30
es 5 Year
Asset Category Condition Now Target 10 Year Target | 15 Year Target
2013.14 2015/16 to 2020/21 to 2025/26 to
2019/20 2024/25 2029/30
A Roads FAIR
B Roads ACCEPTABLE GOOD GOOD GOOD
C Roads POOR
Residential
Unclassified Roads ACCEPTABLE ACCEPTABLE GOOD GOOD
Rural Unclassified
Roads ACCEPTABLE | ACCEPTABLE GOOD GOOD
Footways ACCEPTABLE [ 2 {(s=hh= 4y EXCELLENT EXCELLENT
Bridges and Similar
Structures GOOD GOOD GOOD GOOD
Street Lighting FAIR ACCEPTABLE | ACCEPTABLE | ACCEPTABLE
Traffic Signals ACCEPTABLE | ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD

In practical terms what does it mean for councillors/your area?

You will have greater clarity regarding the county council's priorities as the highway
authority.

You will see a significant improvement in the condition of the A, B and C road network
generally over the life of the plan. However that improvement will take place across the
county at varying rates based on priority. The maintenance backlogs on the A, B and C
road network should be significantly reduced by 2020/21.

Increased investment in the footway network should improve its condition and reduce the
number of successful claims made against the county council by 2020/21.

The maintenance backlogs on the urban and rural unclassified networks will be prioritised
in phase 2 (2020/21 — 2024/25).

The move to countywide allocations may result in the amount spent in individual districts
varying compared with previous years. As funding will be based on condition data,
investment in districts may vary year on year.

The public may not appreciate that 'prevention is better than cure' and may query why what
they perceive as 'the worst roads' are not prioritised.

Surface dressing, although not always the public's preferred treatment, will be the main
treatment used for preventative maintenance as this will reduce the cost of treatment
overall by a factor of 3.

LCC's Scrutiny Committee will be involved in the ongoing monitoring and implementation
of the plan.

You will receive ongoing briefings to allow you to explain the plan to your constituents.

Page 90



T6 obed

Transport

Asset
Management
Plan

June 2014

Lancasbhire
County ‘@e?-
Council ?‘s;:%{)




26 abed

Foreword

This Transport Asset Management Plans (TAMP) sets out the
County Council's proposed 15 year strategy to maintain and
improve the transport asset network in Lancashire during the
period 2015/16 to 2029/30.

Lancashire is the fourth largest authority in England and as a
consequence has a large, diverse and demanding transport
network. The impact of high traffic levels and unprecedented
weather events of recent years have taken their toll, not just on
our highway network but on highway assets across the country.
In addition we are facing increased expectations from
residents and businesses alike who are demanding a well
maintained and efficient highway network in order that they can
go about their everyday lives. This, combined with the climate
of financial austerity, has presented us with severe challenges
as to how we can maintain our highway assets with significantly
less money.

The TAMP has been drawn up in response to these challenges
and provides a sound 15 year plan which addresses the needs
of our highway assets in the most efficient and effective manner
and is based on intervening at the right time with the right
treatment. This is a significant departure from a traditional
'worst first' approach in that we will be intervening more
frequently at an earlier stage in an assets life-cycle. This will
enable us to use more cost effective treatments and allow our
money to go further.

The plan also acknowledges that we can't do everything all at
once. In the first 5 years we will concentrate on improving the
strategic road network to help boost the economy of Lancashire
and the footway network to try and reduce the occurrence of
trips and falls. Our main focus will be on making extensive use
of surface dressing to seal surfaces against water ingress to
reduce the occurrence of potholes.

The TAMP will allow the condition of the network in its entirety

to be understood and to demonstrate a clear, defensible

strategy for the 15 year life of the plan. In order that other parts

of the network do not suffer, we will maintain the investment in

other asset areas at levels as close to their 2013/2014 level as
possible

The plan is consistent with the
national drives for efficiency in
highways maintenance and is
intended to provide a legacy of a
network in improved condition and
greater sustainability.




cp abed

Contents

Section Description Page
Foreword 2
Executive Summary 5

1 Introduction 7
2 Service Standards 8
3 Current Condition of the Asset 10
4 Overall Investment Strategy 2015/16 to 2029/30 14
5 Phase One - Investment Period 2015/16 to 2019/20 17
6 Phase Two - Investment Period 2020/21 to 2024/25 19
7 Phase Three - Investment Period 2025/26 to 2029/30 21
8 Future Changes to the Asset 22
9 Key Recommendations 22
10 Summary 23
A, B and C Roads 25
Rural Unclassified Roads 27
Residential Unclassified Roads 28
Footways 29
Bridges and Similar Structures 30
Street Lighting 31




Traffic Signals 32
Public Rights of Way 33
11 Conclusion 34
12 Risk 34
Appendix 1 - Generic Service Standards 35
Appendix 2 — Service Standards 43
Appendix 3 — Primary and Secondary Priorities If Additional Resources are received In 44

Phases One, Two or Three

6 abed

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 4



G6 obed

Transport Asset Management Plan

Executive Summary

This Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) identifies the key
strategic priorities of Lancashire County Council, as the highway
authority for Lancashire, during the period 2015/16 to 2029/30.

It concludes that £35m would be required each year to maintain
all of our transport assets at their 2013 condition. Given that only
£25m is likely to be made available this funding shortfall has the
potential to cause us significant problems in the future. In order to
address this we intend to change the way we manage our
transport assets in future.

This strategy is based on managing our assets on a holistic basis
and recognises that as we can't do everything all at once, we need
to prioritise between our assets based on the relative importance
that each asset group contributes towards our goal of delivering
an effective transport system, which is crucial if we are to help the
businesses of Lancashire and achieve our broader economic,
social and environmental goals.

In order that we can meet these goals we have developed a
15-year plan that is comprised of three discrete 5 year phases.
The plan identifies the appropriate strategies we will use to reduce
the maintenance backlogs associated with those assets targeted
in each phase. While the plan initially identifies a 5-year target
period for each delivery phase, we have retained sufficient

flexibility so that any of the phases can run concurrently should
additional resources become available.

We anticipate that from 2015/16 the level of available resources
will allow us to address only two asset groupings in each phase.
As a result the TAMP identifies that our main priorities, if resources
are limited to £25m per annum, should be the A, B and C road and
the footway networks. As cycle ways and cycle tracks are often
an integral part of these networks we will also take the opportunity
to improve conditions for cyclists where possible.

Whilst we will be concentrating on the A, B and C road and footway
networks in the early part of this plan, we still intend to maintain
our other transport assets as close to their 2013 condition as
resources will allow.

The TAMP also identifies our secondary and tertiary priorities,
which themselves are in pressing need of attention, but cannot be
fully dealt with immediately within a likely resource allocation of
£25m. In respect of those assets scheduled for later phases, our
primary focus will be to slow down their rate of deterioration as far
as possible. As a result it is unlikely that the maintenance
backlogs associated with these assets will be fully addressed until
the appropriate phase starts. However, should additional
resources become available during the course of this plan, then
accelerated progress in reducing both the maintenance backlogs

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 5



96 abed

and our predicted annual maintenance needs of the targeted
assets will be possible.

This TAMP makes a fundamental commitment to increase the
efficiency of our highway maintenance activities over the period
2015/16 to 2029/30. This target will be supported by equally
challenging performance indicators and a fundamental business
process review that will help us to significantly reduce our annual
capital requirements.

We will only increase the efficiency of our highway maintenance
programmes if we invest the planned resources for at least a
5-year period, so we can make significant inroads into the existing
maintenance backlogs and address the natural annual
deterioration associated with each asset grouping.

It is anticipated that as maintenance backlogs are reduced, the
financial resources required to maintain our assets at their
improved condition each year will also reduce from the current
estimated level of £35m to a more balanced position, whereby the
level of available funding broadly matches the amount we need to
maintain all our assets.

During this process it is our ambition to become a centre of
excellence for highway maintenance and be more transparent and
responsive in dealing with routine maintenance operations.

Appendix 3 outlines our priorities should additional funding
become available during the life of this TAMP. Multiple options
are presented and are dependent on the level of funding received
and the duration over which the additional resources are available.

This plan is, of course, subject to disruption in the face of
prolonged or repeated severe weather events. Irrespective of
such events this plan will maximise the effects of the available
investments over the life of this strategy. The plan will be subject
to regular performance management and scrutiny by elected
members and senior management teams. All estimates of costs
etc are based upon the 2014 equivalents

Finally the TAMP links closely with the area Highway and
Transport Masterplans that set the long term strategic direction of
the highway network and integrate all parts of the highway asset
infrastructure needed to provide a coherent network which
supports the competing needs of motorists, pedestrians, cyclists
and business.

The TAMP also has strong links to the Highways Management
Plan (HMP) which sets out how and when assets are to be
maintained. The HMP will be reviewed to ensure that it supports
the TAMP and maintains our assets in a condition that supports
Masterplan delivery.

1) Introduction

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 6



/6 abed

Lancashire's transport infrastructure assets are the most valuable
publicly owned resource managed by the county council, with a
combined estimated value of £9 billion. These assets are
fundamental in helping the citizens of Lancashire to not only
access a range of county council services, but also take
advantage of the wide range of economic, health, social and
recreational opportunities that are available to them. Without this
infrastructure Lancashire would not function as a place to live,
work or visit.

Given the importance that our transport infrastructure plays in our
everyday lives, it is vital there are plans in place to maintain and
manage this asset so that these benefits and opportunities are
maximised.

As the local highway authority for Lancashire, we are responsible
for a vast range of transport assets that produces a complex
maintenance demand. From our assessment it is clear that in
order for us to maintain the condition of all our assets at 2013
levels we require approximately £35m each year. As the direct
allocation from central government, via the Department for
Transport (DfT), is unlikely to exceed £25m per annum in the
foreseeable future, this funding gap provides us with a real
challenge as to how we can do more, or even the same, with less.

The strategies developed as part of this plan to address this
funding gap are based upon an assumed level of resource being

available and a three phased investment approach which retains
sufficient flexibility so that phases two and three are capable of
concurrent delivery with phase one should additional resources
become available.

The objective of this TAMP is to reduce key maintenance backlogs
over a period of ten to fifteen years through the adoption of a more
preventative approach to maintenance which will lead to a
reduction in the annual investment required to maintain our assets
in an improved condition. It is anticipated that this strategy will
enable us to reduce the capital investment required to manage the
annual rate of deterioration from the current level of £35m per
annum to approximately £28m by 2025.

The reduction of maintenance backlogs is based on improving the
efficiency of highway maintenance delivery by at least 30% over
the life of this plan through preventative maintenance strategies.

This TAMP is supported by an objective and detailed assessment
of the current condition of each of the transport asset groupings
for which we have responsibility. Key information from that
assessment has been extracted and is summarised in the
following pages. This TAMP uses that data and evidence to
propose a strategy which attempts to address the funding gap.

Scope
The asset groupings included within this first TAMP include A, B
and C roads, residential roads, rural unclassified roads, footways,

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 7



g6 abed

bridges and similar structures, street lighting and traffic signals.
The scope of this TAMP will be expanded to include other asset
groupings such as trees, drainage, flood risk, slopes and retaining
walls once we have completed our detailed assessments of these
assets.

2) Service Standards

Service standards have been derived using, where possible,
condition data collected by engineering analysis. These
standards will be used to monitor the overall condition of assets,
set performance targets and guide investment levels.

Whilst we have a statutory duty to maintain our highways as
outlined in the Highways Act 1980, there is no definition in the Act
as to the standard of maintenance we are required to provide. In
order to promote consistency of provision across the country, the
UK Roads Liaison Group produced a number of national codes of
practice entitled 'Well Maintained Highways', 'Well-lit Highways',
'Management of Electronic Traffic Equipment' and 'Management
of Highway Structures' which provide guidance on a range of
highway maintenance activities.

The UK Roads Liaison Group recommends that local authorities
follow these documents as they contain best practice and will
enable organisations to better defend against claims. Whilst we
generally follow the guidance contained in the codes of practice,
our evidence base sets out and justifies where our current working
practices deviate from these documents.

In defining our service standards there are a number of instances
where engineering data is not available. Where data still needs to
be collected, asset condition has been assessed, in the interim,
using alternative data sources deemed to be most appropriate.

In order that we can fill these gaps and use engineering data so
as to provide a degree of consistency across all asset groups, a
data gathering strategy has been devised that will enable us to
collect the right information at the right time.

This strategy identifies where the data gaps are, discusses
alternative data sources and specifies our preferred method of
data collection. In order that data can be collected easily and then
recorded and interrogated, the strategy proposes a staggered
approach so that existing staff resources are more able to manage
this data. Similarly, the strategy specifies a phased approach to
refreshing the data so that the resulting condition data can easily
be handled and assessed.

As more condition data becomes available for more asset
groupings the performance targets in this initial TAMP will be
amended as appropriate so that they offer a more refined
assessment of the overall condition of the asset. Where indicators
are changed we will clearly explain why such changes are
necessary.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 8



66 abed

In this TAMP we have identified 5 service standards of POOR,
ACCEPTABLE, FAIR, GOOD and EXCELLENT, against which
the benefits to the users of the asset can be measured. Details of
the generic levels of service that the transport asset groups are
likely to provide to users at each service standard are shown in
Appendix 1.

Setting service standards is required to:-

e Support planned maintenance of the network;

e Achieve a reduction in maintenance backlogs;

e Reduce the year on year investment required to deal with
natural annual deterioration of the asset;

e Make best use of available resources;

e Ensure transparency and accountability.

Initial service standards have been set for each asset grouping for
the period 2015/16-2019/20. We have also set an overall
indicative service standard target of GOOD to be achieved at the
end of period 2020/21-2024/25, which would indicate amongst
other things that the asset has manageable maintenance backlogs
that allow the annual deterioration of the asset to be addressed in
a timely manner.

In setting an overall indicative service standard target of GOOD it
is recognised that it is not possible or affordable to maintain all
asset groups to the same level. The targets for individual asset

groups have, therefore, been set according to county council
priorities, risk and affordability.

Maintenance Backlogs

The initial service standards we have developed are in the main
determined by the current condition of the asset, which in turn is
heavily influenced by the level of deterioration and maintenance
backlog within the asset base.

All transport infrastructure assets are liable to deterioration
through damage, wear and tear, ageing, increasing traffic and
severe weather events, all of which can cause additional
maintenance requirements for each group of assets. As all
highway authorities have maintenance backlogs, we are no
different to any other authority in this respect.

When maintenance backlogs reach critical levels due to a
protracted lack of resources or severe weather events, the annual
rate of deterioration may be greater than the annual programme
of affordable works. This causes the backlog to grow year on year.

If the maintenance backlog can be reduced to a level broadly
consistent with the annual rate of deterioration, then the resources
available should ensure no deterioration or only marginal
deterioration occurs. At this point a 'steady state' has been
achieved.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 9



00T abed

The following table details those assets covered in this TAMP and
shows the service standard currently being provided by each
asset grouping, together with the service standard we would like
each asset grouping to provide in 5 years, 10 years and 15 years
time. Whilst not directly mentioned, cycleways and cycling
facilities by their nature are integral to, or enhanced by, the assets
included in these asset groups

In order that we can address this performance gap and move from
our current position to the desired position, this TAMP sets
challenging service standard targets, details of which are shown
in Appendix 2. These targets are designed to allow maintenance
backlogs to be reduced to a level where deterioration is managed
quickly and efficiently at the optimal time and minimal cost.

The investment strategy later in this document details how we
propose to achieve our challenging 15 year programme to reduce
priority maintenance backlogs, by providing resources at an
appropriate level to allow year on year improvement in the
condition of the network.

From the following table it can be seen that the condition of some
asset groups will improve, whilst some will remain the same.
Where an assets overall average condition is expected to reduce
this will be done in a managed and controlled manner so as to
maintain public safety.

| AssetCategory | Condition | 5Year | 10 Year | 15 Year |

Now Target Target Target
A=25% | A=10% | A=10% | A=10%
(ﬁ‘/; gggd&iﬁ%?;) B=40% | B=15% | B=15% | B=15%
C=20% | C=20% | C=20%
Residential
Unclassified Roads 28-40% 28-40% | 14-18% | 14-18%
(% RED & AMBER)
Rural Unclassified
Roads 28-40% 28-40% | 14-18% | 14-18%
(% RED & AMBER)
Footways 50,000-
Ao I | <15:000 ' <15,000 /<15,000
Bridges and Similar
Structures Bridge 80-90 80-90 80-90 80-90
Condition Index (Ave.)
Street Lighting
(% of high risk 20-25% 25-35% | 25-35% | 25-35%
installations)
Traffic Signals
(% of units beyond 15-20% 30-40% | 20-30% <10%
design life)

3) Current Condition of the Asset

Given the range of assets covered by this TAMP, there will
inevitably be differences in the condition of each asset grouping.
To some extent this is determined not only by the intervention
intervals but also treatment and remediation options.

The overall condition of the transport infrastructure asset has been
determined by assigning scores to each service standard. A
weighted score has been produced by multiplying each score by
the asset valuation. A weighted average is calculated by dividing

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 10



TOT abed

the total weighted scoring by the total value of the asset, as
detailed below.

Scores per Service Standard

oo/ ;888 ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD
1 2 3 4 5

Current Asset Condition Summary

Asset Group Valu_at_ion Service Score Weighted
£ Million Standard Score

A, B and C Roads 2,717 ACCEPTABLE 2 5,434

Residential

Unclassified 3,593 ACCEPTABLE 2 7,186

Roads

Rural Unclassified | 4 156 | ACCEPTABLE | 2 2,252

Roads

Footway & 805 | ACCEPTABLE | 2 1,610

Cycleways

Bridges and 1135 GOOD 4 4,540

Similar Structures

Street Lighting 187 FAIR 3 561

Traffic Signals 60 ACCEPTABLE 2 120

Weighted Average Score = 2.26

Overall grade boundaries have been determined as follows:-

Overall Service Standard — Grade Boundaries

ool ;38 ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD
1t0 1.9 2to 29 3to 3.9 4to04.9 5

From this it can be seen that our stewardship of the transport asset
has resulted in an asset which, overall, is considered to be in an
ACCEPTABLE condition. Whilst it is generally free from critical
safety defects, considerable maintenance backlogs have been
identified which have accumulated, in general, due to insufficient
resources being made available over a period of time to maintain
the whole asset base.

If this situation is allowed to continue, maintenance backlogs will
continue to increase until we reach a position whereby a significant
proportion of our resources are directed towards addressing those
assets in an increasingly critical condition. Such a 'worst first' only
approach will ultimately result in very little being spent on
preventative maintenance treatments and will be insufficient to
stop the condition of the overall asset eventually deteriorating to a
POOR standard.

At the present time we require £35m each year to maintain all our
asset groups at their current standard, which is still insufficient to
deal with the accumulated maintenance backlogs.

Strategically, it is recognised that if maintenance backlogs can be
eliminated, then the cost of maintaining the asset in future will be
significantly reduced. By implementing new ways of working we
intend to reduce our maintenance backlogs to more manageable
levels, so that our future capital requirements will fall to
approximately £28m per annum.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 11



20T abed

The condition of each asset grouping will be reviewed on an
annual basis and the scope of assets included in the overall
condition assessment will be expanded to incorporate other asset
groups once their condition has been determined.

It is recognised that in respect of a number of asset groupings our
initial priority will be gathering objective evidence to support
development and refinement of the maintenance strategy for
those assets which, nationally, are traditionally not well defined in
the codes of practice.

The current climate of austerity makes it more important than ever
that the strategic plans contained within this TAMP seek to focus
resources where they can achieve the best overall long term
value.

The TAMP recognises a tension between the visible areas of
deterioration and the unseen but critical parts of the network,
which if not addressed will give rise to a future liability which far
exceeds the cost of optimal intervention at the correct point in time.

This TAMP is therefore focussed on supporting intervention at the
optimal time with the optimal treatment to maximise the effect on
the condition and life of our assets.

A further tension faced by every highway authority is how to
prioritise resources across different classes of highway asset.
Each asset group clearly has its own needs and its own risks

which require addressing and traditionally we have tried to
maintain or improve the condition of each asset grouping in
isolation. This approach can only ever be effective in times of
plentiful resources.

Estimated Available Resources

The resources available for highway maintenance are derived
from two sources i.e. revenue and capital. Revenue expenditure
is allocated by the county council, whilst capital block grants are
allocated to local government authorities by central government.

Overall revenue funding is likely to fall in the next five years by at
least 25%, which will inevitably have an effect on the level of
revenue funded routine maintenance programmes that we can
undertake.

Revenue spending in the main does not improve the fabric of the
asset, and is largely used to ensure assets remain in a safe and
serviceable condition until capital improvements are needed to
replace worn out infrastructure. Revenue funding is used to repair
potholes in accordance with our highway maintenance policies
and the capital programme is invested to prevent the occurrence
of potholes in the first instance.

Historically capital programmes have been funded from two block
grants received from the Department for Transport (DfT). These
have been used to fund local transport plans and highway
maintenance works.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 12



€0T abed

From 2015/16, part of the local transport block grant which has
previously been allocated directly to us will instead be allocated to
the Local Enterprise Partnership. This will reduce the flexibility we
have as local highway authority to enhance the highway
maintenance block grant allocation received from the DfT to fund
highway capital improvement works.

The table below shows the total capital resources that have been
made available for highway maintenance over the period 2011/12
to 2014/15.

Capital Allocated to Highways Maintenance (Em)

Source 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | Totals

Base DfT Highway
Maintenance 21.360 | 19.899 | 23.758 | 20.445* | 85.462
Allocation

Resources made .
available by LCC. 10.477 | 12.031 1.575 7.955 32.038

Total 31.837 | 31.930 | 25.333 | 28.400* | 117.500

(*= estimated figures)

From this it can be seen that the county council has, between
2011/12 and 2014/15, given highway maintenance additional
priority, which has resulted in the county council spending £32m
in excess of the predicted level of expenditure, as funded by the
DfT from the highway maintenance block.

Due to changes in the way that central government is to allocate
capital resources in future it is unlikely that the level of resources

available between 2015/16 and 2024/2025 will exceed £25m at
2014 values. It is speculated that in the period between 2025/26
and 2029/2030 a modest increase may occur to a level of £26m
at 2014 values. From this, it is clear that the annual level of
resources likely to be available from 2015/16 onwards will fall short
of the level of funds that have been available in recent years.

The period between 2009 and 2013 included three severe weather
events that caused significant deterioration across the network.
Increased capital resources were made available to deal with the
worst cases of deterioration. Whilst this approach quickly restores
parts of the network to a more acceptable state, it is resource
hungry and doesn't allow the broad underlying condition of the
network to be adequately addressed.

It is against this financial background that the following investment
strategy is based. The proposed investment strategy will be
reviewed in response to any variation in the actual level of
resources made available, which may result in our delivery
programmes and delivery timescales being adjusted as
appropriate.

4) Overall Investment Strategy between 2015/16 and 2029/30
A fundamental principle of this TAMP is to move away from the
philosophy of tackling 'worst first only' and adopting a new
approach whereby the underlying condition of the network is
addressed as we believe this will enable us to make more efficient
use of our resources.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 13



0T obed

The TAMP adopts a flexible approach, to addressing maintenance
backlogs and comprises of three separate five year delivery
programmes running from 2015/16 to 2029/30 in which each 5
year period clearly identifies not only our main delivery priorities
for that period, but also our secondary and tertiary priorities.

For the purposes of clarity, each of these 5 year programmes will
be referred to as phases. Phase 1 will cover the period 2015/16
to 2019/20, Phase 2 will cover 2020/21 to 2024/25 and Phase 3
will run from 2025/26 to 202/30.

Each of these phases has been designed to deliver a range of
affordable works within the level of resources that are likely to be
available during the lifetime of this plan. However, should
additional resources be made available at any point in time, this
will enable our secondary and tertiary priorities, as set out in
Appendix 3 to be addressed.

By setting our primary, secondary and tertiary priorities this
enables us to adopt a flexible approach to operational delivery
programmes should future funding levels change.

Given that it is unlikely that the available capital resources
received directly from the DfT will exceed £25m per annum, the
broad outline capital expenditure on highways maintenance over
the next 15 years is given in the table below.

Outline Capital Allocations 2015/16 to 2029/30 at 2014 Values
Phase | Phase 2 | Phase 3
Asset Group Allocations 2015/16 2020/21 | 2025/26
2014/15 to to to
2019/20 2024/25 | 2029/30
A, B and C Roads £4.8m £8m £3m £3m
Footways £2.1m £3m £1m £1m
Rural Unclassified | = g4 5, £22m | £55m | £2m
Roads
Moss Roads Nil £0.5m £0.7m £1m
Residential
Unclassified Rds £1.9m £2m £5.5m £2m
Bridges £5.7m £3m £3m £6m
Retaining Walls £0.9m £0.5m £0.5m £0.5m
Street Lighting £1.7m £2m £2m £4m
Drainage £1.2m £2m £2m £3m
Structural Defects £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m
Traffic Signals £0.3m £0.3 £0.3 £0.3
Estimated
Capital £21.4 £25m £25m £24.3 m
Programme

The figures in bold show when and where we propose to enhance
our allocations, so as to reduce the maintenance backlogs
associated with the targeted asset group.

Whilst the above table doesn't contain a specific asset type for
cycling, provision for cyclists is integrated into other assets such
as roads and footways via cycle lanes and shared use footways.
As a result the opportunity to improve conditions for cyclists will be
taken as and when we undertake works on road and footway
assets as considered appropriate.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 14



GOT obed

These allocations may be subject to variance in response to
emergency or unusually severe weather events. However the first
call on the capital programme in each five year block is detailed in
the sections below.

This TAMP identifies that the only practical way of addressing the
funding gap mentioned in the Introduction, reducing the
accumulating maintenance backlogs and improving the overall
condition of the transport asset is by adopting new ways of
working, including driving increased efficiencies and innovation in
the maintenance of our assets.

A conclusion of this TAMP is that the traditional approach of 'worst
first only' in asset management will inevitably result in spiralling
maintenance backlogs and a rapid deterioration of the transport
asset network.

In recent years severe weather events have given impetus to the
deterioration of the asset and we are at a critical point if the future
of the transport assets in Lancashire is to be safeguarded and
successful stewardship to be continued.

If we were to simultaneously reduce the maintenance backlog
associated with all asset groupings over the next 5 years, it is
estimated that we would need an additional £10m per annum over
and above the likely funding levels we will receive from the DfT.

The TAMP recognises that this is not realistic and proposes a
more flexible and affordable investment strategy that is broadly in
line with the resources that are likely to be made directly available
by the DfT. If our funding levels increase, this approach will enable
us to bring one of the investment phases forward so that we could
run phase 1 and 2 or phase 2 and 3 concurrently dependent upon
the level of extra funds made available. Whilst this would be
challenging from an operational perspective, it is considered
achievable subject to us significantly changing our methods of
service delivery.

In order to reduce our maintenance backlogs we propose to focus
predominantly on preventative intervention works. Such works
involve treatments that are generally carried out at an earlier
critical stage in an asset's life-cycle and are usually less expensive
and less invasive. It is anticipated that such an approach will
significantly reduce the rate of deterioration across the network.

Taking the A, B and C road network as an example, the average
annual capital investment between 2009 and 2013 was
approximately £4m-£5m. Over the same period a maintenance
backlog (i.e. road condition classed as either RED or AMBER) of
about 450km occurred. The conclusion from this is that an
investment of £4m-£5m per year, over five years, results in the
deterioration of approximately 450km of A, B and C roads. At
2014 rates, the likely cost of repairing this backlog is in the order
of £15m - £18m dependent upon treatment type.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 15



90T abed

Traditionally, we have adopted a largely 'worst first' approach to
our assets and as at 2013, the maintenance backlog associated
with the A, B and C road network was approximately 1,059km,
meaning that the backlog has doubled in just five years. lItis likely
to double again in the next five years if we continue treating the
network in the same manner.

Clearly 'worst first' is not sustainable and we need to do something
different if we are to break this cycle. If we change our approach
and concentrate instead on using preventative treatments of lower
unit cost, we can 'purchase' an extra 8-10 years life and slow down
the rate of deterioration. However those assets currently in poor
condition cannot be deferred indefinitely and for that reason part
of the available resources will be used to fund appropriate
remedial treatments until more permanent solutions can be
afforded.

In 2013 we spent in the region of £56m on the A, B and C road
network which enabled us to resurface approximately 40km of
road, at a cost of £4m, and surface dress around 50km of road at
a cost of £1m.

If we increased the A, B and C road allocation by £3m and directed
this extra allocation into surface dressing activities we could treat
approximately 200km of the network at a cost of £4m, which would
seal the road surface against water ingress and restore surface
texture, and extend service life by up to 10 years.

Therefore a mix of resurfacing, patching and surface
dressing works over a 5 year period, would at this rate, enable
a total 1,250km of road to be treated and remove the current
maintenance backlog of 1,059km and most of the additional
backlog that occurred during this 5 year period, leaving a
residual backlog of 150km, provided we intervene at the right
time with the right treatments. A backlog of 150km of surface
dressing would require an investment of approximately £3m
at 2014 prices.

A key message from this is that if we invest in more preventative
maintenance treatments across the A, B and C road network for a
5 year period, at the end of this period we will have:

e Treated or repaired in the order of 1,250km (48%) of the A, B
and C road network.

¢ Reduced the overall maintenance expenditure of this asset
group from £5m to £3m.

¢ Improved the condition of the asset from FAIR to GOOD.

If these savings are subsequently re-invested into other asset
groups for a further 5 year period, allowing additional preventative
treatments to be carried out, this will enable us to further reduce
our maintenance requirements across a greater range of asset
groups.

Nationally we face severe pressure on resources and change is
considered vital in the current climate of austerity in which the

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 16



/0T abed

county council has to operate. In order to succeed we will need
the understanding and co-operation of the public as we cannot do
everything at once, or as quickly as we would like.

We propose wherever possible to focus predominantly on
preventative intervention works across all asset groupings as a
way of reducing maintenance backlogs and maintaining the asset
in future.

5) Phase One - Investment Period 2015/16 to 2019/20

We will initially target the reduction of the maintenance backlogs,
prioritising the A, B and C road network and the footway network
over this five year period. Careful management of the other asset
categories will continue as we aim to maintain the condition of
those assets at the best possible level that available funding will
allow.

Whilst we recognise that further condition data will be required to
refine the assessments made in this TAMP, we have concluded
that the A, B and C road network and the footway network should
be our main priority over phase 1. Maintenance activities for all
other asset groupings, with the exception of Bridges and Similar
Structures, should also be maintained at or as close as possible
to the 2013 funding levels.

In order that we can achieve the challenging performance targets
relating to the condition of the A, B and C road and footway
networks, increased investment in these asset groups will be

required during phase 1. Our reasoning behind this is detailed
below:

e The A, B and C road network supports the economic vitality of
Lancashire and in recent years has shown sustained
deterioration following several severe winters. According to
the latest SCANNER surveys approximately 1,059km of the
network is categorised as being RED or AMBER. It is
estimated that an investment of £8m per annum for at least 5
years is required to reduce the maintenance backlog to
manageable proportions. The average investment in the A, B
and C road network over the last 5 years has been £4-5m per
annum.

e The footway network is an important and highly visible asset. It
includes approximately 8,500km of footway which currently
has in the region of 51,000 defects across the network. Whilst
the most serious defects are repaired quickly, we still receive
a large number of claims for personal injury. In the next five
years capital investment at a level of £3m per annum would be
required to achieve the challenging performance targets set for
this asset, and also reduce the number of successful claims
made against the county council. Investment over the previous
five years has averaged £2m per annum.

e The integration of cycling provision into the network of assets

as a whole is a priority and as a result cycling needs will be will
be considered in conjunction with major road schemes.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 17



80T abed

e As the current condition of the Bridges and Similar Structures
is in the upper end of GOOD and very close to being
EXCELLENT we propose to divert £3m capital funding from
this asset grouping into the A, B and C road network. Whilst
this will result in the overall condition of the Bridges and Similar
Structures asset grouping falling slowly year on year, it will still
be regarded as being GOOD at the end of the 5 year period.
Structures will continue to be inspected and the most critical
ones prioritised for attention so that public safety is maintained
at all times

Following the 5 year investment in phase 1, it is anticipated that
improvements in the overall condition of the A, B and C road and
footway networks would from 2020/21 onwards, release
approximately £7m per annum at current funding levels to support
reduction of the maintenance backlogs accrued in other asset
groupings.

It is anticipated that from 2020/21 onwards up to 150km of the A,
B and C road network will be classed as either RED or AMBER
each year following the annual SCANNER survey. At 2014 rates,
adjusted for inflation, it is estimated that an annual investment of
£3m would be sufficient to manage and address this deterioration
within the available funding. This would be achieved through

ongoing surface dressing programmes as parts of the network
reach the optimal point for such treatments.

Once we are able to deal with the normal and expected
deterioration of the network without the need for additional
resources, a level referred to as 'steady state' will be achieved. At
this point the overall condition of the network neither improves nor
deteriorates.

It is anticipated that a steady state would also be reached with the
footway asset whereby an annual investment of £1m would, from
2020/21, enable any expected deterioration to be managed from
within the available resources.

We anticipate at the end of the 5 year period in 2019/20 that the
condition of the A, B and C road network will be GOOD and the
condition of the footway network will be EXCELLENT.

However, should we experience severe weather events during this
5 year period it is acknowledged that these targets may not be
achieved. In such an event, then a sixth year may be required.
Equally, if the rate of deterioration is much less than predicted then
more rapid progress may be made. Details of Phase One are
shown below:

Phase One 2015/16 to 2019/20 Highest Priority Areas

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 18




60T abed

Estimated
Asset 2014 2 arag” Anticipated 2019/20 Condition & 2’ 2024125
Category Condition & Backlog Investment Backlog Investment Condition Target
@ 2014 rate
A, B and C | Condition : overall Condition : overall GOOD Condition : overall GOOD
Roads ACCEPTABLE Backlog: Reduced by at least 85% and Backlog: maintained at or slightly
Backlog: 1,059km RED or £8m per down to 150km RED or AMBER at the below 2019 levels - 150km RED or
AMBER at the 25-40-50 10-15-20 standard (A roads 10%, B roads £3m AMBER at the 10-15-20 standard
standard (A roads 25%, B year 15% and C roads 20%) (A roads 10%, B roads 15% and C
roads 40% and C roads roads 20%)
50%)

Footways Condition : ACCEPTABLE Condition : EXCELLENT Condition : EXCELLENT
Backlog: 51,000 defects £3m per Backlog: 95% of claims rebutted and £1m Backlog: maintained at or slightly
and claims costing approx year cost < £0.5m per year. Defects reduced below 2019 levels. Defects
£3m per year by 71% and < 15,000 reported per annum <15,000 reported per annum

6) Phase Two - Investment Period 2020/21 to 2024/25

During the next investment phase we intend to prioritise the rural
unclassified network and the residential unclassified road network
using the additional resources released from the reduction in the
amount of capital money required to maintain the A, B and C road
and footway networks.

It is anticipated that an allocation equivalent in value to £5m (at
2013 rates) is made available for each of those asset groups for
each year of phase 2. This funding will be directed predominantly
at preventative works as a way of maintaining the asset, supported
by a smaller programme of more extensive remediation works. It
is anticipated that such an approach will significantly reduce the
maintenance backlogs associated with these asset groups over

the 5 year period, to a point where a steady state is reached where
annual rate of deterioration is manageable within normal
resources.

Investment in the rural unclassified and residential unclassified
networks during phase 1 will be funded at levels consistent with
the budget allocations during 2011 to 2013. Whilst the condition
of these asset groups will be maintained broadly at 2013 levels,
some deterioration may occur across these networks, particularly
on rural unclassified roads. The principle focus will be on
preventative maintenance with key safety defects being
addressed so that the network can be maintained to the best
condition possible.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 19




OTT obed

Investment in other asset groups will continue. Lighting columns
will be replaced at a rate of approximately 2,000 columns per
annum with a focus on those columns exceeding their 'Action Age'
as defined in the Institute of Lighting Professionals Technical
Report 22 (TR22) 'Managing a Vital Asset: Lighting Supports' and
assessed as having no residual life and are in high risk locations.

Traffic signals and similar installations will be supported by a
replacement programme during the period 2015/16 to 2024/25.
By the end of 2019/20 it is anticipated that the most critical
installations exceeding their design life will have been replaced
and that the backlog of obsolete units will have reduced to
approximately half of the 2013 level. By the end of 2024/25 it is
anticipated that continued investment will have further reduced the
remaining backlog of installations that are no longer supported by
the manufacturer, to a level not exceeding 25% of the 2013 level.

The Bridges and Similar Structures asset group will experience a
slight decline in condition, as measured by the average bridge
condition index. This is currently calculated at 89.3 and classified
at the upper end of GOOD and very close to being EXCELLENT.

It is anticipated that by the end of 2019/20 the average bridge
condition index will have fallen, but will be not less than 85, which
is classified nationally as GOOD.

In 2019/2020 the condition of the bridge and structures stock will
be reviewed to assess optimal funding profiles for the period
2020/21 to 2024/25. In the event of resources being maintained
at the level of 2015/16 to 2019/20, there will be a further managed
decline in the average bridge condition index to a level of not less
than 80, which is still classified nationally as being GOOD.

In respect of the drainage asset group, we will in the first 5 years
of this strategy simultaneously manage the asset at the best
possible level and collect information about the individual items
that make up this asset grouping. From 2020/21, we will use the
data gathered between 2015/16 and 2019/20 to proactively
manage the network based on a sound condition assessment.

Details of Phase 2 are shown below:

Phase Two 2020/21 to 2024/25 Highest Priority Areas
Estimated
Asset 2014 ABUSE Anticipated 2019/20 AP 2024/25
iy 2019/20 iex 2024/25 e
Category Condition & Backlog Condition & Backlog Condition Target
Investment Investment
@ 2014 rate
Rural Condition : ACCEPTABLE £1.25m to Condition : ACCEPTABLE Condition :GOOD
Unclassified | Backlog : 500km £1.7m per | Backlog: 600km (estimated) £5m Backlog : reduced by 90% of 2019

Roads (estimated) year level

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 20




TTT abed

Residential
Unclassified

Roads

Condition : ACCEPTABLE
Backlog : 500km
(estimated)

£1.9m per
year

Condition : ACCEPTABLE
Backlog : RED — same as 2014
AMBER - increased to 800km

£5.5m

Condition :GOOD
Backlog : reduced by 90% of 2019
level

7) Phase Three - Investment Phase 2025/26 to 2029/30
It is anticipated that the focus of this phase will be on street lighting
and bridges and similar structures which will receive increased

investment to address maintenance backlogs.

below:-

The performance milestones for each asset group are set out
below. It is anticipated these indicators will be refined as more
condition data becomes available. Details of Phase 3 are shown

Phase Three 2025/26 to 2029/30 Highest Priority Areas

than design life (33%)

older than design life (24%)

Estimated
Asset 2014 225/;/2;0 Anticipated 2015/16 to 2019/20 z%ggzlg;o 2029/30
Category Condition & Backlog Investment Condition & Backlog Investment Condition Target
@ 2014 rate
Street Condition: FAIR Condition : ACCEPTABLE Condition :ACCEPABLE
Lighting Backlog : 34,000 columns £1.7m per Backlog : Failure rate approx 50 per year Backlog: reduced by 50% in 5
Medium to High Risk -yearp and 40,000 columns beyond predicted life £3m years.
Phase Three 2025/26 to 2029/30 Highest Priority Areas (cont)
Estimated
Asset 2014 2%‘:”;/2? Anticipated 2015/16 to 2019/20 2%3/92/2;0 2029/30
Category Condition & Backlog Investment Condition & Backlog Investment Condition Target
@ 2014 rate
Bridges and | Condition : GOOD — Bridge Condition GOOD within range 80z - <90 Condition : GOOD within range
Similar Condition Index (BCl) £3m per and BCI (Average) not less than 85 £3m 80= - <90 and BCI (Average) not
Structures | Average 89.3 (80= - <90) year less than 80
Traffic Condition: ACCEPTABLE £0.3m per Condition: FAIR £0.3m per Condition : GOOD
Signals Backlog: 204 units older a-nnurF:l Backlog: Reduced to approx 150 units a-nnurr; Backlog Reduced to <100 units

older than design life (15%)

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 21




211 abed

All Asset
Categories

Well defined maintenance needs programme developed with continually updated forward plans of maintenance needs

8) Future Changes to the Asset

As a result of new developments and network improvements, the
asset base will continue to grow as new roads and bridges are
constructed and new traffic signals and lighting columns erected.

It is unlikely that future maintenance resources will be sufficient to
manage the increased demands from an ever expanding asset
stock. Therefore our objective will be to attempt to maintain overall
asset levels as close as is practical to 2013 levels by identifying
opportunities to remove or rationalise existing assets as and when
new assets are added to the network. We will also need to
incorporate new material and treatment technologies into our
design specifications so that these new assets have the lowest
possible life cycle costs.

In addition, changes in weather patterns may impact on our ability
to deliver our maintenance strategy over the next 10 years.

9) Key Recommendations

¢ Maintenance interventions should be carried out at the most
cost effective point.

e A'worst first always' strategy should not be adopted.

Programmes of maintenance should largely be planned
prevention works with a smaller proportion of more invasive
treatments where unavoidable.

The important A, B and C road network should be prioritised for
maintenance to support the economy of Lancashire.

The investment required in the A, B and C road network is £8m
per annum and should be the first call on the maintenance
capital allocations.

The strategic importance of the bridge network is recognised
as is their GOOD condition. It is therefore recommended in the
short term that a capital reduction to bridge maintenance can
be made provided that inspection and monitoring regimes are
maintained.

The age profile of the lighting stock gives rise to concerns,
although the current annual failure rate is low. A strategic
options report is required to consider all alternatives for future
lighting provision over the period 2015/16 to 2025/26.

The age profile of traffic signal installations and the strategic
importance of those installations will result in a significant
demand for replacement over the next five year period. It is
recommended that a strategic replacement programme is
funded in conjunction with the area Highways and Transport
Masterplans.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 22




¢TT abed

e The opportunity to add or enhance cycling facilities should be
taken wherever possible in the implementation of these
maintenance programmes having due regard to the additional
costs of any such improvements.

e Better condition data including trends of condition for each
asset class will become increasingly important. It is vital that
provision is made for the collection, management and analysis
of that data on a regular basis.

10) Summary

The period covered by this plan follows a number of years of
increased demand arising from severe weather events including
the wettest summer on record and the coldest winters rivalling
those in living memory. Despite prudent stewardship of the asset,
significant maintenance backlogs are present.

The plan is built upon the sound asset management principle that
we will intervene at the right time, in the right place and with the
most cost effective solution. As a result we are moving away from
a more traditional 'worst first' approach, which in the longer term
is more costly and can only lead to an overall deterioration of the
asset.

The objective of this TAMP is to drive forward a reduction of
maintenance backlogs over a 15 year period and to achieve an
asset network at the end of that period that costs less to maintain
and is in far better condition than it is at present.

The plan will require the support of elected members, officers and
the general public if we are to achieve a reduction in maintenance
backlogs and a general phased improvement in the condition of
the network over a ten year period.

Although the current economic situation is austere, in order to
maximise the effective use of resources a planned prudent
stewardship of the transport assets of Lancashire has never been
more important.

The following pages provide a brief summary of the condition of
each of the asset groups covered by this TAMP together with a
summary of the main points arising out of our analysis of each

group.

Each section follows a similar basic structure. A graph shows the
relative condition of the asset on a district by district basis. A
summary provides key bullet points which seek to outline briefly
the key facts relating to the category of the asset. The information
presented includes:

e How much of the asset are we responsible for,

e How the condition of the asset is assessed,

e If there any gaps in the information we currently hold,

e The average condition of the asset in 2013,

e The estimated investment required to maintain the current
condition,

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 23



yTT obed

e How much financial resource has, on average, been
available in recent years;

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

How the risk to the integrity of the asset is assessed.

Page 24



GTT obed

A, B and C Roads (2014)

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative maintenance using appropriate surface treatments determined through
deterioration modelling.

260

210

160

KM

110

60

10

Km Roads RED or AMBER Actual 2009 to 2014 and Trend 2015 to 2018

= | ancaster

——= Ribble Valley
West Lancs
Wyre
Chorley

i\
\
\
\

Average
= Preston
= Fylde

=== South Ribble
. wess Pendle

== Rossendale

\
\

= Burnley
Hyndburn

mmm | ancaster Trend

—= Ribble Valley Trend
West Lancs Trend

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 25




oTT abed

A, B & C Roads - % RED, AMBER or GREEN (2014)

100%

90% [

80% [

70% [

60% [

50% [

40% [

30% [

20% [

10% [

0%
Burnley Chorley Fylde Hyndburn Lancaster Pendle

Preston  Ribble Valley Rossendale South Ribble West Lancs Wyre

Summary

The asset consists of a total of 2,567km of highway.

The length of A, B and C roads classified as RED or AMBER in 2014
was 1,180 km.

Proportion of the 1,180 km of roads RED, AMBER or GREEN is
shown in the graph above.

The proportion of RED or AMBER A, B and C roads varies across
the district areas.

A roads - Average % of 10m lengths RED or AMBER = 30.7%.

B roads - Average % of 10m lengths RED or AMBER = 47.5.3%.

C roads - Average % of 10m lengths RED or AMBER = 54.5%.

The current condition of the asset is assessed as ACCEPTABLE.

Investment strategy will firstly attempt to maintain the current
condition in all district areas.

Secondly it will allocate resources to those district areas with lengths
of RED and AMBER A, B and C roads higher than compared to the
county average.

The predicted condition at the current rate of investment of £5m per
annum shows a continued decline.

It is estimated that an investment of £8m per annum is required to
maintain/improve the condition of the asset.

Risk of a major multiple fatalities as a result of failure to maintain
the asset is considered to be remote.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 26




/TT abed

Rural Unclassified Roads

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative
maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in
preference to more costly resurfacing of roads.

Summary

e The asset consists of approximately 1,065km.

e A full coarse visual assessment will be completed in 2014.

e The current condition is indicated by the numbers of defects
identified by highways inspections.

e The current condition of the asset is assessed as being
ACCEPTABLE.

e The estimated investment required to maintain the current rate of
deterioration would be £4m per annum.

e The district areas of Burnley, Pendle, Hyndburn, Preston
Rossendale and South Ribble have a higher proportion of highways
defects than would be expected solely on the length of the network
in those areas.

¢ Investmentis based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the
network as far as is practical, and secondly, if investment levels are
sufficient, to bring all district areas up to the same county standard.

e The average resources available for rural unclassified roads in the
past five years have been £1.7m per annum.

e The asset is important to the rural economy and to rural
communities.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

% Rural Unclassified Defects

20.0%
10.0%
0.0% - \ \ . .
( \ (7 Q < <
A PR - I A O
& & & F T @ NS Y
N ? ¥ & S &>
& & ©
% of Rural Network
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0% - N . N N
< Q < Q < <
N2 N2 N \ x@ N\ o) 2 \. \o\ (% N
& @ & & Q? @'} © P N ,&\3’(\ N
Q C Q&Q > \O\Qf (,‘—:?’ R &
F & @ N

Page 27




81T abed

Residential Roads

Km Length by District

500

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative

maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in 400

preference to more costly resurfacing of roads. 300 1

Summary 200 T

¢ The asset includes approximately 3,400 km of residential roads. 100 7

o Afull coarse visual assessment will be completed in 2014. 0 - N .

e The current condition is indicated by the numbers of defects 0,\&‘27\ \(\o\\@* d\e’ 8°§ &é"’ Qé\&e’ ’\%@Q A\\@\ Q@Q’ q,:\ox}e' & $~(‘e’
identified by highways inspections. ¢ & S ] & qf? S $e°3”

e The current condition of the asset is assessed as being & <
ACCEPTABLE.

e The gstimated investment required to maintain the current rate of % Highway Safety Defects
deterioration would be £5m per annum. 15.0%

* Investmentis based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the
network as far as is practical.

¢ Secondly, if resources allow, investment will be based on bringing all 10.0%
districts to the county standard.

e The average resources available for residential roads in the past five

years have been £2-3m per annum. 5.0% 7
0.0% * N\ N\ 4 Q S e 3\ 2 5 e
\\
S <A\b o 5L S o & &
& S & C & BRI
RN W &
Qi\o <« P

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 28



6TT abed

Footways Claims 2012-2013

100
Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative
maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in
preference to more costly resurfacing of footways. 0

I N
D\ & QS Q RS
Summary SR G LA N

e There are over 8,500km of footways and urban footways in
Lancashire.

e Afull coarse visual assessment is to be completed in 2014. 10,000 DEfeCts 2012-2013

e The current condition is indicated by the numbers of defects
identified by highways inspections and the number of claims
received. 0

e The current condition of the asset is assessed as being
ACCETABLE.

e The estimated capital investment required to maintain the current
rate of deterioration would be £2.5m per annum.

e Investment s based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the Km Length by District
network as far as is practical and secondly, if resources allow, on 1000
bringing all district areas to the same county standard.

e The capital resources available for footways in the past five years

o < \b.‘ D o D o . 0 o X X, *ﬂ
& & & & RPN & o S‘?’% W

have been £2m per annum. >00 7
078 T
S & ¥ KL ¢ | J & & &
FFE S LSS &
> & & &R ¢ &S
AR ¢®° <& (,)o" N

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 29



02T abed

Bridges and Similar Structures necessarily require urgent remedial action and is not automatically at

risk of failure or subject to load restrictions.
Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative

maintenance which is not based on reconstruction of bridges but
is based on appropriate preventative treatment.

Bridge Numbers and Average BCI

by District
Summary 300
B <40 POOR
e We are responsible for approximately 2,000 bridges and similar ggg:gg /:;CREPTABLE
structures. 950 |—-80-90G00D
e We have good condition information relating to the condition of the M 90 - 100 EXCELLENT
asset.
e Our average bridge condition index is 89.3 which is the upper end of 200
GOOD (and almost EXCELLENT).
e The estimated capital investment required to maintain the current
rate of deterioration would be £3-4m per annum.* 150

e The investment strategy is based upon identifying bridges and
similar structures which have a bridge condition index (critical or
adjusted) of < 40, and producing action plans for each such
structure.™*

e The capital investment available in recent years has averaged £6m
per annum.

e |tis recommended that the capital allocation for bridges is reduced to
£3m per annum and that major construction or refurbishment
projects seek other funding sources.

« On the basis of the bridge condition data, resources are allocated on 0
the basis of need as individual projects are unlikely to be included in
any district based allocation.

100

50

*Does not include maintenance of Network Rail bridges, major new
projects or major refurbishments.**A bridge in poor condition does not

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 30



T2T abed

Street Lighting

Most Cost Effective Strategy: The risk to the public from a column falling over is generally low; however, half of our columns exceed the
age when they should be regularly tested or considered for replacement or removal. The best strategy is to reduce the likelihood of columns
falling over by either replacing or removing the highest risk columns or removal of columns without replacement.

Number of Low, Medium and High Risk Columns

25000

O Low Risk [0 Medium Risk B High Risk

20000

15000

10000 -

-

5000

Burnley Chorley Fylde Hyndburn Lancaster Pendle

Preston Ribble Valley Rossendale South Ribble West Lancs Wyre

Summary

We are responsible for approximately 165,000 street lights,
iluminated signs, bollards and similar installations.

We spend in excess of £6m per year on electricity to run those
lighting units.

According to the risk assessment contained in the Institute of
Lighting Professionals Technical Report 22 'Managing a Vital Asset'
51% of lighting columns have now exceeded their 'Action Age'.
34,200 columns are regarded as being of medium to high risk.
23,000 medium risk columns (in yellow) will score highly enough in
the next five years to be included in the high priority bracket,
currently having a score >100.

11,000 columns (in red) are the highest risk now having a score
>150.

The current condition of the stock is considered to be FAIR.

In order to maintain the current rate of deterioration of the stock, it is
estimated that a capital investment of the order of £6m per annum
would be required.

The likely capital investment available for 2014/15 is £1.7m.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 31




2c1 abed

Traffic Signals

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative maintenance which is based on replacement of obsolete units at key junctions
which will not be covered by Highways and Transport Masterplan activities.

250 Signal Installation Age Profile - Signals by Age and District
[ Up to 20 years old

200
W 21+ years old

M Traffic Signals [ Pedestrian Facilities 100

150

100 50 7

50 . 0 H H | H ﬂ ﬂ
A\ A (Z QO X N2 Q N N\ & & e

. - NN 2SI N Y S R AN U SR\
0 T T T T %&Q \(\0\ <<* *(\80 ’bg’bc) Q:\o Q@C’ Q@Q Q*A’} C)Q,Qb S\:b $A
up to five years 6-10yrs 11-15yrs 16-20yrs 21yrs + A Y Qp"
Summary

There are 331 sites in Lancashire which are controlled by a total of
approximately 1,000 traffic signal / pelican crossing installations.
The condition of the stock is measured in terms of the age of
installations.

Installations normally have a service life of 20 years before they
reach a point where they are no longer supported by the
manufacturer.

We currently have a total of 204 installations (40% of the stock) more
than 20 years old.

It is estimated that a replacement programme at a value of £0.5m
per year would be required to replace the stock that is no longer
supported by the manufacturer.

Over the past three years, less than £100,000 per annum has been
available for traffic signal replacement.

It is anticipated that from 2014, a capital programme to the value of
£0.3m per annum will be used to support traffic signal replacement.
A breakdown of traffic signal and pedestrian crossing equipment up
to 20 years old (green) and age 21 years and over (red) and no
longer supported is shown in the right hand graph above.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 32



c2T abed

Public Rights of Way

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative maintenance which is based on appropriate preventative treatment to key
equipment and other actions aimed at ensuring the public are able to exercise their right to pass and re-pass across this network.

Km of Public Rights of Way by District Area Publc Rights of Way Reports 2013
250 ..
1500 M Footpath [0 Bridleway o Ur_\kn_own W Priority 5
200 . . . .
1000 — [J Priority 2 M Priority 1
150 :
500 100 ] _—
Cm_ =W EEWEEE
0 L A == = =
N
0&0 \on &Q/ k\é \be &\(\ :,’}Q’k &e a}o Ib\\eﬁ b’z}z .\0\0\6 (\(,‘9 § \\@
© S *Qb & T @ N &<
> N & X <
RS A4 Q’:\O\o S c)OQ Q
Summary

e The asset consists of 5,560 Km of public rights of way (PROW)
comprising public footpaths, public bridleways, public by-ways and
byways open to all traffic.

e The condition of the asset is collected by an annual inspection of 5%
(278km) of the network. Walked lengths are selected at random and
are inspected by trained volunteers.

e The condition of the asset is considered to be broadly
ACCEPTABLE.

e We have a statutory duty to ensure that every PROW is correctly
recorded, signed and available for all legitimate users at all times.

e Approximately 3,000 defects are reported annually across the
PROW network.

We receive more defects across the PROW network each year than
we can realistically resolve.

The capital resources available for PROW in the past five years have
been negligible. From 2015 onwards £0.25m will be made available
annually.

Investment is based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the
network as far as is practical and secondly, if resources allow, on
bringing all district areas to the same county standard.

This asset contributes towards health and well-being initiatives and
is used extensively used for health related leisure activities such as
walking, cycling, running, horse riding etc.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 33



y2T obed

11) Conclusion

The above data indicates:

The most effective investment strategy is one based on

12) Risk

Relative Risk Rating of the Asset Groupings

intervention at the optimal point in an asset's lifecycle. Likelihood of
: . Catastrophic Failure .
A general maintenance strategy of planned preventative AssetClass | |, Asset .. serious injury, Usage of History of
. . olume or | f k t Asset critical safety
maintenance at the correct time should be adopted. Size 0ss ?ataeli)tlyasse’ sse defect
A 'worst first' approach can no longer be sustained.
. . . . Very High and
Continued deterioration of the A, B and C road network will A’Sogggc 2,567km Possible economically | Medium/ Low
occur if investment in the network is maintained at £5m per _otiean_
Rural L
annum. Unclassified 1,065km Possible srlgglﬂf(fm;? Medium
An investment of £8m per annum is required to manage the Roads economies
. Residential
condition of the A, B and C road network. Unclassified 3,400km Possible High visibility Low
The condition of the bridges network is assessed as being at Roads e
the upper end of GOOD. Bridges 2,000 Remote tthou.sand Vf-)ry low (once
. . . . L ransits per in 10 years)
It is recommended that investment in bridges and similar day)
. . High and 360 occasions
structures in the short term is reduced to a level of £3m per Footways 8,518km Remote USers are each year i.e.
annum provided that major scheme funding is sought for R vulnerable 1 per day
strategic schemes Drainage 7 gggﬁ?ﬂ Remote High Medium
o . Stroot 0.008% less
There are significant maintenance backlogs present Lig[ﬁi‘;g 165,000 Remote High than one per
particularly in respect of the A, B and C road network, rural —month_
. . . . . . ) Hundreds of . )
unclassified roads, street lighting and traffic signals. Traffic Signals | o] Jl;n&t)'gns Possibl thousands of fa"u;,e 02 It;aff'c
. . . . or1, ossible - ign
A capital programme of the order of £25m will result in bestestimate | tallations transits per | (approximately
. . . . . y 2 per week)
continuing deterioration of parts of the highways asset. Thousands of
: e : : . . movements Limited failure.
The identification of strategically important subsets of the Crash Report being Possible per day No history of
. . g T Barriers prepared ross the total failure
highways asset should be identified and prioritised to support across
the maintenance strategy.
Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 34




GZT obed

Appendix 1

Generic Service Standards

Service

Standard

Description of Level of Service

Definition

Service delivery that is considered to fall below the minimum standard deemed necessary to maintain the asset in a safe manner.
As a result only those essential and critical repairs that are affordable are undertaken. The risks and consequences associated
with providing this service level are summarised below:

Legal

Ungble to ensure that we carry out all those duties that are incumbent on the authority through law, statutory duties
or mandatory requirements;

Insufficient allocation to carry out works to recommendations contained in relevant codes of practice for which there
is no approved derogation;

Authority is more exposed to legal action up to and including corporate manslaughter;

Degree of risk may be mitigated by a robust risk assessment which describes the reasons for deviation from the
code of practice.

Safet

In all gases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is likely to result in a significant
increase in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits;

Risks associated with the asset may be increased with attendant risks of legal exposure;

Likely to result in a significant increase in third party claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage;
Heavy reliance on Safety Inspection regime to identify defects.

Availability
Availability of entire network cannot be guaranteed;

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 35



9¢T abed

Poor asset condition means parts of the asset may be withdrawn on a temporary or permanent basis to reduce the
safety and legal exposure of the authority;
As no programmed maintenance work is undertaken assets may be withdrawn from service for some time.

Condition

Condition of the asset will quickly deteriorate as investment is not keeping pace with the maintenance requirements.
This standard is not sustainable over the long term;

It is assumed that the rate of deterioration exceeds the under investment required to maintain condition by a factor
of at least 50% i.e. investment £10m less than required means a depreciation of £15m in asset value.

Asset Value
Asset value is likely to be depreciating more rapidly as a result of minimal investment;

Maintenance heavily reliant on reactive activities which result in unpredictable financial management and highest
whole life costs;

The cost of investment needed to return the stock to the minimum standard is growing rapidly and exceeds the
resources available.

Public Perception
Likely to be well aware that the asset is deteriorating and is becoming less available, safe or fit for purpose;

Members in particular will be facing pressure for improvement and will seek to react to local pressures potentially
diluting the impact on overall asset condition;
Complaints and claims would be expected to be high.

Service Delivery
The principle focus is likely to be reactive maintenance with minimum or no preventative maintenance intervention

to prevent asset deterioration;
It will not be possible to address all issues rapidly and a prioritisation of service demands will be required;
It is likely that increasing portions of the asset are removed from service and that the trend accelerates with time

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 36



/2T abed

as the asset ages;

An increasing backlog of maintenance issues will exacerbate the service problems and lead to a further chain
reaction of deterioration;

Depreciation in the asset value would be expected to exceed the under investment required to achieve a FAIR
standard. It would be expected that initially deterioration would outstrip underinvestment by 50% with that proportion
tending to increase year on year.

ACCEPTABLE

Definition
The minimum level of service to meet most statutory requirements and compliance with minimum requirements detailed in national
codes of practice. The risks and consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below :

a)

b)

d)

Legal
The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all key respects; any derogation
is documented and supported by a robust risk assessment;

We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements.

Safety
High reliance on Safety Inspection regime to identify defects;

In all cases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is likely to result in an increase
in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits;

Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects. Systems are in place
to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary arrangements to mitigate risk
until a permanent repair is possible;

We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards.

Availability
The majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use.

Condition
The condition of the asset is deteriorating but at a reduced rate compared to POOR standard;

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 37



g¢T abed

e Itis assumed that the rate of deterioration over under investment is of the order of 30% i.e. £10m underinvestment
results in £13m of deterioration.

e) Asset Value

e The asset value is likely to be depreciating as a result of minimum investment.

f) Public Perception

o Likely to be well aware that the asset is deteriorating and is becoming less available, safe or fit for purpose;

e Members in particular will be facing pressure for improvement and will seek to react to local pressures potentially
diluting the impact on overall asset condition;

e Complaints and claims would be expected to be high. It is highly likely that members or the public would easily
distinguish between POOR and ACCEPTABLE standards in their localities.

g) Service Delivery

e The principle focus is likely to be reactive maintenance rather than preventative works undertaken at the optimal
time;

e It will not be possible to address all issues rapidly and a prioritisation of service demands will be required;

¢ An increasing backlog of maintenance needs will exacerbate the service problems and lead to a further chain
reaction of deterioration;

e Depreciation in the asset value would be expected to exceed the under investment required to achieve a FAIR
standard;

e It would be expected that initially deterioration would outstrip underinvestment by 30% with that proportion tending
to increase year on year.

FAIR Definition
A level of service that generally meets statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice. The risks and
consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below:

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 38



621 abed

d)

e)

Legal

The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all respects and a robust risk
assessment exists, except where it chooses not to carry one out. In all such instances any derogation is
documented and supported by a robust risk assessment;

We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements;

The legal exposure of the authority is reasonably controlled and robust systems are in place to provide supporting
evidence of compliance with the code of practice.

Safety
Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects;

Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary
arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible;

We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards. We are proactive in the
identification and rectification of those defects;

In all cases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is unlikely to result in an
increase in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits.

Availability
The majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use;

Restrictions of the asset are largely planned maintenance activities rather than emergency repairs with the
exception of emergency utility repairs.

Condition
The condition of the asset is stabilised or with minor deterioration;

It is assumed that the rate of deterioration is under 10%.

Asset Value

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 39



0€T abed

The asset value is likely to be depreciating as a result of other external factors rather than under investment.

f) Public Perception

o ltis likely that public opinion does not reflect the condition of the asset and the presence of any defects at all would
be considered by members of the public to indicate that the asset was in poor condition.

g) Service Delivery

¢ A mixture of preventative maintenance undertaken at the optimal time and reactive maintenance will be delivered
although it is possible that outside pressure focuses some investment in areas which do not serve to improve the
condition of the asset;

e The backlog of maintenance needs will probably be growing but at a reduced rate, due to any severe weather
events and the reduction of our ability to focus on technically driven programmes.

GOOD Definition

A level of service that is above statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice. The risks and
consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below:

a)

Legal

Thg authority generally exceeds the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in key respects; any derogation
is minor and defensible, documented, and supported by a robust risk assessment;

We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements;

We are able to defend legal claims robustly and develop a strong due diligence defence.

Safety
Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects;

Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary
arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible;

We have supporting information to ensure our delivery to required performance standards;

Should see a reduction in numbers of third party claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 40



TET abed

c) Availability
e The vast majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use.

d) Condition
e The condition of the asset has been stabilised but significant improvements will take time It is assumed that the
rate of deterioration is minimal.

e) Asset Value

e The asset value is maintained as far as is reasonably practical;

e Relatively high costs in the short term as intervention measures are used to improve asset condition — results in
lower whole life costs.

f) Public Perception
It is likely that public perception is still focused on the defects present and that it will take significant time before any
improvement in perception of the asset is noted.

g) Service Delivery

e A mixture of preventative and reactive service delivery models will be used as the backlog of maintenance issues
will only be reduced slowly if at all;

e Increased capital budget enables preventative maintenance to be carried out. Such works are directed at
intervening at the right point to restore the asset to an appropriate condition at minimum cost.

Definition

A level of service that is well above statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice. Service delivery
aimed at maintaining the asset to a high standard. The risks and consequences associated with providing this service level are
summarised below:

a) Legal
e The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all respects; any minor local

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 41



ZeT abed

derogations are documented and supported by a robust risk assessment;
We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements;
We further understand future needs and pressures and have a well developed strategic plan for the next five years.

Safety
Significant reduction in claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage;

Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects;

Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary
arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible;

We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards;

Performance standards are challenging and reviewed regularly.

Availability
The asset is available for normal reasonable use.

Condition

The condition of the asset is improving strongly with asset value increasing;

It is increasingly possible to flexibly assign resources to selected programmes each year as the relative deterioration
is marginal year on year.

Asset Value

The investment required to bring the asset to an as new condition is reducing;

High costs in the short term as intervention measures are used to improve asset condition — results in lowest whole
life costs.

Public Perception
Generally public perception of the condition of the strategic and residential road network would be expected to be

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

positive however the response to the few defects remaining will be disproportionate as expectations will steadily

Page 42




increase;
e The majority of the asset improvements will be less visible and the general public and members would not be
expected to notice improved drainage, improving lighting column condition or improving bridge condition.

g) Service Delivery
e The principle service delivery is focused on preventative maintenance at the optimal time in an assets life cycle

which will effectively reduce the average cost per scheme, particularly in respect of roads, and in turn fuel more
rapidly improving condition;
e Operating at a sustainable level using sustainable methods.

ceT abed

Appendix 2

Service Standards

SERVICE STANDARD
Asset Category Measured By 2013./14
Condition ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD EXCELLENT
CONDITION CONDITION CONDITION [Sefe)\[p]gy (o]
A Roads* A=221% 25% 15% 10% 5%
B Roads* % Roads RED & AMBER B =42.3% 40% 20% 15% 5%

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 43



v£T obed

C Roads* C=48.7% 50% 30% 20% 10%
Residertial Unciassified 9, Roads RED & AMBER 28-40% 28-40% 18-28% 14-18% <14%
Rural Unclassified Roads*™ | % Roads RED & AMBER 28-40% 28-40% 18-28% 14-18% <14%
Footways Number of Defects 51,395 50,000-60,000 | 25,000-50,000 | 15,000-25,000 <15,000

Bridges and Similar Bridge Condition Index 89.3 40-60 60-79 80-90 >90

Structures (Average)
Street Lighting % of High Risk Installations 23.15% 25-35% 20-25% 10-20% 5-10%
o . .
Traffic Signals 7 of Units Beyond Design 33.11% 30-40% 20-30 10-20 <10%

* The overall condition of the A, B and C road network is broadly considered to be ACCEPTABLE.
** It has been assumed, in the absence of engineering data, that the condition of the unclassified road network is similar to that of
the C road network.

Appendix 3
Primary and secondary priorities if additional resources are received in Phases One, Two or Three

Whilst we would like to improve the condition of all of our assets,
all at once, this TAMP recognises that the amount of money likely
to be made available in future will not permit this. As a result we
are required to prioritise those assets which contribute most

This TAMP defines a fifteen year operational plan designed to
reduce the transport asset maintenance backlogs and future
maintenance costs in Lancashire. It recognises that a key barrier
to this is the availability of sufficient financial resources.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 44



GeT obed

towards our goal of delivering an effective transport system, as
this is considered crucial if we are to help the businesses of
Lancashire and achieve our broader economic, social and
environmental goals. If we are to succeed, this approach will
require the understanding and support of elected members and
the residents of Lancashire over the life of this plan.

Should additional resources be made available then more rapid
progress can be made towards providing a network that is fit for
purpose and maintainable at a good standard by enabling works
contained in phases two and three to be brought forward.

Additional resources will also enable more rapid progress to be
made in providing a transport asset network that is fit for purpose
and maintainable at a good standard. It will also enable the

economic and other benefits such as health, well being and
engagement with neighbourhoods etc to be realised earlier

The vision of this plan is a Lancashire in 2030 supported by a good
roads network where available resources allow rapid rectification
of maintenance needs and allow a rapid, clear and transparent
response to problems while supporting preventative maintenance
treatments designed to avoid future potential problems.

The information below has been complied to set out how we would
spend any additional money should the actual level of finance
received increase over and above that assumed in the TAMP.
Dependant on the actual level of additional finance received we
will either enhance the defined programmes for priority areas or
invest in the primary and secondary priorities. In all cases, the
TAMP will be amended should additional resources be received.

Phase One 2015/16 to 2019/20 - Main Priority Areas A, B and C Roads and Footways

One-off
additional

Primary Priority

Subject to level of finance received, bring forward a limited number of planned works on the most strategically
important parts of the A, B & C road network.

allocation | Preferred Treatment | Surface dressing, structural patching or resurfacing as appropriate.

Secondary Priority

Footway network, concentrating on third party claims black spots.

Preferred Treatment | Structural patching or resurfacing as appropriate.

Outcome

Accelerate the completion of phase one, resulting in the A, B and C road and Footway networks being in better
condition, having fewer defects and reduced on-going maintenance costs.

£1m to Primary Priority

£5m per A, B & C road network.

Potential to bring forward whole programmes of planned work, prioritised on strategically important parts of the

year over | Preferred Treatment | Surface dressing, structural patching or resurfacing as appropriate.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 45



o¢T abed

a number | Secondary Priority Residential unclassified road network.
of years | Preferred Treatment | Structural patching or surface dressing.

Outcome Accelerate a reduction in backlogs and improve the condition of A, B and C and residential unclassified road
networks particularly if surface dressing treatments are used. If roads need to be structurally patched, this will
result in a much smaller area being remediated.

In excess | Primary Priority Residential unclassified and rural unclassified road networks to accelerate reduction in backlogs.
of >£5m | Preferred Treatment | Creation of resurfacing and structural patching allocations and explore operational delivery to maximise
per year economies of scale.
over a Secondary Priority Potential to resurfacing of those parts of the residential unclassified and rural unclassified road networks where
number of surface dressing or structural patching is not considered appropriate.
years Outcome Additional investment will allow phases one and two to be run concurrently and enable us to reduce

maintenance backlogs in these networks. However our prime focus in the short term will be to concentrate on
using the most cost effective treatments and addressing the proportion of the asset classified as RED.

Added Value - Accelerate the reduction of backlogs particularly on the strategically important parts of the network as this supports the economy of
Lancashire and is vital if we are to increase the economic prosperity of the county. This is reflected in the county council's Highways and Transport
Master Planning process which is supported by central government delivering the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal and Heysham
M6 Link projects. Additional funding of £5m per annum will allow concurrent improvement of the residential unclassified and rural unclassified road
networks in support of the county council Priority Neighbourhoods initiative which seeks to improve the most deprived areas of Lancashire.

Phase Two 2020/21 to 2024/25 - Main Priority Areas Rural Unclassified Roads and Residential Unclassified Roads

One-off | Primary Priority Subject to level of finance received, bring forward a limited number of planned works on the residential
additional unclassified road network.
allocation | Preferred Treatment | Surface dressing, structural patching or resurfacing as appropriate.
Secondary Priority | Subject to level of finance received, bring forward a limited number of planned works on the most strategically
important parts of the rural unclassified road network.
Preferred Treatment | Structural patching or resurfacing as appropriate.
Outcome Will accelerate the completion of phase two, resulting in the rural unclassified and residential unclassified road
networks being in better condition, having fewer defects and reduced on-going maintenance costs.
£1m to Primary Priorities Increased investment in lighting column replacements.
£5m per | Preferred Treatment | Replacement of highest risk columns.
year over | Secondary Priorities | Increase investment in street lighting equipment. Removing those columns that are no longer needed. Where
a number columns are still needed, replacing with new and fitting with energy efficiency lanterns.
of years | Preferred Treatment | Removal of columns coupled with more energy efficient technology deployment.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 46



/€T abed

Tertiary Priorities

Replacing ineffective drainage systems with modern equivalents, prioritising work to flood risk areas.

Increase investment in those bridges and similar structures which have a bridge critical score close to 40.

Outcome Will enable works from phase 3 to be brought forward and for real progress to be made in respect of asset
groupings not currently included in any phase. Will result in lower future maintenance costs.
In excess | Primary Priority Increased Investment in residential unclassified and rural unclassified road networks to accelerate a reduction
of >£5m in maintenance backlogs.
per year | Preferred Treatment | We will create resurfacing and structural patching allocations for the residential unclassified and rural
over a unclassified road networks and explore operational delivery mechanisms to maximise economies of scale
number of | Secondary Priority Increased surface dressing across the entire network to enable AMBER areas to be addressed earlier.
years Outcome Additional investment at this level will allow phases one and two to run concurrently enabling us to accelerate

progress in reducing the maintenance backlogs in the residential unclassified and rural unclassified road
networks. However our prime focus in the short term will be to concentrate on using the most cost effective
treatments and addressing the proportion of the asset classified as RED.

Added Value Will allow more rapid progress to be made particularly in the residential unclassified and rural unclassified road networks. The rural
unclassified road network is particularly important given the outstanding natural beauty of the county. In spite of its relative importance anticipated
funding levels will not allow progress until phase two.

Phase Three 2025/26 to 2029/30 - Main Priority Areas Bridges and similar structures and Street Lighting

Overall Priority

Review of condition of all assets following phases one and two.

On_e_-off Primary Priority Street Lighting
additional . _
allocation | Preferred Treatment | Replacement of highest risks columns
Secondary Priority Energy reduction initiatives.
Preferred Treatment
Outcome Replacement of highest risks columns and reduction in energy and costs
£1m to Primary Priorities Bridges and Structures
£5m per | Preferred Treatment | Addressing structures in poorest conditions.
year over Prioriti | ti
2 number Secondary Priorities | Inspection programmes.
of years | Preferred Treatment

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014 Page 47




g¢T abed

Tertiary Priorities

Outcome Ensure that bridges remain in a safe condition
In excess | pyimary Priority Production of the next ten year plans.
of >£5m
per year | Preferred Treatment | Preventative maintenance intervention at the optimal time
overa | Secondary Priority | Reduction of proportions of poor condition assets.
number of o Ensure that all assets are maintained in their optimum condition and that maintenance backlogs are very
el much reduced so that they can be easily addressed within the level of funds that are available.

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 48



6ST abed

Transport Asset Management Plan — June 2014

Page 49



Page 140



	Agenda
	3 Membership and Terms of Reference.
	6 Note of the Last Meeting
	7 Action Sheet update from the last meeting.
	8 Developing the Three Tier Forums - feedback on the review.
	Cabinet Report
	AppA

	9 Rossendale Making Space for Water Group
	10 Rossendale Borough Council - Task and Finish Group report on Public Rights of Way.
	11 2014/15 Quarter 1 Environment Directorate Performance Dashboard.
	12 Events on the Highway - policy and procedures for highway management.
	Events AppA
	Events AppB

	13 ransport Asset Management Plan (TAMP)
	TAMP


	Text1: Appendix B


